TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575
www.surfsidebeach.org

7% (843) 913-6111 & (843) 238-5432
. s RE TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
PUBLIC NOTICE The Grand Theatre

SPECIAL LOCATION 301 Highway 17 South
FOR THIS MEETING. Surfside Beach, South Carolina
T Tuesday, January 8, 2013 ¢ 6:30 p.m.

AGFHENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER — Mayor Douglas F. Samples

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Rev. Tom Wallace, Journey Church

3. AGENDA APPROVAL

4. MINUTES APPROVAL - Regular Meeting December 10, 2012

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS - 3-minutes per speaker

6. COMMUNICATIONS

A

B.

Department Reports

i. Planning, Building & Zoning

i, Police

ifi. Fire

Administrator's Report — Update on Current Events

7. BUSINESS

A.

B.

C.

A. Second Reading Ordinance #12-0729 to add Chapter 17, Article IX, Overlay District,
Planning Director Morris

First Reading Ordinance #12-0734 to amend §7-12 Sanitation Service Charges, and to
add §7-37(g) Electronic Waste Prohibition, Public Works Director Adair

Committee Appointments (May be deferred until after Executive Session)

i. Board of Building Appeals — (5 vacancies) Bill Trail, Ralph Magliette

ii. Board of Zoning Appeals — (1 vacancy) Terri Lauer

iii. Stormwater Committee - (1 vacancy) Tom Meccia

iv. Senior Citizens — (3 vacancies) Linda Roach, Jim Roach, Cheryl Lowe

8. DISCUSSION — Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council.

A
B.
C.

Road Signage on Ocean Boulevard, Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry

Lasers, Counciimember Dodge
February 11 Town Council Meeting (MASC Elected Officials Institute & Hometown

Legislative Action Day conflict)
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10.

11.

12.

Town of Surfside Beach Regular Town Council Meeting

The Grand Theatre, 301 Highway 17 South, Surfside Beach, SC 29575
Tuesday, January 8, 2013

Agenda, Continued

PUBLIC COMMENTS - 5-minutes per speaker

COUNCIL COMMENTS

EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss compensation, promotion, demotion,

discipline, or release of an employee
B. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss appointments to committees as noted in
Section 7C herein.

ADJOURNMENT
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7 = REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
‘gi~==g DECEMBER 10, 2012+ 6:30 P.M.

% cw®  TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

1. CALL TO ORDER.

Mayor Samples called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore
Mabry, and Councilmembers Dodge, Kohimann, Smith, and Stevens were insattendance. Mr. Johnson
was out of town on business. A quorum was present. Staff present: Town Administrator Fellner;
Treasurer Hursey, Planning Director Morris; Interim Police Chief Keziah, and Public Works Director Adair.
Also present: Mr. Bob Harper, Harper, Poston & Moree; Tewn Attorney Moss, and Town Clerk Herrmann.

Mayor Samples: "(**) Can you hear me? Very good. Welcome to theiregular, irregular Surfside
Beach Town Council meeting (**) | want to say council thanks The Grand Theatre folks for allowing us to
(**) while council chambers are getting repaired, so we greatly appreciate it. We had a great day
Saturday. It was probably one of the nicest weather days, and | think we had a very nice parade. We'll
close some of those gaps up next year, but it was still fantastic, and | hope everybody had the opportunity
to enjoy it. With that, Carmen Carella will lead us in prayer tonight, and Garmen, you're more than
welcome to use the microphone.”

Clerk’s note: This meeting was held at The Grand Theatre, 301 South'Kings Highway, Surfside
Beach. The Grand Theatre prepared a digital recording which is on file'in the ¢lerk’s office.

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
Chaplain,Carmen Carella, Surfside Beach Fire Department, gave the invocation.

Mayor Samples: "l understand we're gonna have a flag? Thank you. Thank you.” Mayor
Samples led.the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. AGENDA APPROVAL.

Mayor Samples: "Well, thank you. First item would be the agenda approval.”
Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, | move that we approve the agenda.”

Mayor Samples: "There’s a motion.”

Ms. Dodge: "Second.”

Mayor Samples: "There's a second. All in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Opposed? The agenda is adopted.”

4. MINUTES APPROVAL.

Mayor Samples: "Moving along. We have the minutes approval. We have two separate
meetings, a, | would like to get them adopted individually. Can | get a motion?”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor.”
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge."
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Regular Town Council Meeting
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Ms. Dodge: "l want to point out line 1135, my name is included, and | was sailing on the ocean.
(** I'm sorry, November 13"."

Mayor Samples: "Can | get a motion?”

" Ms. Dodge: "l would like to move that we accept the minutes for November 13™ and November
277"

Mayor Samples: "There is a motion.”

Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, we want to do separately, so I'd, I'd like.toask that she restate her
motion.”

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor, | move that we accept the minutes of the regular council meeting
November 13"”

Mayor Samples: "There is a motion. Is therg'a second?”

Ms. Mabry: "Second.”

Mayor Samples: "There is a second. Any discussion? ‘All in favor say.aye.”
All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Opposed? Hearing none, the:minutes are adopted. | need a motion for a, the
November 27" 2012:minutes.”

Ms: Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayar Samples: "Ms. Dodge."

Ms. Dodge: "I would move that we accept the minutes for the November 27" meeting.”
Mayor Samples: "There is a motion.”

Ms. Mabry: "Second.”

Mayor Samples: "There.is a second. Line 1999, | would just ask in particular, Ms. Dodge, take a
look at 1999. The word that I'm not certain is correct is the word ‘now.’ | think the word ‘not.”

Ms. Dodge: "Yes, sir. It should be ‘not’ rather than ‘now.” Thank you.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. So, can we make that correction? Thank you. Any discussion?
Hearing none, all in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”
Mayor Samples: "Oh, certainly.”

Mr. Smith: "Is this the point in which you do the reconsideration, before the minutes are
approved? It comes later? Okay.”

Mayor Samples: "Good question, though. All in favor say aye.”
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Reguiar Town Council Meeting
December 10, 2012

All Members: “Aye.”
Mayor Samples: "The minutes are adopted. Thank you.”

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS — AGENDA ITEMS.

Mayor Samples: "The next item is public comments, so anyone who has a public comment
concerning a matter on the agenda, now is the time to come forward. We do have a temporary piace for
you to speak, and there is a microphone at the temporary pedium. Hearing none, seeing none, we'll
move right along.”

6. COMMUNICATIONS.

A. Employee Recognition.

i. Willie Myers — 20-year Anniversary.

Mayor Samples: "Communications, and it is my honor and privilege to recognize Willie Myers.
Willie, come on up. (Applause.) Willie has been withithe town, believe.it or not, come on up here, my
friend. What | didn't finish saying was Willie has begen with the town for 20-years; 20 long and wonderful

years. (Applause.) Our streets look so well in large part because Willie's out there making it happen. |
think everybody knows that and we all appreciate everything you do for us,”

Mr. Myers: “It's an honor to work for the town of Surfside, and | enjoy working with the town and
y'all (**).”

Mayor Samples: "(**) buddy, and a, let me give you this. This is just a token of our, our
appreciation. (Applause.) (**)

ii. Patrick Ryan = 5-year Anniversary.

Mayor. Samples: "l also have the honor.of a, not quite as long, not 20-years, but 5-years. He's
on hisway t0 20, Patrick Ryan, who also is with public works. (Applause.) Come on up, Patrick. One of
the reasons that a.the town is so pretty is because Patrick is out there working real hard to pick up the
sanitation. How you,doing, buddy? Come on up here. Thank you, Patrick. Thank you. (Applause.)
Who's thislittle fellow?

Mr. Ryan: “Little Patrick."

Mayor Samples: "Little Patrick. Your daddy is a good man. We're very, very proud of him.”

Mr. Ryan: “Thank you very much.”

Mayor Samples: "Appreciate it very much.”

Mr. Ryan: “I'li continue to work hard for the town (**.)"

Mayor Samples: "Thank you, Patrick. (**) Merry Christmas. God bless you. *

Mr. Ryan: “Thank you.”
Mayor Samples: "You know, it is the staff that, we either look good or look bad, because of the

work that the staff does, and a, we're very, very grateful to have top-notch people that work so hard for
the town, show a sense of pride in their work. So thank you. Appreciate it.”
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Regular Town Council Meeting
December 10, 2012

B. FY Ended June 30, 2012 Comprehensive Annual Finance Report Executive Summary,
Harper Poston & Moree, Mr. Bob Harper.

Mayor Samples; "And now, to something more sublime. We're gonna have the a fiscal year
ended June 30", 2012 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Executive Summary by Bob Harper
and Stacy Moree.”

Mr. Harper: “Isiton?”
Unknown Speaker: “Yeah.”

Mr. Harper: “We prepared the annual audit for y'all and the audit is a long document that | think
you've already been provided. Along with that audit, we did an executive summary. That summary will
highlight some of your financial information. Tonight | will'Briefly go through that information with you,
which is the smaller document. The first page of the documenit.references that we did, in fact, did your
audit, and you do, in fact, have a clean audit opinion, which i$ @ good audit opinien. There were no
exceptions to the audit (**.) On page 2 there's a statement'of net assets. It basically summarizes on a
true accrual basis of accounting total assets for the town. Those total assets show:that there are
$21,924,000 worth of assets in the town, consisting of cash, receivablés, capital assets, inventory items
and other assets. The town has liabilities of $1,993,000, primarily of account payables, as well as bond
and capital leases, and compensated absences. So, the town has net assets of $19,930,000, so net
assets are comprised of investment in capital assets, which are things like your buildings, your
equipment, (**.) There are $1,211,000 in restricted assets for things like toufism, public safety and street
improvements. Those are primary assets that are designate for specific purposes; things like
accommodations tax usage, (**.) The town has unrestricted assets of $2,976,000 so that your total
assets of $19,930,000. On page 3, page 3 is again a accrual accounting according to GASB34, which
takes into account everything that the.town does. Here you'll see that we had general revenues of
$5,940,000 that is your property taxes, local accommodations taxes, business licenses, franchise taxes,
hospitality taxes, unrestricted grants and contributions, and a little bit of gains on capital improvements
and other miscellaneous income items. You'have program revenues, charges for services of $1,921,000,
you have operating grants and contributions of $601,000, capital grants you received $518,000 for a total
program revenues of $3,041,000. Related expenses for those items are governmental activities, running
the town, $6,905,000, and business activities, your primary business are your sanitation department as
well as your pier. There you have $1,158,000 in expenditures. The town did, in fact, have a total
expenditures of $8,064,000. So you had a positive net change in assets of $917,000. The next page,
page 4, page 4 gives you an idea of your governmental funds, and the governmental funds again are
primary operating the town, not the enterprise type of funds. The revenue sources there total of
$7,380,000. Taxes and fees were part of it. Licenses and permits; fines and forfeitures;
intergovernmental; other révenues, and you can see the pie graph down there that the taxes and fees
represent 51-percent; licenges and permits 20-percent; fines 2.9-percent; intergovernmental 21.18-
percent; and other sources!of revenue three. Governmental funding type expenditures, I'm on page 5,
you can see here that we:have a total of $7,494,000 worth of expenditures. This breaks down the places
that you spend your money. The pie chart at the bottom shows that 33-percent goes to public safety;
general governmental 14-percent; debt service 6.9-percent; capital outlay 11-percent; non-departmental
3.79; cultural and recreation 4.62; maintenance 1.54; street 17-percent; grounds 3.51-percent; building
and zoning 3.3-percent. So that shows you what you do with your money after you receive it. The
following page, page 6, is your enterprise fund. Again, that's your sanitation and your pier fund. You see
that you did take in $1,536,000. The related expenditures with that are $1,154,000, so you had net
income for those activities of $383,000. That's a quick overview of the finances of the town. In the
course of doing your audit, we did not run across any situation that we had to bring before the
administration or council, irregularities or anything of that nature. The audit report itself is very detailed
and comprehensive. In the course of your review, if you have any questions and would like to follow back
up with us, we'd be more than glad to respond to you directly, and if you have any questions now, we'd
be glad to answer those questions.”

Mayor Samples: "Any questions? No questions?”
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Regular Town Council Meeting
December 10, 2012

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "l do have one. Finance is not my forte. Under government funds revenues a, we
have $7,380,140 and we spent $7,494,371, which meant we spent more than we took in. How do we,
how do we compensate for that? Is that a question | would-ask you, Mr. Harper?”

Mr. Harper: “That is, that is a question, that's a/)good question. Basically, when we talked about
$7 million, we have a shortage of $100 thousand. That's a, that's a relatively small percentage, but where
that money is really made up is in your sanitation department. You had a positive cash flow in that
sanitation department, so that's the primary source for where those funds were made up. Any other
questions?”

Mayor Samples: "Yeah, |, | do have one just as a, a matter of, an opinion, you know, just kind a
like you'd express an opinion. | noted in the pie chart on expenditures for governmental funds...”

Mr. Harper: “Yep.”

Mayor Samples: "...a the smallest area that in the past year that we, the town spent money on is
a 1.54-percent for maintenance, and | don’'t know!if you can answer the question, but that just seems like
a real small amount of money given that the town's, assets, which you covered earlier, | think were up to
about $19 million, $20 million in assets, which a lot of those assets, of course, were fixed assets that just
seems to me would require some degree of maintenance and, and so, what do you think about 1.4-
percent. |s that something that we wantitodo a...”

Mr. Harper: “That clearly is a very small percentage; so that would be something that you could
project going.forward (**) where you may invest more money in the improvements of those types of
capital assets that you have. There’s no question about that. There would be some normal type of
maintenance that actually is absorbed in those funds, but the specific answer is that is a total ratio and
that waould'be something that you might want teireally consider going forward (**) maintenance and basic
improvements of your capital assets and that is something that would prolong its life and is a good
management responsibility (**).”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Thank you. Any other questions or comments for Mr. Poston?
[sic] Thank you, sir."[| appreciate it. I'm sure if, if members of, | would encourage members to take a look
at the detailed document. . There's a lot more information in there, and I'm certain that if you do, that that
will raise other questions and | know that they would be happy to provide additional information for
clarification purposes.”

Mr. Harper: “Ourinformation to get in touch with us in on these letter heads so you can get in
touch us. We will be more than glad to respond to any guestions specifically you might have, and we
thank y'all very much.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you, sir. Have a Merry Christmas.”
Mr. Harper: “Thank you.”

C. Keep Surfside Beach Beautiful Committee Recommendation — Adopt-a-Beach Program,
Mr. Ralph Magliette.

Mayor Samples: "The next item on the agenda is a recommendation from the Keep Surfside

Beach Beautiful Committee. It is the Adopt-a-Beach program, and Mr. Ralph Magliette is gonna make a
short presentation, and we welcome, we welcome you here, Ralph.”
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Regular Town Council Meeting
December 10, 2012

Mr. Magliette: “Very briefly, we are seeking to do a partnership with the South Carolina
Department of Housing and Environmental Controls Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management
who has recognized the need and desirability of litter free beaches. So what we're asking the council for
is approval for the Keep Surfside Beach Beautification Committee to enter into a partnership agreement
with them, and the requirement is a, from the State is that the beach area that is adopted be cleaned
twice a year. However, given the beauty of our beach and that we're a tourist location, we get a lot of
rate-ables [sic] from that the decision was made in talking with people and getting some initial
agreements from volunteers that we really could do that on.a monthly basis, so the goal of this a, a
volunteers for the Adopt-a-Beach would be to on a monthly basis do a beach cleanup. | brought forward
about a month ago the actual forms, there’s an actual Adopt-a-Beach.Cleanup form, which gives different
types of wastes that are, that can be put into different specific categoriés and then there’s a South
Carolina website where the data is a basically sent to and the way we have envisioned it with volunteers
is we have it broken up into basically specific bits going fram 16" Avenue North down to 16™ Avenue
South which people can, volunteers can take one, two, three sections, and currently we have about 40-
percent of these (**) locations adopted. The critical part of the:Adopt-a-Beach program and probably the
most difficult part to do will be the beach accesses, because that.seems to have the most amount of litter,
and that would mean you have a parking, walking into the parking area, up the stairs, and over the dune,
if it's a small area, again, you have the same problem going up over the stairway and then along the sand
to the beach. That seems to be the area where you'll find the most'amount of, of a litter, cigarette butts,
those types of things, and that's also the most difficult type of little to pick.up, because really you have to
basically bend, bend over and pick it up with your hand. ¥You can’t use the g, the sand machinery that's
used for the large areas on those small areas. It's basically samething that has to be done manually, so
the hope is that council will see fit to approve this program, and a give our chairman, Jim Toney, approval
to enter into an agreement with the state to,do this and to allow us.to a post for Volunteers to complete the
sections we don’t have any volunteers currently. The good thing@about this program is that there's no
requirement of town funds. There’s no town labor required. There's no staff required. This is gonna be a
hundred percent volunteer effortiin conjunction with the Surfside Beach beautification committee, and the
hope is that throughithe business committee and the beautification business subcommittee that we will
have buy-ins for local businesses to hopefully adopt 1* Avenue North, Surfside Pier, and 1% Avenue
South have adopted by local businesses as that seems to be the highest conceritration of litter during the
summer areas. So, hopefully, we will be able to get most of the area adopted, and then once that's done,
we will present the complete application to the state and once we get approval we'll start our monthly
cleanup efforts and hopefully, in'six months and one year we'll be able to see a trend line to see what
kind of garbage we pick up and what'the duration of it is. You know, what areas are hot spots. What
areas are relatively clean, and what Kind of spike we, versus the tourists versus non-tourists areas.
There's a lot of good data to be gleaned over time, and hopefully, that information will help us with any
anti-litter campaign. “Thank you.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you, sir. Comments, questions? Questions or comments? Ms. Mabry.”

Ms. Mabry: "I just want thank you (**.) Thank you so much for bringing this to council. It's a, to
me, it's a great idea. It really shows that you're going a long way with the committee and thank you so
much for the presentation."

Mr. Magliette: “Thank you very much. All done?”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you, sir. Appreciate it very much.”

Mr. Magliette: “Merry Christmas, happy holidays. God bless you all.”

Mayor Samples: "Likewise. Thank you.”

D. Proclamations.
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Regular Town Council Meeting
December 10, 2012

Mayor Samples: "We've got a couple of proclamations. This says public works director Adair.
I'm seeing shaking his head, so I'm gonna have Ms. Herrmann read the proclamation for Arbor Day. Now
he's smiling. He's not shaking his head.”

i. #12-77 Arbor Day, Public Works Director Adair.

Ms. Herrmann: “Don’t worry, I'll get you. Arbor Day Proclamation this is Proclamation 12-77.”

Whereas, in 1872 J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture that
a special day be set aside for the planting of trees; and the holiday called Arbor Day was
first observed with the planting of more than a million trees in Nebraska; Arbor Day is
now observed throughout the national and the world; and trees can reduce the erosion of
our precious topsoils by wind and water, lower our heating and cooling costs, moderate
the temperature, clean the air, produce oxygen and provide habitat for wildlife; trees are a
renewable resource giving us paper, wood for.our homes, fuel for our fires and countless
other wood products; trees in our town increase property values, enhance the economic
vitality of business areas, and beautify our community; trees, wherever they are planted,
are a source of joy and spiritual renewal. Now, therefore, |, Dou%;las E. Samples, mayor
of the Town of Surfside Beach, do hereby proclaim December 7™, 2012 as Arbor Day in
the Town of Surfside Beach, and | urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support
efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and | further urge all citizens to plant and care
for trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being of this and future generations.
It's dated this 28" day of November, 2012.

ii. #12-78 Congratulations Walter Spall, Retirement from US Coast Guard Auxiliary.
Mayor Samples: "Thank you.. | guess we might as well'go into the next proclamation, correct?”
Ms. Herrmann: “As you wish.”

Mayor Samples: "l wish.”

Ms. Herrmann: “Okay. This is Proclamation 12-78. It's congratulations to Walter Spall who
retired after 30 years of service to'the United States Coast Guard Auxiliary.”

Whereas, Walter Spall is retiring after 30 long and fruitful years in the United States
Coast Guard Auxiliary; and held a myriad of appointed and elected offices in the
Auxiliary, including at the Flotilla Level finance, public education, material, marine safety,
and operations; and whereas, Walter Spall was appointed the Division Staff Officer for
Information Systems and Public Education, and in 1995, was elected Flotilla Commander
of Flotilla 10-2 in' Allentown, Pennsylvania, and also patrolled out of Sea Isle City in the
Cape May area of the New Jersey shore; and over the years Walter Spall qualified as
aids verifier, instructor, vessel examiner, coxswain, qualification examiner, and also
earned the right to wear the coveted Operational Auxiliarist Program (AUXOP) device;
whereas, Walter Spall retired and moved to Surfside Beach, South Carolina, and
transferred his service to Flotilla 12-10 in Georgetown, South Carolina, continuing to
actively serve in officer positions and on patrol; and more importantly, gaining
appointment as Detachment Leader of the effort to establish a new Flotilla on the Grand
Strand, and in 2010 being elected the first Flotilla Commander of Flotilla 12-04 allowing
him to steer the Flotilla through its first formative year. Now, therefore, |, Douglas F.
Samples, mayor of the Town of Surfside Beach, hereby congratulate Walter Spall on his
successful completion of 30 years of service to the United States Coast Guard Auxiliary,
and on behalf of the Town of Surfside Beach, its citizens and visitors, all of whom enjoy
the beautiful beaches and Atlantic Ocean that is patrolled, protected, and guarded by the
Coast Guard and its Auxiliary services, hereby offer congratulations to Walter Spall as he
embarks on retirement. Be it so proclaimed this 30" day of November 2012.
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Ms. Herrmann: “It's signed Mayor Samples.”
Mayor Samples: "Thank you.”

E. Department Reports

Mayor Samples: “Moving right along to department reports. Planning, building and zoning,
Sabrina Morris.”

i. Planning, Building, & Zoning.

Ms. Morris: “Good evening, Mayor and Council. " Staff issued a total of 98 permits in the month of
November, We performed 108 inspections, and nine sets of plans/were reviewed. We had two new
residential permits issued; one on South Beach Drive and the ether on South Paimetto Way. Two plans
reviews for commercial, for commercial projects were submitted.. One was the Waffle House that will be
located on 17 North beside Dagwood’s and DeFalco’s added an addition to the rear.of its existing garage.
(**) We received a total of 38 complaints in November from building without permits, nuisances,
structures, structures in need of repair, and general property maintenance issues. We have notified the
property owners of the violations, and will conductfollow-up inspections to ensure the violations are
resolved. |think you have a full report, so if you have any questions, I'll beiglad to answer those.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Any questions? Have a Merry Christmas. Moving right along,
police report, Chief Keziah, Interim Chief Keziah.”

Clerk’s Note: The written reportis on file.
ii. Police.

Chief Keziah: "Good evening citizens, Mayor and Council. This month was a very good month
for us. Our calls for service were actually down for the first month in a while. We'went down 11-percent.
It gave us a little bit of time to, toiactually do some building renovations in our building; to paint the
department.We put some sweat equity, which | found out that I'm not a painter by trade. | think | put one
gallonion the wall;;and my wife says'l put one gallon on my pants, so, but we have been busy getting
those renovations done. Our arrests for this month were up 20-percent from last month, a correction,
from last year, this month last year. It was up 20-percent. On our personnel actions, Matt Harper, who is
the police officer that we hired that | told you about last month, he’s completed his full field training
program and he's released to full duty' now, so we've got an extra police officer on the streets. Also,
Nicole Solorzano, who was. one of our dispatchers has recently been transferred to a police officer slot,
and I'm taking her to the academy in Columbia tomorrow for her registration, so she’ll go to the academy,
hopefully, January, it might'be Eebruary before the slot is available there. But we’re pushing for January
to get her out before BikeiWeek hits. So, it's exciting; we're excited for her. The, a, interviews for the
open police officer slots and the communications officer slot are being held Thursday and Friday of this
week. We've got interviews planned most of both days for those positions. We did do a corporal process
and at the end of the process promoted patrolman Brian Clark to the rank of corporal. His first day as a
supervisor was today, so | think his sleeves are a little bit longer with the, with the stripes on them now.
He's gonna do a great job. | think most of you know Brian from the beach. He's been the beach patrol
for the last couple of years in the truck. During November we did three community outreach events. We
also conducted the 5 and 10K Turkey Trots when 13 officers came in on Thanksgiving morning, direct
traffic and worked the event. It actually was lovely weather and | think it went real well. We also had two
officers that participated in the public service commercial shoot that targets under aged drinking. You'll
probably see the commercial running over the holiday season on some local TV stations, and the last
thing | want to bring to your attention is the a trespassing program that we actually came up with draft
proposal that will be delivered to the administrator for a legal review. This is the same type program that
Myrtle Beach uses where the police can assist property owners who are not in town or are not on the
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property, which enforces the trespass laws. It will take a change in the ordinance so that's one that the
administrator will review. Other than that, does anyone have any questions? You have a full report.”

Mayor Samples: "Any comments or questions? Ms. Kohimann.”

Ms. Kohimann: "l just have a comment. Be afraid the trespass program is being prevented and |
did want to say congratulations to Nicole being a female police officer, and I think it's great for the town.”

Chief Keziah: “Thank you. I'm not sure her husband thinks so, yet, so, but a, we'll bring him
around. Thank you for your support and hope everybody has a safe holiday.and a Merry Christmas.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you, Rodney. Appreciate it very, very much.”
Clerk’s Note: The written report is on file.

iii. Fire.

Mayor Samples: "Moving right along, we have a fire report.”

Ms. Fellner: “Thank you, and | guess something came up and he was not able to make it over
here.”

Mayor Samples: "Well, we have a, we, we have the written report. ‘Is there...”

Ms. Fellner: “Right, and a, for the public’s, I'lljust say that there were 47 incidents, 35 of which
were medical emergencies, and there were 16 fire inspections completed, public education events there
were three, and six preplans were done. During the month of November all members attended three
Monday night drills; live.burns at the Murrells Inlet fire department training grounds, and also participated
in a company.drill'on Saturday, November 10". All of the required 1SO drills were conducted to the
requirements as set forth by the Insurance Service Organization, and Monday, November 19" all
members of.the department underwent their physicals that are administered once'a year, and a, they all
passed with the exception of one firefighter who had to go, who had to return to the doctor in the following
week, and did s, and has been given a clean bill.of health and the last thing | wanted to mention is Chief
Packard may be able to return to light duty on February 20", That is the latest word we have on his

surgery.”
Clerk’s Note: The written report is on file.
F. Administrator’s Report— Update on Current Events.
Mayor Samples: "Moving right along; the administrator’s report.”

Ms. Fellner: “Very short tonight. There's just two items. The coyotes; our contract with Alpha
Predator Removal service is expired without any successful captures. After investigating the area, they
believe the coyotes have moved. They say that the cubs probably got big enough and there was so
much human activity within the area that they decided to leave. A dollar figure for our expenditures to
date is $3,589, and we have not received any notification from the public recently regarding sightings of
the creatures. So, at this point and since there’s, since coyotes generally are seen mostly in the summer
when they have pups, they’'re much more active, and prone to interface with the public at that time, a, we
may not want to proceed at this time. If council does wish me to proceed in the hiring of a contractor, |
would need my authorization limit increased, because my limit is $5,000, and most of the other
contractors to even start are $2,000. So that's where we are with the coyotes.”

Mayor Samples: "What are the druthers of council? Any comment? Councilman Smith.”
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Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, | think we've done enough and that since the public has not said anything
about additional coyotes, | think we should terminate it at this point.”

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "I, | would also say that we should terminate it at this point. | think they’'ve gone
elsewhere. | do see (**) out on the highway, but (**) | think they’re gone too. Thanks.”

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Kohimann.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "| agree we should terminate it, especially there’s.ne community here to say
whether it worked or not or if they see them or not actually.”

Mayor Samples: "Well, | agree with that, but | would like to have a failback position in the event
this returns to us...:

Ms. Fellner: “Absolutely.”

Mayor Samples: ".., and by that | mean there's gotta be some, some more drastic action that is
allowable. | don’t know what DHEC [sic] says, a, a; DNR, Department of:National, Natural Resources.
Let's find out. Okay. The methods that we used were clearly, didn’t arrive at the outcome that, that |
think we were striving for, and I'm glad they're gone, but | got a feeling they'll be back.”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: “lihave a friend who's\an outdoorsmanwhe recommended a group of people, we
were mentioned, but it could be citizens or whoever, walk through the area where they’re usually seen
and as a group (**) that will drive'them out, and usually they (**) so that might be a cost free way of doing
something before we get into doing anymore.”

Mayor Samples: "Well, 'm gonna, I'm ganna remind you of that when the people come back
and, and a, when they come back about the coyetes, okay. It's a good idea.”

Mr. Stevens: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayor Samples: "Mr. Stevens.”

Mr. Stevens: "l have some friends with, with Winyah Bay Archery Club out of Georgetown, and a,
| know that sometimes you have to take drastic measures, but these are experienced hunters, bow
hunters, no guns, and if they do show up, that may be your best bet to get rid of them once and for all.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Alright, anything else for the administrator, or...”

Ms. Fellner: “Yes, just one last thing. The pier enhancement bid, last Thursday | sent council a
copy of the proposed bid packet for the pier enhancements, and if there are no changes, staff would like
to proceed with posting the bid.”

Mayor Samples: "I, | don’t know if everybody’s had a chance to review it. | know | have. |, |
reviewed it and | certainly think we do need to proceed. Are there any objections to proceeding with the
request for proposals? Thanks, so you have approval.”

7. BUSINESS.
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Mayor Samples: "Moving right along, we are now entering the business section, and | believe
that a Mr. Stevens you, you have something that you wanted to say.”

Mr. Stevens: "Mr. Mayor, the business committee met on Thursday, December 6", and they
overwhelmingly supported and passed and approved Ordinance 12-0729 Overlay, so at this, with the a
full support of the business committee at this time | would like to make a motion to reconsider the motion
to defer Ordinance 12-0729 and move it to January, the second [sic] meeting in January.”

Mayor Samples: "There is a motion to reconsider the motion which was adopted which was to
defer that ordinance until the second meeting of January, and so if | understand your motion to
reconsider, it is to do it earlier? To bring it back sooner?’

Mr. Stevens: "Yes, that's correct.”

Mayor Samples: "There's a motion on the floor.”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.

Ms. Dodge: "l would second that motion. That sounds like a, 2 goed move.”

Mayor Samples: "There’s a motion; there's a second. Any discussion? Just for clarification
purposes, then a does that mean that this will be on the next regular meeting's agenda?”

Mr. Stevens: "Mr. Vote, Mr. Mayeor, point of @, erder. We have to a vote on'the motion to
reconsider first, and then we'll go to a second motion.”

Mayor Samples: "l,.| stand corrécted. Any other discussion? All in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye."

Mayor S8amples: "Hearing none, the motion to reconsider is approved.”

Mr. Stevens: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayor Samples:. "Mr. Stevens”

Mr. Stevens: "Ifl may, | would like to make a motion to place Ordinance 12-0729 the town
overlay on the first meeting January 8" council meeting as the first item in the business for consideration
for second reading.”

Mayor Samples: "Just for clarification purposes, there is a motion, but before we proceed to a
second, is that the proper way to handle a motion to reconsider? So you can substitute a motion after the
motion, after the motion, after the motion to reconsider is approved.”

Ms. Herrmann: “The council, excuse me, Mr. Mayor, you want me to continue?”

Mayor Samples: "l do.”

Ms. Herrmann: “The council has to agree to reconsider the question. Now that council has
agreed to reconsider the question, a new motion to offered determining the course of action for the

business item.”

Mayor Samples: "Very good. Want to state, restate the motion or you want to read the motion?”
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Mr. Stevens: "The motion is to bring Ordinance 12-0729 to the next council meeting on January
8" and put it on in the business section for A and for second reading.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. There is a motion.”

Mr. Smith: "Second.”

Mayor Samples: "Any discussion. All in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Opposed? Hearing none the motion is adopted.”

A. Second Reading Ordinance #12-0727 to amend §9-16 Decals and Exemptions for
Parking Decals, Councilmember Kohimann.

Mayor Samples: "Alright, the first regular business item would be the second reading of
Ordinance 12-0727 to amend Section 9-16, decals and exemptions for parking decals. This is second
reading. Can | get a motion?”

Mr. Stevens: "Mr. Mayor, I'd like to make a motion that we adopt second reading of Ordinance
12-0727."

Mayor Samples: "There is a motion.”
Mr. Smith: "Second.”

Mayor Samples: "Any discussion? Clarification, in the ordinance itself it talks about nonresident,
section a, we require proofiit says verification of proof of residential property ownership. Do we require
the same proof with respect to,the golf carts, .the vehicles? That's a question.”

Ms. Kohimann: "Ask that again.”

MayorSamples: "Well, the change to the erdinance, which is in green, it says decals issued for
full time residents and non-resident residential property owner vehicles, including golf carts. All persons
residing or. owning residential propertyiwithin the corporate limits of the town shall be entitled to one free
decal perivehicle to beissued by the town upon verification of current vehicle registration or verification of
proof of residential property ownership, and | guess what | want to say is that | presume that that means
when we verify their vehicle registration, that in fact that vehicle is registered in the town, but we don’t say
that.”

Ms. Kohimann: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Kohlmann,”

Ms. Kohimann: "It would be done the same way it's done currently. We give out stickers to, they
pay currently for parking stickers, so it would be the same format that's already in place. It’s already
being done.”

Mayor Samples: "What verification of proof of residential property ownership are you expecting
to see?”

Ms. Kohlmann: "The same one that we are currently using, which that would be up to staff does
that | don’t know exactly what they do like when you go up to get your anything through the town, you
have to present what it is they're asking you for then.”
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Mayor Samples: "Right now they don’t require proof or verification of property ownership.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "For the parking sticker.”

Mayor Samples: "No.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "For the parking sticker..."

(Two speaking at once.)

Mayor Samples: "What, what they require, what they require now:is, is they require a vehicle
registration that shows that the vehicle is registered in the Town of Surfside Beach, which is separate
than and different from and distinct from property ownership. | don’'t have a,problem adopting it. | just

want when, when staff goes to implement it, | guess they’ll know what we mean.”

Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, I'd like to offer a suggestion, then. The verification of proof of residential
property ownership would be their tax notice with their names on it; and that should .correspond to their
vehicle registration, have the same names.”

Mayor Samples: "So, you're adding that to the ordinance, orjust:..”
Mr. Smith: "No, sir. That's just a clarification.”

Mayor Samples: "For the record, and we are taking verbatim? \We'll decide that later then, okay.
For the record, | would like Mr. Smith’s comments recorded verbatim. Okay, thank you. All in favor, say
aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”
Mayor Samples: "Opposed?”

B. Second Reading Ordinance #12-0732 to amend §9-7 No Parking Places,
Councilimember Kohimann.

Mayor Samples: "Moving right along, this also second reading to amend no parking, this is
section, let. me getit right, this is Ordinance 12-0732 to amend Section 9-7 no parking spaces. |f | could, |
would like, would you like to make a motion to suspend the rules so we can have some discussion?”

Ms. Mabry: "l meve we suspend the rules.”

Mayor Samples: "Thereis a motion.”

Mr. Smith: "Second.”

Mayor Samples: "There is a second. Allin, Mr. Smith, all in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Opposed? Will you defer to me? This, this ordinance is also up for second
reading, and I'm not certain if, if it's been well thought out. This ordinance, a, is not clear to me what the
intentis. The intent is to eliminate parking on Ocean Boulevard. It does that. It eliminates parking on
Ocean Boulevard for all practical purposes. The part that bothers me in, in the way the ordinance is
written, well, many things bother me in the way it's written. But, it doesn't say R-3. It doesn’t say Ocean
Boulevard. It doesn’'t say C-3. So, it's applicable throughout the town. Now, just for the record, and |

don’t think Ms. Dodge will mind me clarifying, there were comments made at the last meeting and the
record will show that it was stated that South Carolina law prohibits parking 10-feet within a driveway.
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Well, that just isn't so. South Carolina law does not do that. The reason that | bring it up, because if you
live in R-1, or you live in R-2, or you live in R-3, wherever you live, you're parked in a right-of-way in front
of your own house or a friend of your is, and they’re within 10-feet of your driveway, technically, this
ordinance passes, it's illegal. Now, we're either gonna enforce the laws as written or we better start
writing them as we intend them. That’s a technical part. The fact of the matter is this is bad for business
in the Town of Surfside Beach. Like it or not, we're a beach town. We're not a gated community. People
have been parking on Ocean Boulevard forever, and this is a backdoor attempt... 10 feet of driveways,
10-feet or 5-feet of rights-of-way, 10-feet, 10-feet of rights-of-way...I'm sorry, of driveways, beach
accesses, which it was determined we have 32 of. | would ask a simple question, how, does anybody
know how many parking spaces this is gonna eliminate on Ocean Boulevard?”

Ms. Kohlmann: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Kohimann.”

Ms. Kohimann: "I do believe an extensive report was given by the parking committee. It was
very extensive with a whole listing of the 89 spaces that they couldifree up for additional parking on
Ocean Boulevard. In addition to that...”

Mayor Samples: "(**) ... are you answering the question? There're 89.”

(Two speaking at once.)

Ms. Kohlmann: "(**)...exactly how many spots. There's not really technically legal spots as it is
now, because there’s no parking signs at every single beach walk, and people park there. So there are, it

says no parking right on every single beach access.”

Mayor Samples: "It says no'parking at the beach access, and | believe that means in front of the
beach access. There is no.10-feet requirement at this point.in time.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "Okay, then it's within, 20-feet of a crosswalk by state law.” So, every beach
access technically, | mean if you're looking at, I'm, just let me finish, Mr. Mayor, if you're locking at state
law, which | 'believe you're all gonna go there shortly, technically 20-feet from every crosswalk, and if
you're telling them,to, to apply the rules the way the rules should be, then you're losing even more
because 20-feet from each crosswalk. I'm looking at 10-feet.”

Mayor Samples:. "But, we're talking about 30-feet from the intersection, and in fact, the way the,
in fact the way that the public works department has drawn the yellow line, because of line of sight issues,
| getit. | getthat, okay. | get that from a safety standpoint. What | don’t get, speaking plainly, are these
other additional eliminated parking. | just don’t get it.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "May. I offer a solution, Mr. Mayor?”

Mayor Samples: "Yes.”

Ms. Kohlmann: “Okay (**)

Mayor Samples: "Was that something submitted to the council or is that...?"

Ms. Kohimann: "No, it's just pictures that | took..."

Mayor Samples: "Is that something new tonight?”

Ms. Kohlmann: "l just did it in the last hour before the meeting. Just pictures for reference just so
you can see what I'm trying to explain. | just want to explain myself. If you don't want to accept, fine.”
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Mayor Samples: "l want to see them. I'd like to see them in time to consider them. (**) second
reading.”

(Two speaking at once.)

Ms. Kohimann: "(**) Well, this has been going on forever and ever, and | think that we've all
decided compromise is really important in town, and just because there’s an issue that nobody can seem
to come up with anything doesn't mean that we don't address it, even if it's just a little tiny thing, and if it
doesn't work, we go back and we don't do it or we change it'again. But, just saying we have a problem
and then not doing anything about it over and over each time new people come up here, | don't, | don’t
think it's really helping, but what this is, is there are locations and | would like, actually like the council to
consider a consensus to have staff go along maybe with John Adair or whoever to look at these locations.
Now these locations here are all locations along Ocean Boulevard and'l, | feund 52 parking spaces, and
there’s no parking signs there, but when | asked who put those nosparking'signs up, and well logically (**),
nobody seems to know. There were put up there by prior administration, even three years ago in the
minutes you said you didn’'t know who put them up there. They were there and you don’'t know who put
them there...”

Mayor Samples: "That's right. | still don't.”
Ms. Kohimann: "...Okay..."
Mayor Samples: "l still don't know who authorized them.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "And if you look there's evenione that stands out a lot between 8" and 9"
Avenue South right on Ocean Boulevard. It's the safest place on Ocean Boulevard for our beach goers to
park. There’s at least seven spots there, and there’s no parking signs there, and on the west side of
Ocean Boulevardiit'sisafe and | think that when you’re looking at the 10-feet from driveways, this isn’t
about eliminating parking because Ocean Boulevard has plenty of parking on both sides, even when you
incorporateithis, and Ocean Boulevard has never been to the point that there’s net a spot to be had on
Ocean Boulevard from beach goers except during 4™ of July. So you're not really telling people they can't
park there. It's a safety issue.”

Mayor'Samples: "How many. parking spaces will remain on Ocean Boulevard if this ordinance is
adopted as is? Do you know?”

Ms. Kohlmann: \"Well, if you re [sic,] if you would have staff review these 52 spots that are now
taking with no parking signs that were just put up there by somebody and arbitrarily posted, then | don’t
think we're having a problem. We're giving you more than we're taking away. | don't know the exact
number of the beach access, because | don't believe that it is anything, because it's already 20-feet from
a crosswalk. | don't think we're taking anything away from the beach accesses.”

Mayor Samples: “Any other comments?”

Ms. Mabry: "Alright, I'm not gonna get emotional, because it's just about the facts. State law
states you cannot park within 30-feet of a signal light, stop sign, flashing beacon, or (**) the roadway. It
does not say within 30-feet of all intersections, and we’re gonna have to be very careful about
implementing laws that are only good for the Town of Surfside Beach. Nobody else in South Carolina has
these rules. How are they possibly gonna know, and how is the police department gonna enforce this
when we are making up laws that don’t even apply to South Carolina? | think that could be ambiguous at
best. Then on number 4 it says in front of a driveway. Well, this is what the law says. You cannot park in
front of a driveway or near enough to hinder the driveway use by others. It has no other meaning. That's
state law. So, if you and | decide that that's what we know, that's what we've been taught, and | did talk
to Columbia, they told me where to get this in writing. How are we gonna enforce it if it’s, in fact, 10-feet
from the driveway? Who's gonna know? Nobody, and then we have on number 5, who determines
property owner? It says that any private property without consent of owner. That is, and | think the intent
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was a good intent the way | read it, so that if you push people off of the Ocean Boulevard you don't want
them parking into the residential area. However, how are our policemen possibly gonna know who's a
property owner, who's a renter, who's a visitor, who came into town? My brothers come here from
Virginia, Florida, and North Carolina. | park in their yard. | have permission. If you rent, you have implied
permission from the owner, so it is impossible to enforce the biggest part of this ordinance. If you want to
remove parking from Ocean Boulevard, the best thing to simply say is we want to remove it. It's gonna
be plain and simple. It's gonna be easily enforced. We just put up the right signage. I'm not for it. |
probably would never vote for it, because of our parking situation, although | do love the idea in my heart.
I just don’t know that it's a practical idea. We have to go by, we cannot just arbitrarily come up here and
make laws that are not enforceable, and this goes throughout the entire town, It does not address Ocean
Boulevard separately. It is through the entire town, and there you're gonna spot, well, really didn’t mean it
for R-1, but | kind a mean it for R-3, but we’re not gonna enforce it there. When you make an ordinance,
you better be ready to enforce that whole ordinance to the full extent of the law. | think it needs to go
back. | think the intent needs to come back to council exactly what you mean to do. Do it openly, do it
honestly, and let’s just get it done, and | think as a, a, talk to the police department. Talk to the attorneys,
and let's get it done the proper way.”

Mayor Samples:; "Mr. Smith.”

Mr. Smith: "I think that this wording is okay the way it is. Item 1,2, 3, 5, and 6 Were in the
ordinance. The change was made, this was the previous wording: any place where vehicles would block
the use of a driveway or parking lot. These are the words that.were added in place of that sentence:
within 10-feet of a beach access, driveway, or entrance and exit to a parking lot. Now the reason we did
that, at least we want to do that, is because that's the safety issue. When you're coming out of a beach
access or a driveway and somebody is parked close to the driveway, the visibility is reduced. It's
impossible to get it precise like some folks want it, but this is a good attempt. You know, a lot of people in
town who would like no parking on Ocean Boulevard, but:if we did that, those spaces mentioned by
Councilman [sic].Kehlmann would not be available. So where there is availability, | think we should allow
them to park on Ocean Boulevard, and where there is not availability, like within 10-feet of a driveway, we
need to stop them, and as farall over town, | know next to my driveway, | wouldn't want somebody being
within 10-feet of my driveway, if they're parked on the right-of-way, and so, | think'it's, will be applied
evenly by our police. | think that they are intelligent, and responsible. They do a good job of protecting
our town, and | think that they'll have the where with all to enforce this ordinance properly. This is a good
change to the ordinance. A lot of people have been working a long time, not just this council, but
previous council's have been trying to:do something. Fortunately now we have people that are interested
in moving forward on this. We've got the parking committee that made the recommendation, and | think
it's time to move forward."

Mayor Samples: "Thank you."
Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge."

Ms. Dodge: "First of all, | made the comment at a meeting that there was a state law which said
there was, there was a prohibition of 10-feet from a driveway. | was mistaken. | told the mayor | was
mistaken, but the 10-feet is a safety issue for somebody backing out of a driveway. You cannot see.
Ocean Boulevard is an absolute mess. | was gonna say something really awful, cluster, but it's a mess.
In the summertime and people are at risk, and if we pass this ordinance and it is applicable all over town,
that's a good thing. We want people to come here to go to our parking lots. That's why we built them,
and if we're going to skirt the issue, then we're going to continue to have empty parking lots except on the
4" of July, maybe, unless somebody can find somebody’s yard to park in, but | think this is a good
regulation. | think it's well written, and | certainly would be for it.”

Mayor Samples: "I, | have one last comment, because it is a bad, in my judgment, and we'll just
have to agree to disagree. [ think it's inappropriate to apply this throughout the town. | don't think, | think
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what we're doing is, a, we're using a hammer to solve a particular issue that a small group of people
have. The fact of the matter is that for 12 weeks out of the year we want Ocean Boulevard full. It's what
keeps your taxes low. It's what brings people to town. |, | see people shaking their head. They don't
know the numbers. | asked the, the question | asked a little while ago, how many parking spaces will
remain on Ocean Boulevard. No one knows the answer to that. No one wants to know the answer to
that, because in fact it is a back door attempt to eliminate parking on Ocean Boulevard.”

Ms. Mabry: "l just have one question, and if the interim chief can answer this, how can you ticket
someone that does not have any knowledge of that law, and since it's not South Carolina law, how can
we go up and ticket someone that has no idea that they're parking illegally, unless we're willing to put no
parking signs every 10-feet of every single driveway. Now, if you're'willing'to do that, and | think that'd
look a little bit worse than the cars do, but if you're willingito do that, fine, but nobody knows this law
exists except the people in this room tonight, and we expect all of ourvisitors, and | know what's gonna
happen, somebody’s gonna stand right up at the podium and,say,well | drove down Surfside Drive or |
rode down Ocean Boulevard and there're cars parked everywhere, and they're not being ticketed, and
they won’t have a clue that they’re even parking illegally, and ljust want to know how we can burden our
police department and ask them to do something that's really and truly a made-up law here tonight.”

Ms. Kohimann: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Kohlmann.”

Ms. Kohimann: "Well, | had discussion with Chief Keziah, and'a, I, first.'m offended that you
think it's a back door deal. | don't think that's a fair thing to say, because a lot'of work was done on this
by other people and myself, so | take offense to that. But, we'll just move along, and it is done in many
places, some places are 5-feet from driveways, some are 10, and some are 15 depending upon what
state you look at or town, and (**) the,fact that you saying,it would be a selected enforcement, well, Town
of Surfside Beachralready does selective enforcement. They. do it with fireworks, they do it with smoking
on the beach, they'do with golf carts. This is falling right into the line of what Surfside Beach does, and
it's not, it should not be looked at the way you're looking at it. It should be a tool. It's just simply another
tool for the police officers, because there are people in this town that have a problem getting in and out of
driveways, and they’re, and it's, and it's a constant battle for some of them. | don't think that this is gonna
be the police officers are gonna go out there and start ticketing everybody. They don’t do that now with
the regulations. We don't want torun tourists off. That's not what this is about. This is about an older
person has a car parked there every single day, the same car, and all he can say is call the police and
ask them to send the officer and just ask the people to move the car. If they don’t move the car, then they
have a tool now, thetool. is they ticketit. | don’'t see anything wrong with this. | think people are reading
way too much into it and it's safety more than it is anything else.”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor Samples: Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "l agree with Ms. Kohlmann, and | resent this being called a backdoor effort to do
anything. | don’t go in the backdoor. | go to the front door and | speak out, and that's what we are doing
with this.”

Mayor Samples: "Well, | appreciate the way you feel, and, and | understand you feeling that way.
Rest assured, | really believe what I'm saying also, because the fact is, is that there's been talk about
eliminating parking on Ocean Boulevard for a number of administrations. I, | know, | served. | was
against it then. I'm against it now. | still believe this is a backdoor attempt to eliminate parking on Ocean
Boulevard. But, we'll find out, folks, understand, we're gonna vote, understand. In the peak of the
season, we will have the opportunity to review what it is we have done. Any other discussion?”

Mr. Stevens: "Mr. Mayor."
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Mayor Samples: "Mr. Stevens.”

Mr. Stevens: "l support this law. | think it's a good thing. | have been in the Myrtle Beach, and
Myrtle Beach is basically ellmlnated parking on Ocean Boulevard from 27" Avenue or 29" Avenue South
all the way up to about 29" Avenue North. So, they have done it. It didn’t hurt their business. They still
have plenty of people, plenty of tourists. | don't think it's gonna affect anybody. Riding back from church
on Sunday, | did notice that there was a fire hydrant right next to a beach access. Rode down next to one
of the other, our fellow councilmen asked me to look at the.area down on 1% Avenue and 2™ Avenue at
the fire hyd [sic,] hydrant right next to the beach access. /| saw a lot,of beach accesses within 5- to 8-feet
of a driveway. So if you park there, you're gone [sic] block a driveway. | rode all the way down the
boulevard to Melody Lane and | saw many places where cars just can't park, and if they’re parking there,
then they’re also parking on the sidewalk as well. | would say also thatl, | noticed that the fellows
working and putting trees out, and they're blocking the part.where parking would be. If we do something
like put bushes and trees up and down the Ocean Boulevard that will, we don t have to put signs, and |
was looking at the pictures here, and I've walked by, this picture right here, 1% Avenue North between
Ocean and Dogwood at least two to three hundred times since I've been in, in'town, and it says no
parking between signs, and | also often wondered why, where these signs came from, but it says at any
place where official signs prohibit parking, you can’t park there. Got to do something about parking, and |
think this is the right step in the right direction. Thank you.”

Mayor Samples: "All in favor say aye.”
Unknown Speakers: “Aye.”
Mayor Samples: "Oh, I'm sorry, we have a motion, you're right. Good, good. There is a motion

to come in under the rules?” (Not.audibly recorded: Ms. Mabry. indicated she moved to reconvene
regular session. Mr. Smith seconded:) “There’s a motion, there!s a second. All in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Alright. | need amotion. We need a motion to adopt the ordinance. Mr.
Smith.”

Mr. Smith:, "Mr. Mayor, | move that we adopt second reading of Ordinance 12-0732, to amend
Article 9-7, No Parking Places.”

Mayor Samples: "There is a motion.”

Mr. Stevens: "Second.”

Mayor Samples: "Mr.Stevens seconds. Any discussion? All in favor say aye.”
Unknown Speakers: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Opposed.”

Mayor Samples: "No.”

(Not audibly recorded. Clerk asked for clarification on vote. Councilmembers Dodge, Kohimann,
Smith and Stevens voted in favor. Mayor Samples and Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry voted against.)

C. Second Reading Ordinance #12-0733 to amend §2-61(b) Volunteer Advertising in Daily
Newspaper and §2-61(j) Annual Committee Reports, Councilmember Dodge.
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Mayor Samples: "Moving right along. The second reading of Ordinance Number 12-0733 to
amend second Section 2-61, subsection (b,) volunteer advertising in daily newspaper, and Section 2-61,
subsection (j,) annual committee reports.”

Mr. Stevens:; "Mr. Mayor.”

Mayor Samples: "Mr. Stevens.”

Mr. Stevens: "I'd like to make a motion to adopt this."

Mayor Samples: "There is a motion.”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "l second.”

Mayor Samples: "There is a second. Any discussion? All'in favor say aye.”

All Members: “"Aye.”

Mayor Samples: “Opposed? The motion is adopted.”

D. Second Reading Ordinance #12-0735 to amend Business License Ordinance for the
Collection of Insurance Broker’s Tax, and Agreement with MASC for collectlon of Insurance
Broker’s Tax, Treasurer Hursey.

Mayor Samples: “"Second reading Ordinance Number 12-0735 to amend Business License
Ordinance for the collection of.insurance broker's tax, and agreement with the Municipal Association of
South Carolina for the collection of insurance broker's tax. This is second reading, can |, Mr. Smith.”

Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, I move that we approve second reading of Ordinance 12-0735.”

Mr. Stevens: "Mr. Mayor, |'second.”

Mayor Samples: "There's a motion. There’s a second. Any discussion? All in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Opposed? The motion is adopted.”

E. First Reading Ordinance #12-0736 to amend §11-5(a) Nepotism and Favoritism Policy,
Administrator Fellner.

Mayor Samples: "This is a, first reading of Ordinance #12-0736 to amend Section 11-5,
subparagraph (a) nepotism and favoritism policy. Ms. Fellner, will you bring us up to speed on this.”

Ms. Fellner: “Thank you, Mr. Mayor. The, this is the first reading or Ordinance 12-0736 to amend
11-5(a) nepotism and favoritism policy to include the sentence “in no case shall relatives of the town
administrator or town councilmembers be considered eligible for employment with the town. This came
out of changing our personnel policy and that has been changed, but in order, | was directed by council to
come back with an ordinance specifically including that line and so that is pretty completely with our
personnel policy manual now.”
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Mayor Samples: "Any questions? Just for clarification purposes, does considered not eligible is
that the same as ineligible?”

Ms. Fellner: “That is.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Any other comments? Mr. Smith.”

Mr. Smith: "I move that we adopt first reading of Ordinance Number 12-0736."

Mayor Samples: "There is a motion.”

Mr. Stevens: "l second.”

Mayor Samples: "There is a second. A, Mr. Stevens. Any discussion? All in favor say aye.”
All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Opposed? The motion is adopted.”

F. Resolution #12-121 to amend allowing Randy Harrison to:serve.

Mayor Samples: "Resolution number 12-121 to amend allowing Randy Harrison to serve, to
serve. Ms. Herrmann.”

Ms. Herrmann: “At the last council meeting Mr. Harrison had submitted his statement of interest
to serve on the town’s historical board, and council approved by metion to amend this resolution to allow
him to serve, and the changes in the resolution are the preamble, which now states:

Whereas, Town Couneil unanimously approved amending this resolution at its November
27, 2012 meeting to allow Randy Harrison, the son of the town’s first mayor, The

Honorable T, J. Harrison, to serve as a board member of the Surfside Beach Historical
Board,

Now, therefore, Resolution 12-121 to Create Surfside Beach Historical Board is hereby
amended and shall henceforth state:

And the changed paragraph is:
Be it further resolved, that Randy Harrison, son of the town’s first mayor, The Honorable
T. J. Harrison, shall'be allowed to serve as a member of the Surfside Beach Historical
Board for a 4-year term, said term to be renewed at Town Council’s pleasure.
All other portions of the resolution remain the same, Mr. Mayor.”
Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Can | get a motion?”
Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, | move that we adopt Resolution 12-121.”
Mayor Samples: "As amended?”
Mr. Smith: “"As amended.”

Mayor Samples: "Is there a second?”

Ms. Dodge: "Second.”
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Mayor Samples: "There is a second. All in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you.”

G. Business Committee Vacancies (Deferred until after Executive Session.)

Mayor Samples: “Alright, the next item would be the business committee vacancies, which we
will determine in executive session.”

8. DISCUSSION - Any matters of concern or'information to be discussed by Town Council.

Mayor Samples: "Moving right along, we have a disecussion, Section number 8, discussion, any
items of interest to councilmembers. We'll begin with a, Ms. Feliner is gonna bring us up to speed on
something that | know was sent to us in our email this morning, libelieve. The'agreement, bylaws review
of the Surfside Beach Youth Sports Association.”

A. Agreement and Bylaws Review — Surfside Beach Youth Sports Association, Inc.,
Administrator Fellner.

Ms. Fellner, “Yes, Mr. Mayor. This morning | received.from the attorney a set of the revised
bylaws and (**), a proposed contract, and the articles of incarporation, and the attorney has my
comments regarding these documents, and the only.item he 'did not alter that | noticed in the documents
he sent back and we discussed that today. The only one that],requested that he alter was under dispute
resolution via the circuit court, and I'll let him explain‘toithe council why, he did not, why he elected not to
do that.”

Mayor Samples: “Mr. Moss.”

Ms. Moss: “Thank you, Mr. Mayoriand members of council. As Ms. Fellner said, she did offer
several comments to the proposed agreement that | circulated and | did incorporate all those save one,
and | did not'incorporate that one, frankly, because | didn’t know what to put in there instead. What she
had proposed would be was that a decision of council might be the final resolution of any dispute, but
explicitly.you have that anyway, because in the agreement the council can terminate the whole
agreement.upon 30-days notice. Soiyou have that, that power to resolve disputes irregardless [sic] of
what we put in here, and so, really, | mean | hope there is never a day when there's a dispute between
the Youth Sports Association and the town, but assuming there is, somebody needs to decide that
dispute in a, in a fair agreement that's not the town and not the Youth Sports Association, and it could be
a court, and frankly that's the provision that | had in the draft contract language | used to start with. We
could also put an arbitration provision in there that says that the parties have to arbitrate any dispute and
that could be final. We could also put a mediation agreement that says before anybody can go to court
they must participate in so many hours of mediation, and so there’s all kinds of alternatives there, and it
wasn't that | was disputing what Ms. Fellner had asked for, | simply didn’t know what to put or what would
be the pleasure of the town. If you prefer a mediation requirement, if you prefer an arbitration or to leave
it at the circuit court for resolution, recognizing all the time that you have the ultimate power to terminate
the whole agreement upon 30-days notice.”

Mayor Samples: "Just to follow up on that questions, in the event, or in worst case there was
some form of dispute, and then the town elected to terminate, is there, is there some form of a hold
harmless that the town could be guaranteed.”

Ms. Moss: “I'm not, in this particular provision, the entire agreement is terminable completely
upon 30-days written notice.”

Mayor Samples: "What if they dispute our ability to terminate it?”
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Mr. Moss: “Well, there's an example of a dispute that you would have with them, but you have an
express right to terminate it. As a matter of fact, there's two termination provisions in this draft. One is
that the town can terminate upon 30-days notice, and then also, the Youth Sports Association can
terminate, | believe it's, | believe | put a 120-days...”

Mayor Samples: "A 120-days and not during the season.”

Mr. Moss: “...and not during the season, so | don't know how they could realistically dispute that,
but that power’s there, but if they did dispute it, the courtior an arbitration proceeding would be the right
place to make that decision.”

Mayor Samples: "That’s fine. | don't have any, you've answered my question. Any other
councilmembers questions?”

Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayor Samples: "Mr. Smith.”

Mr. Smith: "What is, what is the exact wording in the document now?”
Mr. Moss: “You mean as to termination?”

Mr. Smith: “Yes, of, of a dispute.”

Mayor Samples: "Dispute.”

Mr. Mossi “Okay, I'll find'it...”

Mayor Samples: "By the way, we're not gonna, this is not for vote tonight or anything like that.
This is forinformation. | know you just got'the material this morning, but it's something that we wanted to
bring you up to speed on and..."

Mr. Moss:. “Mr. Smith, Section 9 of the draft that | sent you this morning, it says the town shall
have the right upon 30-days written notice to the SBYSA to terminate this agreement and any and all
licenses granted herein, and thereafter the town shall retake possession of any and all sports equipment
and resume responsibility for promoting, encouraging, directing, and operating athletic programs for the
youth of Surfside Beach. Now, in the next section it provides that SBYSA shall have the right, upon 180-
days notice to town to terminate the ‘agreement upon which termination SBYSA shall relinquish all
licenses granted herein, surrender all sports equipment held by it to town, However, SBYSA may not
terminate this agreement such that any effective date of termination would occur during a season of any
sports program. The thought being there, and it was actually Ms. Fellner's observation, that you wouldn't
want them to hand it back te the town during the mid-season of any season.”

Ms. Smith: “If there’s a dispute, what is the wording in the agreement today for a dispute?”

Mr. Moss: “Under Section 6.4, Dispute Resolution, this draft provides if the parties hereto cannot
settle any difference arising between them without litigation, any such litigation shall take place in the
South Carolina Circuit Court in Conway, South Carclina.”

Mr. Smith: “Thank you. [, | think we need to add some words about mediation. That's the least
costly, isn't it; mediation versus arbitration.”

Mr. Moss: “Yes, and I'm a, I'm a big fan of mediation and requirements that, that so many hours
of mediation have to be conducted by the parties before they end up in court. I'm not, by the way, a big
fan of arbitration, because in my experience, it doesn’t save anybody any money.”
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Mr. Smith: "l think, I think we at least in my opinion, adding some words about mediation and the
appropriate number of hours before you go to court.”

Mayor Samples: "But, you can mediate and then you still not reach agreement, still be in dispute,
you still go to court, right?”

Mr. Moss: "Absolutely.”
Mayor Samples: "Okay, just want it for the record.”

Mr. Moss: “The a, |, | think that's a good idea, frankly. The arbitration, it's a personal opinion, |
don't like it, because when you get in arbitration proceedings, which is'you're hiring basically a referee to
decide the issue, and you have to pay that referee an hourly:fee. Sometimesiyou have three arbiters and
you have to pay all three of them hourly fees. Well, in circuit court you pay $150 filing fee and you pay for
the resolution by the judge. |, | don’t see arbitration could save the town any money or any time, but
mediation could.”

Mayor Samples: "Any, everybody in agreement with Councilmember Smith's.comment for
purposes of the agreement? Yes.”

Mr. Moss: “I'll add that and if |, if | may suggest something else to the members of council, |
realize you just got this, okay, but one of, and | really, | really believe that because the bylaws have been
prepared and they've been presented to/Mr. Seman; and my understanding is the organization is gonna
meet tomorrow night and they’ll probably adopt those; | believe that this agreement is ready now to give
to the council legally, | mean I'll add this provision we talked about, but there’s some deal points that the
town would need to consider and give. me guidance on. For example, it was, it was my understanding
from council that theifacilities would'be maintained and utilities provided by the town, and one, in the
MOU (**) there was a provision that the association would pay for the electric bills and would they would
pay to repair any, any lighting; and these are deal points. They’re not legal points. 1'would encourage
you to look at these issues that are in this MOU and see if you might want to change anything to the
agreement.

Mayor Samples: "Just for.everybody's information, | think you sent four different documents.”
Mr. Moss: *Yes, | did.”

Mayor Samples: "And, and se you, you should have and if you haven't received, please let the
administrator know. There are four.different documents involved to take a look at. | appreciate your
comment, the question that |, I, | did go through the documents, and a, a question that | have for Micki
and | don't know if you're can-answer it, but nowhere in going through it did | see that the youth
themselves were required to have any kind of insurance, and | thought it was pretty standard practice or it
used to be at least when | was involved with Dixie Youth Ball that there was a fee associated, part of the
fee that we paid, paid for an insurance, | thought. The only insurance | saw was workmen'’s
compensation, and, and some other minor general liability, | think.”

Mr. Moss: “You are correct. There are no health insurance or actual insurance provisions in the
draft presented to you.”

Mayor Samples: "Is that, my question is from the town perspective, is that no longer a
requirement of youth sports?”

Ms. Fellner: “To my knowledge, we, we do not require that.”

Mayor Samples: "Can you double check?”
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Ms. Feliner: “l absolutely will, yes, sir.”

Mayor Samples: "Because, you know, check with the county on that also, okay, and then if we
need to, add it. Thank you. Just for information purposes.”

B. Meeting Minutes Preparation, Mayor Samples.

Mayor Samples: "Next one, meeting minutes preparation, Mayor Samples. What do we want to
do on our meeting minutes? We discussed it last time. We talked about going with a, all the way from a
streaming live throughout the Eastern Seaboard, to a, to a video streaming, to videotaping, to old eight
millimeter cameras, to hiring court reporters to take the minutes verbatim to, to just maybe try and
verbatim for these last two minutes, a, meetings that we talked about. What is, what is the preference of
council?”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "I'm not gonna say a preference right now, but'l.am going to tell'you that | looked
into recording minutes. | called Myrtle Beach and spoke with their town clerk, and she gave me
information about a company that does digital recording or provides digital recording equipment. They're
out of Fort Lauderdale. It videotapes it, you can bookmark any, person, that specific person’s speech, you
can convert to a PDF file or you can record audio to a Word'file, so it sounds like it does a lot for you. |
have the name and the number of the local representative if Ms. Fellner.or someone, even you, might
want to speak with them to consider this, and maybe have them do a presentation‘about it. It would
certainly answer all of the questions. Thank you.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Any, other comments?”
Mr::Smith: "Mr. Mayor."
Mayor. Samples: "Mr. Smith.”

Mr. Smith: "I, a, very much like the verbatim minutes, and I've had some folks also comment that
they thought the verbatim comments they gave them a better insight as to what went on at the meeting,
so | support the idea of having the verbatim minutes and as far a the video and the digital, | think it's
probably appropriate that we bring that up at the budget retreat, since it will be money that we should
probably allocate for nextiyear's budget and not try to do it this year.”

Mayor Samples: "Let mejask you, just to follow up on that, is that something then that you
suggest the administrator look into so that we actually have some hard numbers to deal with. | think
that's what Ms. Dodge was getting at also.”

Mr. Smith: “Yes. She should cover the full subject of videotaping and automatic recording of
verbatim minutes and so forth, whether we have to continue with the clerk doing it.”

Mayor Samples: "Very good. Very good. Mr. Stevens.”

Mr. Stevens: "Yeah, Mr. Mayor, |, | too, after |, after a Councilman Dodge told me that a, of that
company | did call the Myrtle Beach clerk and a she said the program that they have was very, very good.
That a person could go online and click one particular person and it'd go right straight to that. So, | think
that a that's definitely something that we should look at, possibly direct the administrator to look into that.
| still a support a the verbatim minutes. | think it gives me better insight on what was discussed. | think it
gives the citizens better insight on what was discussed and it's a makes us absolutely open and
transparent in our town council meetings. So, | support the verbatim and also support looking into other
ways that we can actually go in like you said the 21* Century at the last meeting.”
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Mayor Samples: "Ms. Kohimann.”

Ms. Kohimann: "I always do a lot of research and | have to say that the verbatim minutes are
extremely time consuming, so | educated myself a lot this week. Although | like the verbatim minutes,
when you talk to other counties, other towns, and other agencies, the ones that do, do it verbatim either
outsource it or they have one person strictly doing minutes, nothing else. No, just minutes, and that's
actually Horry County Council they have two a, what do they call them, Micki, administrative assistants?
Yeah, two administrative assistants and one of them strigtly does minutes. So | don’t want people to think
that | don’t think Debra can type minutes. But, | know that she has'a lot to do, and | think we really need
to as a town look at all the avenues, because | do like that the public knows what's going on. But, if we're
gonna drain our resources down to nothing, then we’re genna end up spending more money in other
areas, because she’s not gonna be able to do all her otherwork, andd,'I'happen to think Debra does an
outstanding job now. | could never be a town clerk, because.it's a lot of wark;,and | think that although |
do support the verbatim minutes. | just want a, maybe | should just shut up and then she wouldn’t have to
type so much. But, | just want to let y’'all know there’s a lot more to it. 1'd like to see the video and maybe
get rid of the verbatim and we could just watch it.”

Ms. Mabry: "Our minutes were 50 pages long. It took 18 hours and 53 [sic] minutes to type
them. During that time, our clerk was so tied up with the minutes that'she simply cannot do everything.
It's impos [sic,] it's just impossible. You're taking that much'time away and the town doesn’t have a town
clerk during that time. If any councilmember wanted to amend, the minutes as they’ve been done for 50
years, they have every opportunity to do that. You.can put for the record. Ifl'm up here and | want
something that | think is so germane to the subject that it needs to.be in'the minutes, | can say for the
record. Every word will be put in them. 'If for some reason that all that fails, we still have council
comments. So there’s no reason at all for any councilmember not to be able to get their point across and
have it put into the minutes. | think it's ridiculous, and'I'm,just gonna be as honest as | can. To read 50
pages, | read them: They weren't all that interesting. Each page may have had one or two things that
were very germane to'the meeting. But, we do a lot of interaction. For historical purposes, | will tell you
that the historical committee is.going to take the minutes for the last 50 years. They're gonna try to put
one yearona front and back page. Let me assure you, no one’s comments [sic]'is gonna be on there.
Those will be just actions; that's historical. It's not what we say up here that you need to remember. It's
what we do up here, and that's in'the end is your historical record. So please let me tell you that there is
[sic] many waysithat a councilman can get their voice in the minutes and not have 50 pages to plow
through.. The minutes that we've done for 50 years were fine. | don't know what happened. If there was
any kind of a, anyboady. thought they were mishandled, embellished, not embellished enough, if they
thought there was, yeu g¢an have an ipter, go to the mayor, have an internal investigation. If that doesn't
work for you, go to the Ethics Commission. But, don't sit up here and anybody act like all of a sudden we
changed things. We did not."

Mayor Samples: "My:question to, a, members is a, regarding tonight’s minutes, what's the
druthers? You want them transcribed?”

Mr. Smith: “Verbatim.”
Mayor Samples: "Verbatim. Verbatim?”
Ms. Dodge: "Verbatim.”

Mayor Samples: "Verbatim, okay. | do think we need to move forward and discussing it in the,
the budget retreat is fine. That'll give the administrator an opportunity to look at the more cost effective
means of accomplishing what it is that we would like to do. The fact of the matter is, there is technology
out there that'll do this. 1t ain't quite as cheap when you get down to the distinguishing different voices.
That's where the dilemma is. It would still probably require somebody to go through and still create a
written record, but, maybe not. Who knows? Maybe next week somebody'll [sic] figure out how to, how
to break that technical challenge and it'll be...so, we want to insure that the record is accurate. We want
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to do it in a cost effective manner, and | would encourage all members to take advantage of their time
with the staff that work directly for us, that's both the administrator and Debra Herrmann, the clerk. If you,
if you have a question or a concern, share it. None of us are mind readers. Ms. Herrmann, please.”

Ms. Herrmann, “l only heard three people say verbatim. Is it council’s intention that they are
prepared verbatim from now on?”

Mayor Samples: "Why don’'t we go one meeting ata time, unless, unless somebody else...one
meeting at a time is (**) | think | saw more than three, no, no | understand. That's quite all right, that's
quite all right. Unless I'm wrong. Speak now or forever hold your peace. | think they’re verbatim. Does
anyone else have any other items that they would like to/ speak about tonight under discussion? Ms.
Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "l have been remiss, because | keep driving by this property on 15" Avenue South. |
would definitely call it a derelict property. (**) weeds in the yards that are very high. The windows are
board up, and apparently, kids go in there and could set it on fire;, We don't knew:, Also, people let their
dogs go in that lawn. | can imagine it's well fertilized. But that building, we’'ve never done anything about
it. I'm sure it's been at least five years like that, and I'm thinking maybe we ought to/look into it (**.)"

Mayor Samples: "Well, if a, if | could, Ms. Morris; go on to the pedium, because I'm pretty sure
this is the same property that we've been talking about, andiyou may want to bring Ms. Dodge up to
speed as to the boarded up buildings on 15" Avenue South.”

Ms. Morris: “Ms. Dodge, you're talking about the twojhouses that are together? They're boarded

up.
Ms. Dodge: “(**)"

Ms. Morris: “Yes, thank you. We have sent certified letters. We've condemned those houses,
and we are/working with the homeowner, One of those homes are scheduled to'be demolished. The
other, they've got a contracter and architect, excuse me, an engineer going to look at the property to see
if they can repair it. If not, it will also be demolished. But, they are in the process of removing it, because
we have condemned it.

Ms. Dodge: “Thank you, Sabrina.”

Mayor Samples: "I, | hope that's good news. You know, again, staff, staff is a proactive. The
mayor is proactive, and council is proactive, and so you know, but share your information with, with staff.
If you have a concern, I'migonna say it again, I'm gonna say it again, we're not mind readers, okay, and
s0 you gotta share the information, and this is verbatim, because we’ve been working on those buildings
for quite some time, quite frankly.” This didn’t happen just overnight.”

Ms. Dodge: "Mr. Mayor, | have one other thing that | wanted to say. | wanted to say how great
the parade was. | thought it was the best one. | had a blast riding on the council float and throwing
candy, a, but | understand from a number of people that there were lag times, considerable lag times in
places, and someone else called and said why didn’t we have marching bands or music on the floats, or
something like that to liven it up. I'm just passing along this information. | think it's good information, and
maybe we could consider it for next year.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. |, | agree with that. | think the special events-recreation committee
would be happy to a, to take that up. | know that staff worked hard to try to get, a get...| think they did a
great job. We would all like to see some more music, | think, and get bands out, but it's not as easy as it
used to be. Any other comments? Well, | have one. | was, | was pleased today to see that the local
daily newspaper reported that tomorrow that South Carolina Department of Transportation is having a
public hearing and that public hearing goes from five until seven at Socastee High School. The subject of
the public hearing is the completion of Carolina Bays Parkway, Highway 31, which | think many of you will
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remember was approved seven, eight years ago, and did extend to Enterprise Road when it was
approved. Well, that's never happened and it's under consideration again. Also, the widening of
Highway 707, which I'm pretty sure everybody knows where Highway 707 is since it's an important way to
get out to 544 in a hurricane, and alternative to 544. But, that's the subject of the public hearing
tomorrow, and | would encourage a, the more people to turn out the better. | happened to read the, the
rules that SCDOT has for tomorrow’s public hearing, and the guidelines go something like this: from
about five to six it'll be kind of a, a mingle and a look at what they're proposing, and talk with a, a folks,
and a from six to seven that's when they’ll be taking public.input, which leads me to why I'm bringing this
up. | plan on attending the, the meeting and | would ask.council and | will do it by consensus and either
you will or you won't, | would ask council to authorize the'mayor toispeak on behalf of the Town of
Surfside Beach in support of Highway 31 and the widening of Highway 707. They a, you have to sign up
to speak, that's the part | wanted to mention to you. They'll limit the number of speakers, and that sort of
thing, and, and | think it's important that we talk about our need and support,of these vitally important
roads, not just in Surfside Beach, but the whole South Strand, so unless there's objection...Mr. Stevens.”

Mr. Stevens: "l would support you doing the speaking.”
Mayor Samples: "Well, thank you. |s there a consensus?”
Mr. Smith: "Yes.”

Mayor Samples: "Cause that way | can say | speak for the council, not just for me individually.
Thank you. Appreciate it.”

Mayor Samples: "Public comments. Five minutes...Oh, I'm:sorry. | am; l.am sorry. The a, I'm
talking about the minutes? Oh, for purposes of the committees. I've drafted a couple, | drafted some
language at, frankly at the request of staffito help streamline and make it more efficient in terms of our
committee operations. As you know:we have a number of committees. | think a total of nine, something
like that whenil count. Anyway, we've got.a lot of committees, and | think it's a great thing, and we want
to encourage the committees to continue to do what they're actively engaged in deing. But, it's also
important that we follow the Freedom of Information public notification requirements. Consequently,
given that we have so many committees, there are some suggestions in these documents. Take them,
read them, change them, fix them, make them better and then bring them back so that the clerk can
prepare, in final'draft of something for.us to put out to the committee members to improve them in terms of
their efficiency and in compliance with Freedom of Information Act, okay.”

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS.

Mayor Samples: "Now, it's time for public comments.”

“Tom Dodge, 1415 North Poplar Drive. Being an interested party, | do not appreciate the cheap
shot that the mayor took against Mrs. Dodge. It was very inappropriate. | think that the mayor and the
mayor pro tem could go into one of our grocery stores and get some cheese to go along with that whine.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you, sir.”

*Harry Kohimann, 1610 South Ocean Boulevard. I'm also chairman of the parking committee. A
little background on the parking committee; the first time the parking committee was set up by prior
administration. It lasted about three months. We all voted unanimously for no parking on Ocean
Boulevard. Compromise would have been no parking on the east side. We also thought about parking
only on the west side of Ocean Boulevard. New administration came and exact same results and there
were different people. Now, you wanted no parking on Ocean Boulevard, in fact some of the council who
are newly elected agreed with us. A compromise would have been when we gave it to council, no
parking on the east side, only parking on the west side. The mayor asked, kept asking how many spots
would there be, the rest of the question is how many spots are we losing? (**) thought the council was
going to vote, no east side parking, there would have been 84 parking spots. Now with it, you also voted
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for 10-feet from the driveway, unanimously [sic], 10-feet from the driveway, 30-feet from an intersection,
and we got 84 parking spaces, 84 on the west side. We didn’t count the east side, because we thought
there’d be no parking on the east side, but there parking spots on the east side; quite a few parking spots.
Do | know how exactly how much? No, but you can't tell me how much there aren't. | just, | just don’t
understand. This is a committee. We work once a week, two hours each time. This isn’'t a rubber stamp
committee. This isn't a feel good committee. We keep getting sent things from the council, and that was
not a backdoor. That was a compromise on a compromise on a compromise, and that wasn't even
something that we suggest, we suggested 10-feet from a driveway for the west side, just to be safe. All
the rest, it wasn't even prohibited. | just don’'t understand how some of the council can feel this way and
I'll give you a little history. We had someone from the council comein and in:a threatening voice say to
us you better get your four votes. You better get four votes, because if you don’t get your four votes then
in two years from now we're gonna get it changed. What an open mind that was. What an open mind,
and now backdoor (**) means | didn’'t get my way. Shameon you.”

“John Ard, 612 Cypress Drive, Surfside. Mr. Mayor, Council, citizens. |, too, am a member of the
parking committee. | think that we have made a lot of good deécisions on our committee. | heard some
remarks tonight that | surely don't like (**.) Everybody is entitled to.an opinion, freedom of speech. Now,
earlier there was talk about some no parking signs in front of some properties. These no parking signs on
a public right-of-way. Now why is it that no one knows how those parking signs got there. No parking
signs, I'm sorry, the no parking signs got there. We knowwho the property belongs to. We know exactly
who it belongs to. Is it a money situation? Is that why nobody's talking? Is.it cause they’re on a higher
up committee maybe? The fact of the matter is somebody in this town’s gotto know how them signs got
there, whether it be somebody on this committee Up here, or Who. Somebody put those parking signs
there. Did they have the permission of the town to put them there:or did the town in fact have them put
there? Someone has to know the answer the question, and here we go, you want to talk about back
dooring something, that my friend is being back doored right there: Ifit's not public knowledge, why isn't
it? These are questions we need answers to. They’re questionsiwe’re not getting answers to. We [sic]
getting the run areundion them. Andialso, | don’t get offended very easily. I'm a man that speaks my
mind. [ try, try not to'offend.anybody, butas far as the statement tonight that this was a backdoor
maneuver to get parking off ©cean Boulevard, | think you better stop and rethink it @again, and you have
your opinjon, now you have mine."

Mayor Samples: "Mr. Seman.”

Mr. Seman, president of the Surfside Beach Youth Sports Association, “Good evening, | just want
to a, I'll just change the tone a little bit. | want to thank y'all. | want to thank Mr. Moss and | want to thank
Ms. Fellner for all the work y'all have been doing with this youth association. The documents look good.
I'm in agreement with both of you, | think that we won't have a problem at all with any of the language in
the documents. Just a cauple of clarification points that | read. | just got them today, too, so. | just read
them and that's all | want, and a, just, you know, have a good Christmas. Thank you.”

Mayor Samples: “Thank you, sir. Merry Christmas. Ms. Ann.”

“Okay, I'm Ann Wescott. 1413 Cedar Drive North. | have taken meeting minutes for years, and
doing minutes verbatim does nothing but clutter up the reports. It makes it really hard to find what you're
really looking for. In five years, things that | did five years ago, if | have to look up something in the
minutes, it makes it really hard to find. Think twice about having them verbatim, because it's a waste of
time.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Take it slow, Glen.”
“Glen Curtis, 257 Palladium. Since it's Christmas, over the river and through the woods to my
house you go. You see me walking all the time. Sometimes | come down 10", Melody, | go down to as

far as Atlantic Avenue and come along the beach every day and come up Surfside Drive. If anybody has
noticed, we talk about parking, as | walk through the summer months when you need the tourism, | see
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houses from Atlantic Avenue all along the beach people that put no parking signs on their own property
and eliminate parking, even on side streets. So, that's something that you can look into also.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you. Ms. Kohlmann.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "l would just like to say Merry Christmas and have a safe and Happy New Year.”
Mayor Samples: "Ms. Dodge.”

Ms. Dodge: "I think...

Mayor Samples: "I'm sorry, please do.”

“I'm Sue Clark and I'm from 616 Juniper Drive, and this past election, | really looked forward to it
with a lot of excitement. I've been a resident in Surfside Beach.for 10 years noew and have enjoyed the
most part of it, and | just, | just thought wow, we finally have a.council I'm happy with. Unfortunately, most
of this year I've been away in Maryland, because of illness. Mydaddy passed away, about a month ago.
But, what |, what | heard tonight had a lot to do with safety issues, and there's safety issues that | don't, |
don’t think have come up a lot here and | don’'t know,if ithas before: Unfortunately, this is the first
meeting that I've been able to attend. On Facebook thereiis a site (**) in town, and there's a number of
things that have been said on this particular site that | find troubling. One particularly said here a, when |
made a comment about Mayor Samples and | really liked the vote that they had on the (**.) There have
been some comments about people who giggled and smirk. Apparently it was a councilmember and they
wanted something in the minutes about that, and I'was, | receivedia response'back that if you wanted to
see who's giggling, smirking, and constantly sending test, text messages from the back of the room to
people way up in the front, pay close attention, it may surprise you." As for being a dea [sic,] a true and
dear friend to you, to me, be very careful of them, because a couple of them will cut your throat in a
heartbeat. In theirvery:drama queen ways they are overlooking ene important thing. What goes around
comes around and back toiyou when you least expecting it. | didn’t take that very nicely. You know, it
seems rather dramatic to'have. threats of, of, of murder at town hall, yet, | know, it's word set in context,
and a | just think it's horrible'that.things have come to that, and from what | understand, and what | have
gotten a number of private messages on this, isithat texting is coming from citizens to members of council
here up, so they.can look down andiget a text message and maybe respond to something in a particular
way. |would like to suggest that maybe we have no cell phones sitting up on the podium during a
meeting where they can receive text, and not receive texts. Take the cell phones, put them away.
Everybody.needs advisors, use your advisors during your executive meetings. But, | say to...go ahead,
Mayor Samples.”

Mayor Samples: "You, yousraise an interesting questions, and | have never gotten a text
message until tonight, andiit's thefirst text message | got, and I'd like to know who's phone number it is
because what they state heresis ‘you are wrong.’ Interestingly enough and they are entitled to their
opinion, but, well I, I, | mean itis a text message, and it is coincidental, because |'ve never, ever gotten
one before tonight, and the telephone number is 333.1011. Now, | don’t know who that is. Is that you,
Ron? Well, okay. I'm glad you own up to it.”

Ms. Kohimann: "Mr. Mayor, it's public comments.”

Mayor Samples: "Well, | appreciate that. It was germane and she was kind enough to allow me
chime in. Well, Debra’s keeping time, I'm sure. Well, she forgot, so go ahead. Take as much time as
you like.”

Ms. Clark: (**) lies and untrue about citizens, and apparently, what it boils down to, if you
disagree with, | don’t know, particular citizens and council members they're gonna destroy your reputation
intentionally, and that's just for shame, and, and that's horrible, and | just don’'t know why the parking
issue that went back and forth tonight, | happen to side with Mayor Samples. | don't know if there’re any
knives heading this way that'll cut my throat, but I'd like to say that I'd like to see no cell phones up on the
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podium during town council meetings, and that | would also like people to use a little bit of a class,
maybe, and there's no need for threats. We are entitled to our opinion, and as they said, they have their
rights to their First Amendment, and after hearing that I'm gonna get my throat cut, | stated | have my
right to the Second Amendment. People are being threatened. It is a matter for the police. They're
saying if you don't vote my way, I'm gonna cut your throat. It's a police matter, and again, there are
figures of speech, but | don't like threats, and then I'll leave that aside. | wish the people of Surfside Free
Press would identify their selves and stop hiding behind free press. On the public safety issue we talked
about the coyotes, so I'm moving on to another topic. | had:an issue this July where one of my sweet
baby dogs was bitten by a copperhead. It happened at night' they're nocturnal typically in the hot
weather. It cost me more than $600 in vet bills. It's cost me a lot more sleep, because | keep dreaming
about stepping outside at ten o'clock at night. | think they're barking atthe raccoons, possums, or the
other critters that are always running around that carry rabies, and | go back and | don't know what made
me pick up a flashlight, but here’s a copperhead striking atimy dogs. (I grab a shovel. |try to getit, the
copperhead gets away. It gets to the trashy yard behind my house on 6" Avenue. 6" Avenue, apparently
the town came out, and a member of council helped me with this, and they got them to mow their grass.
That's nice. They mow their grass once a year, but the trash is still piled up. Thebaby copperhead has a
mommy and a daddy, and | believe it's under a shed that's ten feet from my fence, and that's not, that's
not enough to mow their grass. Now they're all hibernating, and getting happy and breedlng So | don't
know what I'm gonna see, see next year. So coyotes are not nearly as big a threat as copperhead
snakes are and when we have all this underlying brushiin the residential areas, and I'm talking about the
lots that are wooded, and leave them wooded, letthe critters live in these lots. We once talked about
clear cutting them in another meeting in another council. But gopperheads are more dangerous. You
know the old saying, there are a hundred poisonous snakes in the United States, and 99 of them are in
South Carolina. So, I'd like the town to |60k at that and that'sall I have to say, but | would like both the
council and the members of the a Surfside Beach ta be constructive: We live in'a great town. We can
only make it better. Let's not make it worse by petty indifferences. Thank you.”

Mayor Samples: "Thank you."

104/ COUNCIL COMMENTS.

Mayer Samples: "Would you like to reconsider your comments, [Ms. Kohimann.] No, okay. Ms.
Dodge.” '

Ms. Dodge: "l don't have anything to say. Thank you.”

Mr, Stevens: "Thanks everybody for coming out. | want to wish everybody in town a Merry
Christmas and a Happy New Year. | think we’re making progress. Thank you for the folks that are
making public comments, Remember that's your Constitutional right, and a, that was a good, nice joke
about the Second Amendment, too. Thank you.”

Mayor Samples: "Councilman Smith.”

Mr. Smith: "Thank you guys for coming out, and | would also like to thank the parking committee
for being willing to compromise, compromise, compromise. That's the way you actually get something
done. So | really appreciate your efforts on that. It's gonna take some time to educate the public on this
new ordinance about parking, and I'd like to suggest that the town administrator consider putting
something up on our website on the first page, and that public works thinks of ways to help us identify the
places people shouldn’t park using shrubs, and maybe some signs at the main entrances to Surfside
Beach. | think there are maybe about five main entrances, Business 17 north and south, Ocean
Boulevard north and south, and Glens Bay Road. We should probably have some signs there to help
people understand it. But we have to give the police department time to, a, enforce this in an intelligent
way and educate the public so we will have safe places on Ocean Boulevard, as well as throughout the
town and our streets. Somebody told me that the a parade, Christmas parade, was the best parade in 32
years. They had lived here that long and they thought it was the best parade. So thank you to the rec
[sic] committee and Merry Christmas.”
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Mayor Samples: "Ms. Mabry.”

Ms. Mabry: "Yes, first of all, | thank everyone for coming out. | know this is a busy season for
everybody. | do want everyone to know that | do appreciate the hard work that the parking committee did.
Just because | disagree with this one ordinance, does not mean that | disagree with the committee as a
whole. | think that they do an outstanding job. | had, after hearing the presentation, and hearing about
zones and other things that would be a little more inclusive;:| thought maybe that was a better way to go.
However, | do respect you, and | respect your efforts. | want to also say that for 23 years we have
received a Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in Financial Reporting. lithink that's outstanding, and
as most of you know that | do love the finance committee. That's the part l'like a lot, and that means a lot
to our town. Our finance is the engine that runs the whole town, and so I'am really proud of the finance
committee. Again, thank you for coming out, and have a great Christmas.”

Mayor Samples: "First let me say, you know, the internet has all kinds'ef blogs; all kinds of stuff
onit. You know, it is a shame, but Surfside Free Press could actually be a, aniinformative local
newsletter dedicated for the town. Now | have not spent much time looking at it, because!l tend not to
read blogs. But, | gotta be honest with you. It's been, to me, it's been a mean, nasty publication, and
when people won't identify themselves, when it's done anonymously, Iimean, | think; I ithink we should be
mature enough and adult enough to distinguish between what is genuineiand sincere. Rest assured, if
what you said is what you read on there, don't, don’t worry about it, don’t worry about it at all, because it's
untrue, it's an untruth. But again, everybody take the timeto spend your time.in what kind of
entertainment that, you know, you, you choose to. With respect:to the ‘parking committee, | know they
have worked long and hard. | wish that they had made a presentation to the Town Council in a workshop
and presented a number of their ideas, which | know they have censidered, and'toisuggest when we are
at second reading that compromise, | mean, you know, we proposed something because we thought
there would be a compromise. |'don’t.think we ever had'a chance to compromise. We never discussed it
in a workshop manner:. It's a very seriousisubject. It's avery serious subject. But, what | would say is we
spent, and I'migonna‘letiit go. We passed, we adopted thelordinance, we did. But; it would seem to me,
it would just'seem to me, that since most of those houses down there are, in fact, businesses on Ocean
Boulevard, l.don’t think anybody:denies that, they're businesses. Maybe we should have got input from
the businessi.committee. Maybe we might, ['knew we want to do that on some other items, and | know
that the committee, business committee considered the overlay on at least three different occasions. And
so, it’s just food for thought. It's food for thought. I'wish everybody a Merry Christmas.”

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION.

Pursuant to FOIA:§30-40-70(2)21) and pursuant to Surfside Beach Town Code of Ordinances §2-
61(f) to discuss appointments to the/Business Committee.

Mayor Samples: "l need'a motion to go into executive session,”

Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, | move we go into executive session.” Clerk’s Note: The motion to enter
executive session was made at 8:53 p.m.

Mayor Samples: "Is there a second?”

Ms. Dodge indicated second by hand motion.

Mayor Samples: "All in favor say aye.”

Clerk’s Note: The following portion was not recorded:

Mr. Smith moved to reconvene regular session at 9:09 p.m. Mr. Stevens seconded. All voted in
favor. Motion carried.
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Mayor Samples said that no action was taken during executive session.

Recording begins:

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Kohlmann.”

Ms. Kohlmann: "l move to make a motion to remove the following members..."

(**)

Mayor Samples: “Do you have the code in front of you?”

Ms. Herrmann: “I don't have the code in front of me, but the ¢ode states that council will discuss
the individuals in executive session and simply come out ifi the regular session and simply state the
vacancies, without any statement of any other type. So if there are two vacancies, two vacancies will be
declared.”

Ms. Kohimann: "Mr. Mayor."

Mayor Samples: "Ms. Kohimann.”

Ms. Kohimann: "I'd like to state that we will have two vacancies in the business committee, one
in the recreation committee, one in the board of zoning appeals and ong in stormwater.”

Mayor Samples: “There is a mation. Is there.a second?”
Mr. Stevens: “Second.”

Mayor Samples: “There is a second. Any discussion? | would like to thank all those unnamed
members for their service to the town. Allin favor say aye.”

AllMembers: “Aye.”

Mayor Sé‘mples: "Opposed?. Sobeit”

12, ADJOURNMENT.

Mr. Smith: "Mr. Mayor, | move that we adjourn.”
Ms. Mabry: "l second.”

Mayor Samples: “There's a motion and a second, but Ms. Fellner, did you wish to...(**.) There's
a motion and a second. All'those in favor say aye.”

All Members: “Aye.”
Mayor Samples: "Opposed? The meeting is adjourned.”

Clerk’'s Note: The motion to adjourn was made at 9:11 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk

Page 32 of 33



1783
1784
1785
1786
1787
1788
1789
1790
1791
1792
1793
1794
1795
1796
1797
1798
1799
1800
1801

1§63

Regular Town Council Meeting
December 10, 2012

Approved: January 8, 2013

Douglas F. Samples, Mayor

Mary Beth Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore Ann Dodge, Town Council
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council Elizabeth A. Kohimann, Town Council
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council .Randle M: Stevens, Town Council

Clerk’s Note: This document constitutes minutes of the meeting, whichwas digitally audiotaped by The Grand
Theatre Staff. This meeting was transcribed verbatim with no grammar eorrections. In aceordance with FOIA,
meeting notice and the agenda were distributed to local media and interested parties. The agenda was posted on
bulletin boards outside The Grand Theatre, outside Council Ghambers, andimthe Town Hall'reception area,.
Meeting notice was also posted on the Town marquee. When (**) is used a segtion of the transeription is inaudible.
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Planning, Building & Zoning Directors Report
January 2013

Permits New Staff Member

Staff issued one (1) new residential permit We have a new staff member! Sean

in December for 312 North Oak Drive. A

total of 60 permits were issued in Decem-

Boysel has joined our department
as the new Permit Technician. Sean

has a wealth of knowledge with

ber and 69 building inspections were made computer systems and Marketing.

He's pleasant to be around and very

as well as |8 tree inspections. 16 sets of

plans were reviewed or re-reviewed after anxiodsico,lcarmitiielanning) Bulld-
ing and Zoning process. We would

corrections were made and resubmitted. ) . .
like to welcome him and invite you

40 business license were also issued in De- to stop in and meet Sean at your

Sean Boysel

Permit Technician convenience.

cember.

Code Enforcement

The Building Official
spoke with the owner of
the two properties lo-
cated at 335 and 339
15™ Avenue South. His
plan is to raze the
buildings and is cur-
rently working on capi-
tal to have them re-
moved; the owner will
be in touch with the
Building Official to keep
him up to date on his
actions. We obviously
sympathize with the
owner but are unable to
have this linger for a
long period of time, the
buildings, one (1) in
particular is in need of
removal as quickly as
possible. We will keep
Council informed of the
status of this issue.

15 signs were removed
from the right a way
along US 17 during the
month.

Contact was made with
the company having
control of the property
at 633 Sparrow Drive,
staff was told they
would have someone
get the structure closed
and also repair the roof.
They were also advised
that the inside needs
cleaned out. A raze or-
der will be issued to the
owner the end of Janu-
ary if the violation is not
corrected.

flood risk resulting from
the community actions
meeting the three goals
of the CRS:

Several properties in
the town limits were
reported as having
code issues however
the issues were not 1
code related. The
complainant was noti-
fied as to the route to

. Reduce flood dam-
age to insurable
property;

. Strengthen and sup-

ISO port the insurance
] aspects of the NFIP,
Rating and
The Town has re- 3. Encourage a com-

prehensive ap-
proach to floodplain
management.

ceived its Community
Rating System (CRS)
Recertification for the
community. Staff is
working diligently to
improve our rating 1 to
2 levels by the next
recertification process.
As a result, flood in-
surance premium
rates are discounted
to reflect the reduced

Contact Information:

Sabrina Morris, Director
843-913-6354

Kevin Otte, Building
Official 843-913-6340

Sean Boysel, Permit
Technician 843-913-6341



PLANNING, BUILDING & ZONING BUILDING REPORT FOR PERMIT ISSUED IN DECEMBER 2012

PERMIT TYPE NUMBER ISSUED

NEW RESIDENCE

=

RESIDENTIAL PLAN REVIEWS (New Const. & Additions)

NEW COMMERCIAL

ADDITIONS

COMMERCIAL PLAN REVIEWS (New Const. & Additions)

STORMWATER

SAFETY INSPECTIONS

GENERAL REPAIRS

MECHANICAL

ELECTRICAL

PLUMBING
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SIGN PLAN REVIEWS

TREE

Pool
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Minor Subdivision

Zoning Permit

Accessory Building
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DOUGLAS F. SAMPLES
Mayor

RODNEY KEZIAH
Chief of Police (Interim)

SURFSIDE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT
811 Pine Drive
Surfside Beach, SC 29575

Monthly Activity Report
DEC 2012
(5-DEC — 31DEC 12)
Prepared by Rodney Keziah

INTRODUCTION:

December statistics show a noticeable increase in calls for service and
charges/arrests. Calls for service have increased 14% from last month, and our arrests for
December increased by 13% over the same period last year.

Following this trend, we have also noticed an increase in all areas in 2012
compared to 2011. SBPD calls for service saw a 28% increase, and charges/arrests were
up 11% from the 2011 statistics. Please see the attached table and graph depicting the
calls for service, criminal charges, and physical arrests.

As always, these numbers will be detailed for you in the Workload/Performance
Metrics section of the report.

PERSONNEL ACTIONS:

SBPD initiated no disciplinary actions during this reporting period. We also received
no formal complaints against employees.

The application period for Police Officer has now closed, and we have filled our last
vacant Police Officer position. Jason Newton, a five year law enforcement veteran, started
on December 28. He comes from the Fort Lawn, SC Police Department, where he served
as a Patrol Sergeant. Newton will complete his abbreviated Field Training Program (FTP),
and will be released to full duty within a couple of weeks.

We have also filled one of our two open communications slots. Our part-time
dispatcher, Christine Mueller, has taken a transfer to a full-time position. She will be a great
asset to our agency, as she brings seven years of experience with Horry County 911 with
her. Final interviews for the last communications slot will be completed soon, and a
conditional offer will be extended.
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HIGH RISK LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES:

SBPD officers conducted two vehicle pursuits and 1 foot pursuit during this
reporting period. See matrix below for details.

SBPD officers used a reportable level of force on one occasion during this
reporting period (standard handcuffing, escort holds, etc. do not require additional
reporting beyond our Uniform Crime Report — see following table for summary). The
use of force resulted in no injury to officers or staff however, injuries were sustained to
a suspect during an escape attempt while in custody.

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES (DEC 2012 Reporting Period)
DATE ACTIVITY TYPE OFFENSE OFFICERS ARREST INJURIES PROP. DAMAGE
Strong
5 DEC Vehicle Pursuit Armed Cpl. Hofmann Yes None None
Robbery

Cpl. Hofmann attempted to initiate a traffic stop on a vehicle that was a suspect in a Strong Armed Robbery that occurred in the Piggly Wiggly
parking lot. The vehicle failed to stop, and was pursued for approximately 4 miles before the driver jumped from the moving vehicle and fled
the scene into a wooded area. The driver and passenger were both apprehended the following day and charged with the Strong Armed
Robbery charge, and other moving violations.

Escape /
) Byrd / Yes
18 DEC Use of Force Narcotics Yes None
. Anderson (Suspect)
Violation

PtI's Anderson and Byrd initiated a traffic stop on a suspicious vehicle and subject that had been observed several times in the area of Ocean
Blvd near a previous burglary scene. Officers observed a strong odor of Marijuana coming from inside the vehicle and detained the suspect
during a search. During the search officers located a large quantity of various illegal drugs inside the vehicle and placed the suspect under
arrest. Once placed under arrest, the suspect broke free from officers and attempted to flee while handcuffed behind his back. During the
apprehension, the suspect fell face first into the roadway causing lacerations and facial damage.

; . Stolen .
24 DEC Vehicle Pursuit . Ridgeway No None None
Vehicle

Ptl. Ridgeway attempted a traffic stop on a suspected DUI suspect. The driver failed to stop. A check of the license plate revealed that the
vehicle had been stolen out of Horry County. The vehicle was pursued into Horry County jurisdiction and the suspect fled on foot after getting
the vehicle stuck in the mud. The driver was identified by items left inside the stolen vehicle, and arrest warrants are pending. The vehicle was

returned to the grateful and rightful owner.

TRAINING:

As always, officers maintained their Class 1 Law Enforcement licenses via
online training provided by the SC Criminal Justice Academy, and continued to
receive their mandated in- service hours through the SC Criminal Justice Academy
online.

All sworn and certified officers completed their bi-annual firearms
qualifications. This consisted of training and qualification with handguns (day and
night) shotgun, rifle, and any off-duty/backup weaponry.

December 10, 2012, Ptl. Walker attended an Evidence Collection and
Submission seminar hosted by the South Carolina Law Enforcement Division (SLED).
This training gave Evidence Custodians the proper procedures and guidelines for
submitting evidence to the State forensic laboratory for testing.
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December 10, 2012, Cpl. King and Ptl. Knight attended a Verbal Judo Class in
Conway SC. This class was sponsored by the SC Municipal Risk Association, and
dealt with techniques to reduce officer complaints and increase officer safety.

December 11, 2012, Interim Chief Keziah and Sgt. Bailey attended the SC
Training Officers Association meeting in Columbia SC.

December 20, 2012, Interim Chief Keziah attended the Speed Measuring
Device Instructor Recertification Course in Columbia SC. This recertification is good
for a 3 year period for giving instruction and proficiency tests to officers certified in
Radar and Laser use.

WORKLOAD / PERFORMANCE METRICS:

As usual, we've included our Monthly Activity Report (along with the same
period last year spreadsheet for comparison purposes). Also included are the usual
supplemental reports: the Criminal Investigations log and the USMS Fugitive Task
Force report. Our Beach Services and Parking Enforcement operations have
ceased for the season.

You will notice a decrease in the statistical data for Criminal Investigations
during December 2012. This decrease was due to medical leave and vacation for
our Investigator. Follow-up and investigation cases were re-assigned to other
administrative and patrol personnel. Arrest data for these cases are contained in the
monthly arrest numbers listed.

2012 statistics have been combined for arrests made by Sgt. Bailey and the
US Marshalls Task Force. Through the assistance of this task force, 352 warrants
have been served, and $89,769.43 in fines and revenue have been collected. These
numbers only represent warrants from our jurisdiction.

This month, SBPD officers issued 89 written warnings in lieu of Uniform Traffic
Tickets or to record vehicles stopped for non-traffic related reasons (these are not
reflected in our database totals).

NOTABLE EVENTS / INFORMATION:

On December 6, 2012 we received an email commendation from a citizen
thanking our department and Cpl. Hofmann for assistance in recovering stolen property
for her. This victim stated that she was most impressed with the officer’s skilled efforts in
maintaining a peaceful environment with everyone involved. | too commend these
officers, as this falls right into our mission statement of assisting victims of crimes in any
way possible.

Officers conducted traffic control for the annual Christmas Parade on December 8,
2012. This was a successful event, and no major traffic or crowd problems were
encountered.
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On December 15, officers assisted with the ABATE toy run for children that
traveled through town and ended at the McDonalds just north of Town Limits,

Again | would like to thank you for your continued support during this transition

period. As always please feel free to contact me at any time if you have any further
questions about the information contained in this report, or our operations in general.
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SURFSIDE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT

Monthly Activity Report
DEC 2012
(5 DEC- 31 DEC 12)

ATTACHMENTS

AND

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

Page 1 of 1



SURFSIDE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT

2012 DEPARTMENTAL STATISTICS
TABLES AND DATA SUMMARY

The following tables contain the Police Department’s 2012 statistics. The tables provide
a monthly summary of Calls For Service, Criminal Charges, and Physical Arrests. An
additional table has also been provided showing a summary of all 3 categories.

2012 CFS Summary
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2012 Criminal Charge
Summary

TOTAL: 2,985
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Rodney Keziah

From: Arron Miller <amiller@surfsidebeach.org>
Sent: Thursday, December 06, 2012 11:04 AM
To: '‘Rodney Keziah'

Subject: FW: Thank You

Arron B. Miller, Captain

Surfside Beach Police Department
811 Pine Drive

Surfside Beach, SC

843.913.6345 (ofc)

843.238.1882 (fax)

amiller@surfsidebeach.org

This e-mail transmission, in its entirety and including all attachments, is intended solely for the use of the person or
entity to whom it is addressed and may contain sensitive information which is privileged, confidential, and the disclosure
of which is governed by applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disclosing,
distributing, copying, or taking any action in relation to this e-mail is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this e-
mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the related message and any attachments.

WARNING: All e-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to public disclosure under the South
Carolina Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), §30-410 SC Code of Laws.

From: Town of Surfside Beach [mailto:town@surfsidebeach.org]

Sent: Thursday, December 06, 2012 8:39 AM

To: 'Arron Miller'; 'Becky Small'; 'Don Sliker'; 'Matt Prock’; 'Roger King'
Subject: FW: Thank You

From: Cheri Bryant [mailto:Cheri.L.Bryant@gsk.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2012 9:08 PM

To: town@surfsidebeach.org
Subject: Thank You

To whom it may concern,

| wanted to write a quick note and complement the Surfside Beach Police
Department. Unfortunately, | have had occasion to require assistance in the
past month. | specifically worked with Kenneth Hofmann and a few other
officers whom assisted.

The officers were extremely helpful in assisting my husband and | in the

1



recovery of some items stolen from our home. Without their willingness to
listen and take action within the law, we would likely would ever have
recovered any property.

| was most impressed with the officers sklilled efforts in maintaining a
peaceful environment with everyone involved. Clearly an issue of this
nature could have escalated quickly.

Please thank these officers and let them know that they are doing a
fantastic job in our town,

Cheri L. Bryant

212 Cedar Drive North
Surfside Beach, SC
843 655-0383
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Monthly Activity Report - DECEMBER 2011

" calls for Service | Fi.(:a-ld Actlvmes _

'Charges and Arrests

911 Hang-Ups 5 Accessory to Felony

Abandoned Property Allow Unauthorized Operation of Motor Veh 2

Abandoned Vehicle 1 Animal at Large

Accident (injuries) Armed Robbery

Accident property damage only) 13 Assault / Battery (1st degree)

Alarm Calls 41 Assault / Battery (2nd degree)

Alcohol Violation Assault / Battery (3rd degree}) 1

Animal Calls 12 Bank Fraud

Armed Subject Bicycle Violations

Assault 3 Blackmail / Extortion

Assisting other Agencies 15 Breach of Trust 1

Bomb Threat Breaking & Entering Motor Vehicle

Booking (non-SBPD) Burglary 1st Degree / attempt

Breach of Trust 2 Burglary 2nd Degres / attempt

Burglary Attempt 1 Burglary 3rd Degree / attempt 1

Burglary Business/Bullding 2 Careless Operatlon 3

Burglary Residence 3 Child Neglect 2

Burglary Vehicle Child Restraint Violation

Check Forgery Criminal Domestic Violence 3
Child Abuse Criminal Domestic Violence High & Agg. 2

City Ordinance Violation 7 Criminal Sexual Conduct

Civil Matter 8 Defrauding Cab

Credit Card Abuse 1 Disorderly Conduct 5

Criminat Sexual Conduct Criver's License Violations / Restrictions

Death Investigation 2 Driving Under Suspension 30
Debit Card Abuse Driving Under the Influence 14
Decoy Car / Operation Driving Wrong Side of Highway 1

Defraud Check 2 Equipment Violation 2
Defraud Food/Gas Bill Fallure to Stop for Blue Lights 2
Defraud Innkeeper Failure to Surrender DL

Defraud Wrecker Failure to Yield Right of Way

Disabled Vehicle/Motorist False Information to Law Enforcement 5
Disorderly Subjects 1" Following Too Closely

Disturbances 8 Forgery

Domestic Dispute 11 Fugitive from Justice 1

Embezzlement Golf Cart Violation

Escorts 1 Grand Larceny

Fight 1 Handicap Violation

Fireworks 1 Helmet Law Violation

Foot Patrol 12 Hitchhiking

Found Property / Article 3 Improper Lights 4
Harassment Calls 8 Improper Turn

Hit and Run Accidents 7 Kidnapping

Identitiy Theft 1 Leaving Scene of Accident 3
Improper Parking Liquor with Broken Seal

Incorriglble Juvenile Littering

Indecent Exposure

Information 30 Loud Noise 3
Intoxicated Driver 3 Maliclous Damage to Property

Intoxicated Pedestrian 3 Minor Possession Alcohol 4

Kldnapping

Minor Possession Cigarettes
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Page 2 of 2

0 A epo D BER 20
a 0 : (A » d A
Littering MOPED Violations 3
Lost/Found Property Moving Violation (other) 6
Mail Tampering No DL in Possession
Malicious Damage to Auto 1 No Motorcycle DL
Malicious Damage to Business 1 No Proof of Insurance 14
Malicious Damage to Property 3 No SC Driver's License 12
Medical Calls/Assisting Fire Dept 6 Noise vlolation (animal)
Mentally il Subject Open Container 6
Message Delivery Operating Uninsured Vehicle 14
Misc Beach Problems 2 Petit Larceny 2
Open Door Business 1 Possession Coceina / Crack / lce
Open Door Residence Possesslon Controlled Substance 4
Open Door Town Property Possession Criminal Tools or Implemsnts
Open Door Vehicle Possession Hergin
Other 51 Possession of Weapon during Crime
Premises Check 13 Possession Stolen Goods < $2000
Prowler 3 Possession Stolen Goods > $2000
Public Assist 19 Possession Stolen Vehicle
Radar/Traffic Control Possession with Intent to Dist Marijuana
Repossessions/Towed Vehicles Possession with Intent to Dist Other 5
Sanitation Problem Prostitution
Sex Crimes/Vice Reckless Driving
Shoplifting 2 Registration Violations 43
Smoking Ordinance Violation 1 Resisting Arrest
Stolen Property 15
Stolen Tag Seatbelt Violation 3
Stolen Vehicle Shoplifting 1
Stolen Vehicle (recovered) Simple Possession Marijuana 7
Street Depariment Problem Smoking Violation
Strong Armed Robbery Speeding (17 corridor) 4
Suicide Attempt 2 Speeding (residential) 9
Suspicious Circumstances 17 Stop Sign Violation 3
Suspicious Person(s)/Vehicla(s) 87 Striking Fixtures on Highway
Towed Vehicle Strongarm Robbery
Traffic Complaints/Hazards 5 Supply Alcohol to Minor
Traffic Stops 295 Trespassing 1
Transport for Bond Hearing 36 Unlawful Carrying of Weapon
Trespassing 6 Unilawful Use of Telephone
Unknown Call Type Vehicle on Beach
Utility Problem 1 Wipers / No Lights
Vandalism 5 Check Forgery
Vehicle Accidents
Warrant Service 18
Water/Street/Utility Problems
Welfare Concern 10 "‘Horry .County Pollce Deparlment 50
SC Highway Patrol / other agency 6
Surfslde Beach Police Depariment Y 70
BTGRP R S IEE T AL A R IREDS
SBPD Prisoners Trans, to County Jail 49



Surfside Beach Police Department - Patrol Division

Monthly Activity Report - NOVEMBER 2012

Calls for Service / Field Activities
911 Hang-Ups

Chargés and Arrests

Accessory to Felony

Abandoned Property Allow Unauthorized Operation of Motor Veh

Abandoned Vehicle Animal et Large 1
Accident (injuries) 4 Armed Robbery

Accident (property damage only) 14 Assault / Battery (1st degree)

Alarm Calls 68 Assault / Battery (2nd degree)

Alcohol Violation Assault / Baltery (3rd degree) 4
Animal Calls 28 Bank Fraud 1
Armed Subject Bicycle Violations

Assault 6 Blackmail / Extortion

Assisting other Agencies 10 Breach of Trust 1
Bomb Threat Breaking & Entering Motor Vehicle 1
Booking (non-SBPD) Burglary 1st Degree / attempt

Breach of Trust 1 Burglary 2nd Degree / attemplt

Burglary Attempt 1 Burglary 3rd Degree / attempt

Burglary Business/Building 1 Careless Operation 6
Burglary Resldence 9 Child Neglect

Burglary Vehicle 4 Child Restraint Violation

Check Forgery 1 Criminal Domestic Violence 3
Child Abuse Criminal Domestic Violence High & Agg. 1
City Ordinance Violation 2 Criminal Sexual Conduct

Civil Matter 6 Defrauding Cab

Credit Card Abuse 2 Disorderly Conduct 12
Criminal Sexual Conduct Driver's License Violations / Restrictions 2
Death Investigation 1 Driving Under Suspension 20
Debit Card Abuse 1 Driving Under the Influence 11
Decoy Car / Operation Driving Wrong Side of Highway

Defraud Check 1 Equipment Violation

Defraud Food/Gas Bill Failure to Stop for Blue Lights

Defraud Innkeeper Failure to Surrender DL 1
Defraud Wrecker Failure to Yield Right of Way

Disabled Vehicle/Motorist 5 False Information to Law Enforcement 4
Disorderly Subjects 2 Following Too Closely 2
Disturbances 7 Forgery

Domestic Dispute 12 Fugitive from Justice 1
Embezzlement Golf Cart Violation

Escorts 5 Grand Larceny

Fight 3 Handicap Violation

Fireworks 3 Helmet Law Violation

Foot Patrol 20 Hitchhiking

Found Property / Article 5 Improper Lights

Harassment Calls 10 Improper Turn

Hit and Run Accidents 2 Kidnapping

Identitiy Theft Leaving Scene of Accident 1
Improper Parking 2 Liquor with Broken Seal

Incorrigible Juvenile Littering

Indecent Exposure

Information 37 Loud Noise

Intoxicated Driver 3 Malicious Damage to Properly 1
Intoxicated Pedestrian 4 Minor Possession Alcohol 6
Kidnapping Minor Possession Cigarettes 1
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Monthly Activity Report - NOVEMBER 2012

Calls for Service [ Field Activities

Charges and__Arr'ests" i

SBPD Prisoners Trans. to County Jail

Page 2 of 2

Littering MOPED Violations 1

Lost/Found Property Moving Violation (other) 9

Mail Tampering No DL in Possession 3

Malicious Damage to Auto 1 No Molorcycle DL

Malicious Damage to Business No Proof of insurance 12

Malicious Damage to Property 1 No SC Driver's License 7

Medical Calis/Assisting Fire Dept 8 Noise violation (animal)

Mentally lll Subject 1 Open Container 3

Message Delivery Operating Uninsured Vehicle 11

Misc Beach Problems Petit Larceny 3

Open Door Business 1 Possession Cocaine / Crack / Ice

Open Door Residence Possession Controlled Substance 6

Open Door Town Property Possession Criminal Tools or Implements

Open Door Vehicle Possession Heroin

Other 53 Possession of Weapon during Crime

Premises Check 40 Possession Stolen Goods < $2000

Prowler 1 Possession Stolen Goods > $2000

Public Assist 16 Possession Stolen Vehicle 2

Radar/Traffic Control 1 Possession with Intent to Dist Marijuana

Repossessions/Towed Vehicles Possession with Intent to Dist Other 2

Sanitation Problem Prostitution

Sex Crimes/Vice 1 Reckless Driving 5

Shopliiting 5 Registration Violations 30

Smoking Ordinance Violation Resisting Arrest 2

Stolen Property 13

Stolen Tag Seatbelt Violation 2

Stolen Vehicle 1 Shoplifting 2

Stolen Vehicle (recovered) 1 Simple Possession Marijuana 8

Street Department Problem 2 Smoking Ord Violation

Strong Armed Robbery Speeding (17 corridor) 11

Suicide Attempt Speeding (residential} 13

Suspicious Circumstances 186 Stop Sign Violation 9

Suspicious Person(s)/Vehicle(s) 70 Striking Fixtures on Highway

Towed Vehicle Strongarm Robbery

Traffic Complaints/Hazards 17 Supply Alcohol to Minor

Traffic Stops 290 Trespassing 1

Transport for Bond Hearing 27 Unlawful Carrying of Weapon

Trespassing 6 Unlawful Use of Telephone 3

Unknown Call Type Vehicle on Beach

Utility Problem Wipers/No Lights

Vandalism

Vehicle Accidents B TO 226

Warrant Service 19

Water/Street/Utility Problems e

Welfare Concern 5 _ Hoiry Cournty: Police Department 64
SC Highway Patrol / other agency 10
_Surfside Beach Police Department 7

873 "h-”- R T e I R 0 O Rl | 145
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Monthly Activity Report - DECEMBER 2012

Calls for Service / Field Activities .

| Ché_rgeé and Arresfé | '

Accessory to Felony

911 Hang-Ups 5 3
Abandoned Property Allow Unauthorized Operation of Motor Veh 6
Abandoned Vehicle 1 Anlmal at Large 1

Accident (injurles) 2 Armed Robbery

Accident (properly damage only) 1 Assault / Battery (1st degree)

Alarm Calls 70 Assault / Battery (2nd degree)

Alcohol Violation Assault / Battery (3rd degree) 1

Animal Calls 19 Bank Fraud

Armed Subject Bicycle Violations

Assault Blackmail / Extortion

Assisting other Agencies 9 Breach of Trust

Bomb Threat Breaking & Entering Motor Vehicle

Booking 64 Burglary 1st Degree / attempt

Breach of Trust 3 Burglary 2nd Degree / attempt

Burglary Attempt Burglary 3rd Degree / attempt

Burglary Business/Building 3 Careless Operation 5
Burglary Residence 3 Child Neglect

Burglary Vehicle 5 Child Restraint Violation

Check Forgery Criminal Domestic Violence 3
Child Abuse Criminal Domestic Violence High & Agg.

City Ordinance Violation 1 Criminal Sexuval Conduct

Civil Matter 10 Defrauding Cab

Credit Card Abuse Disorderly Conduct 9
Criminal Sexual Conduct Driver's License Violations / Restrictions 1

Death Investigation Driving Under Suspension 35
Debit Card Abuse Driving Under the Influence 13
Decoy Car / Operation Driving Wrong Side of Highway

Defraud Check 6 Equipment Violation

Defraud Food/Gas Bill Failure to Stop for Blue Lights 2
Defraud Innkeeper Failure to Surrender DL

Defraud Wrecker Failure to Yield Right of Way 3
Disabled Vehicle/Motorist 1 False Information to Law Enforcement 7
Disorderly Subjects 6 Following Too Closely

Disturbances Forgery 3
Domestic Dispute 7 Fugitive from Justice 3
Embezzlement Golf Cart Violation

Escorts 8 Grand Larceny

Fight 3 Handicap Violation

Fireworks 9 Helmet Law Violation

Foot Patrol 12 Hitchhiking

Found Property / Article 9 Improper Lights

Harassment Calls 7 Improper Turn

Hit and Run Accidents 1 Kidnapping

Identitiy Theft Leaving Scene of Accident

Improper Parking 6 Liquor with Broken Seal

Incorrigible Juvenile 1 Littering 1

Indecent Exposure

Information 38 Loud Noise

Intoxicated Driver 7 Malicious Damage to Property

Intoxicated Pedestrian 3 Minor Possession Alcohol

Kidnapping

Minor Possession Cigarettes
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Monthly Act|v1ty Report DECEMBER 2012

Calls for Service / Field Actuwtues_

Charges and Arrests

Littering 1 MOPED Violations 3

Lost/Found Property Moving Violation {other)

Mail Tampering No DL in Possession 2

Malicious Damage to Auto 1 No Motorcycle DL

Malicious Damage to Business No Proof of insurance 5

Malicious Damage to Property 2 No SC Driver's License 9

Medical Calls/Assisting Fire Dept 5 Noise violation (animal)

Mentally Ill Subject Open Container 1

Message Delivery Operating Uninsured Vehicle 22

Misc Beach Problems Petit Larceny 1

Open Door Business Possession Cocaine / Crack / Ice 1

Open Door Residence 1 Possession Controlled Substance 5

Open Door Town Property Possession Criminal Tools or Implements

Open Door Vehicle Possession Heroin

Other 25 Possession of Weapon during Crime

Premises Check 67 Possession Stolen Goods < $2000

Prowler Possession Stolen Goods > $2000

Public Assist 14 Possession Stolen Vehicle

Radar/Traffic Control 12 Possession with Intent to Dist Marijuana

Repossessions/Towed Vehicles 2 Possession with Intent to Dist Other 1

Sanitation Problem Prostitution

Sex Crimes/Vice Reckless Driving 1

Shoplifting 4 Registration Violations 57

Smoking Ordinance Violation 3 Resisting Arrest

Stolen Property 9

Stolen Tag Seatbelt Violation 5

Stolen Vehicle 2 Shoplifting 4

Stolen Vehicle (recovered) Simple Possession Marijuana 8

Street Department Problem Smoking Ord Violation

Strong Armed Robbery Speeding (17 corridor) 10

Suicide Attempt Speeding (residential) 3

Suspicious Circumstances 22 Stop Sign Violation 7

Suspicious Person(s)/Vehicle(s) 67 Striking Fixtures on Highway

Towed Vehicle Strongarm Robbery 1

Traffic Complaints/Hazards 10 Supply Alcohol to Minor 1

Traffic Stops 350 Trespassing 2

Transport for Bond Hearing 35 Unlawful Carrying of Weapon

Trespassing 4 Unlawful Use of Telephone 2

Unknown Call Type Vehicle on Beach

Utility Problem Wipers/No Lights 1

Vandalism 1

Vehicle Accidents OTA 256

Warrant Service 28

Water/Street/Utility Problems ! ) N ¥

Welfare Concern 1 Horry Counly F’olica Dapartmenl © .54
SC Highway Patrol / other agency 14
Surfslda Baach Police Deparlmanl 83

WAL S | ess || awens ' Tkt

SBPD Prisoners Trans. to County Jail 48
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Monthly Activity Report - 2011 Totals

Calls for Service / Field Activities . Charges and Arrests o i
911 Hang-Ups 115 Accessory to Felony 2
Abandoned Property Allow Unauthorized Operation of Motor Veh 6
Abandoned Vehicle 12 Anlmal at Large 13
Accident (injuries) 34 Armed Robbery
Accldent properly damage only) 204 Assault / Battery (1st degree) 2
Alarm Calls 604 Assault / Battery (2nd degree) 3
Alcohol Violation 1 Assault / Battery (3rd degree) 23
Animal Calls 233 Bank Fraud 14
Armed Subject 8 Bicycle Violations 1
Assault 68 Blackmail / Extortion
Assisting other Agencies 157 Breach of Trust 11
Bomb Threat Breaking & Entering Motor Vehicle 18
Booking (non-SBPD) 74 Burglary 1st Degree / attempt 6
Breach of Trust 12 Burglary 2nd Degree / attempt 1
Burglary Attempt 1 Burglary 3rd Degree / attempt 2
Burglary Business/Building 24 Careless Operation 34
Burglary Residence 59 Child Neglect 7
Burglary Vehicle 91 Child Restraint Violation 2
Check Forgery 1" Criminal Domestic Violence 31
Child Abuse 2 Criminal Domestic Violence High & Agg. 7
City Ordinance Violation 58 Criminal Sexual Conduct 2
Civil Matter 155 Defrauding Cab 1
Credit Card Abuse 29 Disorderly Conduct 160
Criminal Sexual Conduct 3 Driver's License Vlolations / Restrictions 42
Death Investigation 6 Driving Under Suspension 223
Debit Card Abuse 8 Driving Under the Influence 134
Decoy Car / Operation Driving Wrong Side of Highway 8
Defraud Check 7 Equipment Violation 46
Defraud Food/Gas Bill 10 Failure to Stop for Blue Lights 9
Defraud Innkeeper 3 Failure to Surrender DL 6
Defraud Wrecker Failure to Yield Right of Way 20
Disabled Vehicle/Motorist 14 False Information to Law Enforcement 22
Disorderly Subjects 128 Following Too Closely 15
Disturbances 150 Forgery 8
Domestic Dispute 173 Fugitive from Justice 6
Embezzlement 1 Golf Cart Violation 6
Escorts 63 Grand Larceny 5
Fight 49 Handicap Violation 6
Fireworks 180 Helmet Law Violation 14
Foot Patrol 106 Hitchhiking
Found Property / Article 89 improper Lights 21
Harassment Calls 82 Improper Turn 15
Hit and Run Accidents 36 Kidnapping 4
Identitiy Theft 6 Leaving Scene of Accident 11
Improper Parking 90 Liquor with Broken Seal 10
Incorrigible Juvenile 37 Littering 11
Indecent Exposure 4
Information 208 Loud Noise 18
Intoxicated Driver 48 Malicious Damage to Property 14
Intoxicated Pedestrian a8 Minor Possession Algohol 37
Kidnapping 2 Minor Possession Clgarettes 5
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Surfside Beach Police Department - Patrol Division

Monthly Act|V|ty Report 2011 Totals

_ Calls for Serwce ! F|eld Actlwtles i LA Charges and Arrests : g
Littering 3 MOPED Violations 25
Lost/Found Property 32 Moving Violation (other) 113
Mail Tampering No DL in Possession 19
Maliclous Damage to Auto 19 No Motorcycle DL 4
Maliclous Damage to Business 7 No Proof of Insurance 115
Malicious Damage to Property 36 No SC Driver's License 116
Medlcal Calls/Assisting Fire Dept 68 Noise violation (animal) 3
Mentally i Subject 13 Open Container 58
Message Delivery 1 Operating Uninsured Vehicle 73
Misc Beach Problems 33 Petit Larceny 17
Open Door Business 6 Possession Cocaine / Crack / Ice 10
Open Door Resldence 9 Possasslon Controlled Substance 37
Open Door Town Property Possession Criminal Tools or Implements 5
Open Door Vehicle 5 Possession Heroln
Other 266 Possesslon of Weapon during Crime 3
Premises Check 172 Possession Stolen Goods < $2000 10
Prowler 14 Possession Stolen Goods > $2000
Public Assist 216 Possesslon Stolen Vehicle
Radar/Traffic Control 32 Possesslon with Intent to Dist Marijuana 2
Repossessions/Towed Vehicles 17 Possession with Intent to Dist Other 12
Sanitation Problem 1 Prostitution
Sex Crimes/Vice 4 Reckless Driving 44
Shoplifting 36 Registration Violations 361
Smoking Ordinance Violation 9 Resisting Arrest 27
Stolen Property 210
Stolen Tag 15 Seatbelt Violation 110
Stolen Vehicle 24 Shoplifting 21
Stolen Vehicle (recovered) Simple Possession Marijuana 89
Street Department Problem 7 Smoking Violation
Strong Armed Robbery Speeding (17 corridor) 139
Suicide Attempt 13 Speeding (residential) 130
Suspicious Circumstances 294 Stop Sign Violation 67
Suspicious Person(s)/\VVehicle(s) 891 Striking Fixtures on Highway 3
Towed Vehicle 45 Strongarm Robbery
Traffic Complaints/Hazards 181 Supply Alcohol to Minor 1
Traffic Stops 3560 Trespassing 8
Transport for Bond Hearing 269 Unlawful Carrying of Weapon 4
Trespassing 47 Unlawful Use of Telephone 3
Unknown Call Type Vehicle on Beach 1
Utility Problem 2 Wipers / No Lights
Vandalism 24 Check Forgery
Vehicle Accidents 35 B P e el R Sl || 2693
Warrant Service 233
Water/Street/Utility Problems 5 3 j WA G el i iy 8
Welfare Concern 84 Horry County Pollce Deparlmanl 533

SC Highway Patrol/ other agency 124
Surfslde Beach Pollce Depamnem 757
T 10491 || 3 FIER R | 1414

SBPD Prisoners Trans. to County Jail 4865
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Monthly Activity Report - 2012 YEAR END TOTALS

| Calls for Service / Field Activities . " Charges and Arrests

911 Hang-Ups 68 Accessory to Felony 18
Abandoned Property 2 Allow Unauthorized Operation of Motor Veh 10
Abandoned Vehicle 9 Animal at Large 12
Accident (Injuries) 49 Armed Robbery 3
Accident (property damage only) 339 Assault / Battery (1st degree) 6
Alarm Calls 692 Assault / Battery (2nd degree) 3
Alcohol Violation 7 Assault / Battery (3rd degree) 33
Animal Calls 282 Bank Fraud 27
Armed Subject 5 Bicycle Violations

Assault 45 Blackmail / Extortion

Assisting other Agencies 199 Breach of Trust 23
Bomb Threat Breaking & Entering Motor Vehicle 16
Booking 848 Burglary 1st Degree / attempt 11
Breach of Trust 13 Burglary 2nd Degree / attempt 28
Burglary Attempt 8 Burglary 3rd Degree / attempt 2
Burglary Business/Building 15 Careless Operation 46
Burglary Residence 61 Child Neglect 6
Burglary Vehicle 77 Child Restraint Violation 6
Check Forgery 5 Criminal Domestic Violence 33
Child Abuse 2 Criminal Domestic Violence High & Agg. 7
City Ordinance Violation 49 Criminal Sexual Conduct

Civil Matler 176 Defrauding Cab 2
Credit Card Abuse 156 Disorderly Conduct 210
Criminal Sexual Gonduct 2 Driver's License Violations / Restrictions 24
Death Investigation 11 Driving Under Suspension 255
Debit Card Abuse 6 Driving Under the Influence 157
Decoy Car / Operation 1 Driving Wrong Side of Highway 7
Defraud Check 19 Equipment Violation 15
Defraud Food/Gas BIll 8 Failure to Stop for Blue Lights 9
Defraud Innkeeper 4 Failure to Surrender DL 3
Defraud Wrecker Falilure to Yield Right of Way 33
Disabled Vehicle/Motorist 39 False Information to Law Enforcement 31
Disorderly Subjects 132 Following Too Closely 12
Disturbances 164 Forgery 10
Domestic Dispute 158 Fugitive from Justice 13
Embezzlement Golf Cart Violation 7
Escorts 72 Grand Larceny 17
Fight 44 Handicap Violation 1
Fireworks 246 Helmet Law Violation 2
Foot Patrol 133 Hitchhiking

Found Property / Article 106 Improper Lights 24
Harassment Calls 86 Improper Turn 1
Hit and Run Accidents 38 Kidnapping 3
Identitly Theft 3 Leaving Scene of Accident 17
Improper Parking 64 Liquor with Broken Seal 7
Incorrigible Juvenile 13 Littering 12
Indecent Exposure 6 Harboring Runaway 1
Information 500 Loud Noise 22
Intoxicated Driver 66 Malicious Damage to Property 24
Intoxicated Pedestrian 82 Minor Possession Alcohol 46
Kidnapping Minor Possesslon Cigarettes 6

Page 1 of 2



Monthly Actlwty Report 2012 YEAR END TOTALS

. Calls for SerVIce [Field Actlvmes
Llttering

Charges and Arrests

2 MOPED Violations 28
Lost/Found Property 31 Moving Violation (other) 93
Mail Tampering No DL In Possession 21
Malicious Damage to Auto 19 No Motorcycle DL 4
Malicious Damage to Business 14 No Proof of Insurance 112
Maliclous Damage to Property 28 No SC Driver's License 130
Medlcal Calls/Assisting Fire Dept 84 Noise violation (animal) 2
Mentally Ill Subject 13 Open Container 66
Message Delivery 2 Operating Uninsured Vehicle 115
Misc Beach Problems 20 Petit Larceny 38
Open Door Business 6 Possession Cocaine / Grack / lce 7
Open Door Residence 11 Possession Controlled Substance 58
Open Door Town Property Possession Criminal Tools or implements 26
Open Door Vehicle 2 Possession Heroin
Other 701 Possession of Weapon during Crime
Premises Check 566 Possession Stolen Goods < $2000 20
Prowler 12 Possession Stolen Goods > $2000 1
Public Assist 247 Possession Stolen Vehicle 4
Radar/Traffic Control 37 Possession with Intent to Dist Marijuana
Repossessions/Towed Vehicles 21 Possession with Intent to Dist Other 7
Sanitation Problem Prostitution 8
Sex Crimes/Vice 6 Reckless Driving 99
Shoplifting 48 Registration Vlolations 322
Smoking Ordinance Violation 6 Resisting Arrest 29
Stolen Property 219 Sexual Exploitation of a Minor 5
Stolen Tag 4 Seatbelt Violation 56
Stolen Vehicle 21 Shoplifting 23
Stolen Vehicle (recovered) 9 Simple Possession Marijuana 117
Street Department Problem 11 Smoking Ord Violation 1
Strong Armed Robbery Speeding (17 corridor) 98
Suicide Attempt 7 Speeding (residential) 106
Suspiclous Circumstances 270 Stop Sign Violation 71
Suspicious Person(s)/Vehicle(s) 1076 Striking Fixtures on Highway 1
Towed Vehicle 3 Strongarm Robbery 1
Traffic Complaints/Hazards 185 Supply Alcohol to Minor 8
Traffic Stops 4022 Trespassing 18
Transport for Bond Hearing 345 Unlawful Carrying of Weapon 15
Trespassing 79 Unlawful Use of Telephone 12
Unknown Call Type Vehicle on Beach
Utility Problem 1 Wipers/No Lights 1
Vandalism 15
Vehicle Accidents 2985
Warrant Service 220
Water/Street/Utility Problems LS| ]
Welfare Concern 65 Ho_rry Counly Pollce Dapanment 786

1 SC Highway Patrol / other agency 167

4 Surfside Beach Police Deparlmen! 925

CTOTALS L T R : L Bl

SBPD Prisonars Trans. to County Jall 556
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POLICR
Surfside Beach Police Department - USMS Fugitive Task Force =

N7

Monthly Activity Report - DEC 2012

; Arrests WABE Bond 45 ‘Date : ~ Arrested (location) _'
Assault & Battery 1st Degree Pending 12/03/2012  |Surfside Beach
CDV 1st Pending 12/04/2012  |Surfside Beach
Assault & Battery 3rd Degree Pending 12/04/2012  |Surfside Beach
Operating Uninsured Motor Vehicle Pending 12/04/2012  |Horry County
Failure To Return Suspended Plate Pending 12/04/2012  |Horry County
Theft Of Controlled Substance Pending 12/04/2012  [Myrile Beach
Operating Uninsured Motor Vehicle Pending 12/05/2012  |Surfside Beach
Failure To Return Suspended Plate Pending 12/05/2012  |Surfside Beach
Failure To Return Suspended Plale Pending 12/05/2012  |Horry County
Operating Uninsured Motor Vehicle Pending 12/05/2012  [Horry County
Giving False Information To Police Pending 12/05/2012  |Horry County
DUS 1st Pending 12/06/2012  |Horry County
Attempted Strong Armed Robbery Pending 12/06/2012  |Horry County
Conspiracy Pending 12/06/2012  |Horry County
Failure To Stop For Blue Lights Pending 12/07/2012  |Myrtle Beach
Reckless Driving Pending 12/07/2012  [Myrlle Beach
Accessory After The Fact To A Felony Pending 12/07/2012  |Myitle Beach
Conspiracy Pending 12/07/2012  |Myrtle Beach
FTA DUS 1st $652.50 12/08/2012  |Surfside Beach
Filing A False Police Report Pending 12/13/2012  |Surfside Beach
FTA False Information To Police $470.00 12/14/2012  |Myrtle Beach
FTA DUS 1st $652.50 12/14/2012  |Horry County
FTA Driving Without A License $237.50 12/16/2012  |Horry County
FTA DUS 2nd $1,275.00 12/16/2012 Horry County
FTA Improper Start $237.50 12/16/2012  |Horry County
FTA No Moped License $133.75 12/16/2012  |Surfside Beach
FTA DUS 2nd $1,275.00 12/16/2012  [Surfside Beach
FTA Simple Possession Of Marijuana $620.00 12/21/2012  |Horry County
| s R 28
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FOLICR i,
Surfside Beach Police Department - General Criminal Investigations @ !

>,
>

Monthly Activity Report - December 2012

TITLE “ OPENED L: STATUS | Warrants ]I

12005702 PETIT LARCENY 06/09/12 OPEN
12006004 PETIT LARCENY 6/16/2012 OPEN
12006136 PETIT LARCENY 06/18/12 OPEN
12006207 PETIT LARCENY 06/20/12 OPEN
12006248 PETIT LARCENY 06/21/12 OPEN
12006346 GRAND LARCENY 06/23/12 OPEN
12006397 PETIT LARCENY 06/24/12 OPEN
12006524 PETIT LARCENY 06/27/12 OPEN
12006724 PETIT LARCENY 6/30/2012 OPEN
12006956 GRAND LARCENY 07/05/12 OPEN
12008092 FTC CARD FRAUD 8/1/2012 OPEN
12008775 MIPP 8/17/2012 OPEN
12008776 MIPP 08/17/12 OPEN
12008778 MIPP 08/17/12 OPEN
12008786 MIPP 08/17/12 OPEN
12008792 MIPP 08/17/12 OPEN
12008793 MIPP 8/17/2012 OPEN
12010561 ASSAULT/BATTERY 1ST DEGREE|  10/06/12 ARREST 1
12010566 GRAND LARCENY M/V 10/06/12 ARREST 1
12011001 LEAVING SCENE/ACCIDENT 10/19/12 OPEN
12011321 BURGLARY 2ND; MIPP; LARCENY|  10/26/12 OPEN
12011970 FTC CARD FRAUD 11/18/12 OPEN
12012004 PETIT LARCENY 11/13/12 OPEN
12012140 FTC CARD FRAUD 11/18/12 OPEN
12012190 THEFT OF CONT SUBST; MIPP | 11/15/2012 OPEN
12012237 GRAND LARCENY 11/26/2012 OPEN
12012702 BREAKING IT AUTO; MIPP; LARCENY|  12/11/12 OPEN
12012771 FTC CARD FRAUD; LARCENY 10/07/12 OPEN
12012815 BURGLARY; LARCENY; MIPP 12/09/12 OPEN
12012886 BREACH OF TRUST 07/24/12 OPEN
12012891 UNLAWFUL CONDUCT TOWARDS CHILD 12/12/12 OPEN
12012918 BURGLARY 2ND; MIPP; LARCENY| 12/16/12 OPEN
12011406 PETIT LARCENY 10/31/12 CLOSED
12011494 BURGLARY; LARCENY 11/02/12 CLOSED
12011501 BREAKING /T AUTO; LARCENY| 11/03/12 CLOSED
12011557 BREAKING I/T AUTO; LARCENY| 11/02/12 CLOSED
12011585 FORGERY 10/31/12 CLOSED
12011653 THEFT OF CONT SUBST 10/19/12 CLOSED
12011796 BURGLARY; MIPP; LARCENY| 11/09/12 CLOSED
12012006 ASSAULT/BATTERY 3RD DEGREE| 11/09/12 CLOSED
12012220 PETIT LARCENY 11/26/12 CLOSED
12012242 BURGLARY; LARCENY 11/27/12 CLOSED
12012267 BURGLARY; MIPP; LARCENY| 11/28/12 CLOSED
12012388 BURGLARY; MIPP; LARCENY| 12/02/12 CLOSED
12012421 BREAKING /T AUTOS; LARCENY| 12/03/12 CLOSED

. TOTAL: " t20
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Surfside Beach Fire Department

Town Council Report
January 8, 2013



The following is an activity report of the operations of the Fire Department from
December 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012

Fire Runs

Mutual Aid 1
Cooking Fire, Confined to container 1
Mobile Property, Vehicle fire 0
Brush, brush/grass mixture 1
Outside Equipment fire 0

Total 3
Rescue/Emergency Medical Incident
Rescue/EMS other 0

Medical Assist, assist EMS Crew 29

Motor Vehicle Accident/no injuries 1
Motor Vehicle Accident/with injuries 2
Total 33

Hazardous Condition / No Fire

Arcing Electrical Equipment 1
Vehicle Accident, General Cleanup 1
Total 2
Service Call
Water Problem, other 1
Person in Distress, other 2
Assist Invalid 2
Service Call, other 1

Unauthorized Burning 3



Cover Assignment, Stand By, Move-up 1

Total 10
Good Intent Call
Dispatched & Cancelled en-route 1
Total 1
False Alarm/False Call
Alarm System Activation, No Fire 2
False Alarm or False Call, No Fire 2
Total 4

Lost Estimates and Total Incidents

No Dollar Loss for this reporting period
Total Incidents for December 2012 {53}
Additional information for November 2012

Personnel dedicated an average of 36 man hours during the month for a total of 1,008
man hours.

Monthly Turn-out Gear inspection was completed per NFPA Requirements.

Hydrant testing was completed in December with problems reported to GSW&S.
Fire Inspections

Completed Inspections

9
Pending Inspections 7
Public Education Events 2
Plans Review 2
Pre Fire Plans 10

Public Education is on going in the Town of Surfside Beach, during the month the
department visited many of the businesses to insure that the businesses and the
residents that visit them were safe from Holiday decorations that might have been



unsafe. We are happy to report that all inspections proved that our education on fire
prevention was being followed. The town saw no fires relating to holiday decorations
during the season.

Fire Training

During the month of December all the required 1SO drills were conducted to the
requirements as set forth by the Insurance Service Organization, South Carolina Fire
Academy, National Fire Protection Association {NFPA}, and the Surfside Beach Fire
Department SOG's.

Career personnel received additional training during the month in apparatus operations,
pump and aerial operations as well as pre-plan review.

Lost Estimates and Total Incidents
No Dollar Loss for this reporting period

Total Incidents for December 2012 {53}

Staff Report

Surfside Beach Fire Department staff remains fairly constant with the addition of two
volunteers and no terminations or suspensions from service.

Lt. Mike Hans {Training} continues to prepare and implement training classes for fire
department personnel to meet ISO and NFPA requirements. We have developed a
training team committee to assist undertaking the project to create a training program
that will target the weaknesses of the volunteer firefighters to have them meet the
requirements of Firefighter levels 1 & 2. This program will improve the quality of the
training classes and drills. The intent is to make the classes interesting and to improve
the skill sets of each member of the department. The first stage of the Training
Program began on Monday evening January7th.

Lt. Faulkenberry {Inspections} continues to work on inspections and plan reviews. A
plan has been developed and implementation has begun to improve all inspections and
pre-plans and that all will be completed in the off season which will allow the businesses
to be ready for the opening of the new season in the spring and will keep them from
interruptions during their busy time. This plan also will reduce the amount of time spent
on the street by including the ISO required pre-plan to be completed at the same time
as the inspection.

Lt Richards {Facilities} has addressed the minor issues that have come up in the
month. He continues to fine tune his plan to stay on top of required maintenance and to
maintain the needed supplies required to carry out the tasks.



Engineer Sacra continues to be a good employee and is continuing his education to
pass his Fire Marshal Certification. He is in charge of the pre-plan drawings and is
working on an apparatus inventory project that has been assigned to him.

Engineer Drew works hard to complete his assignments and is working on his
firefighter skills. He has been given the responsibility to over see the two support
vehicles to insure their operational status and cleanliness which he has been doing a

fine job at.

Engineer Zimpleman continues to be a good employee who is always looking for
something to work on. He completed the South Carolina Fire Academy course for Fire
Instructor 1 and passed. During the month of January he will be attending the academy
to complete the Fire Marshal Certification class.

Chief Packard continues to recuperate from surgery, progress is slow but he continues
to work hard at rehab so the he can return to work.

Respecitfully Submitted
D P gﬂ' z. , 4

Acting Fire Chief



Surfside Beach Fire Department

Town Council Report
January 1, 2012 / December 31, 2012



Total Incident Report 2012

The following is an activity report of the operations of the Fire Department from
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012

Fire Runs

Mutual Aid 23
Building Fires 3
Cooking Fire, Confined to container 2
Mobile Property, Vehicle fire 2
Passenger Vehicle Fires 1
Natural Vegetation Fire, other 2
Brush, brush/grass mixture 5
Outside Rubbish, Trash, or Waste Fire 1

Dumpster / Other Outside Trash Receptacle 3
Outside Equipment fire 1
Total 43

Rescue/Emergency Medical Incident

Rescue/EMS other 8
Medical Assist, assist EMS Crew 411
Emergency Medical Service, other 1
Motor Vehicle Accident / No Injuries 31
Motor Vehicle Accident / with Injuries 34
Elevator Entrapment 3
Search for Lost Person, other 1
Swimmer In Distress 1

Total 493



Hazardous Condition / No Fire
Arcing Electrical Equipment

Vehicle Accident, General Cleanup

Hazardous Condition Tree in Roadway

Combustible / Flammable Gas / Liquid

Gas Leak {Natural Gas / LPG}

Toxic Condition, other

Electric Wiring / Equipment

Heat from Short Circuit

Power Line Down

Arcing, Shorted, Electric Equipment
Total

Service Call

Water Problem, other

Water or Steam Leak

Lock-out

Person in Distress, other

Assist Invalid

Service Call, other

Smoke or Odor Removal

Public Service Assistance, other

Assist Police or other Governmental Agency

Police Matter
Pubic Service

Unauthorized Burning

20

w N M

31



Cover Assignment, Stand By, Move-up
Total

Good Intent Call

Dispatched & Cancelled en-route

Good Intent Call, other

Wrong Location

No Incident Found on Arrival at Dispatch

Steam, Other Gas Mistaken for Smoke

Smoke Scare, Odor of Smoke

Steam, Vapor, Fog

Smoke from Barbecue, Tar Kettle
Total

False Alarm/False Call

False Alarm or False Call, No Fire

System Malfunction, other

Sprinkler Activation Due to Malfunction

Smoke Detector Activation / Malfunction

Heat Detector Activation / Malfunction

Alarm System Sounded / Malfunction

Sprinkier Activation, No Fire

Smoke Detector Activation, No Fire

Detector Activation, No Fire

Alarm System Activation, No Fire

Total

65

31

22
62



Severe Weather / Natural Disaster

Lightning Strike / No Fire 8
Total 8
Total Incident Count for 2012 722

The fire department handled a variety of calls in 2012 without a loss of life or a major
loss of property. The fire department is committed to serving and protecting the
Residents, Business Owners and Visitors of the Town of Surfside Beach by providing
professional and dedicated service by the volunteers and career personnel.



January 08, 2012 Meeting

6A. Departmental Reports

a.

Staff issued one new residential permit in December for 312 North Oak Drive. A
total of 60 permits were issued in December and 69 building inspections were
made as well as 18 tree inspections. 16 sets of plans were reviewed or re-reviewed
after corrections were made and resubmitted and 40 business licenses were issued
during this period.

The department also welcomed a new employeé, Sean Boysel, who has assumed
the position of permitting technician.

6B. Administrator’s Report

a.

Policy change to the nepotism section of the personnel manual
i.  Has been made and distributed to all employees
ii.  All employees have signed that they have received a copy of the changes
and understand them

Employee disclosure statements for 2013
1. Were distributed for signature
il. All employees have now completed and signed them
iii. No conflicts were found to exist and the approved forms were placed in
the respective personnel files
iv. My form was reviewed and approved by the mayor

Since we have a minimum of 4 council members leaving for the MASC events in
Columbia on the 11", I would like to get a consensus of council to either cancel
the meeting or change the date from February 12" to the prior Tuesday, February
5% In addition, if the meeting is moved to the Sth, I would like consensus to
reschedule the Planning Commission Meeting, as it is falls on that date. May I
please have a consensus Mr. Mayor?

I wanted to get a consensus of council to either support or not support the
recommendation of the Keep Surfside Beach Beautiful Committee to have an
official “Yard of the Month” award. This would include the purchase of one small
sign to be placed in the yard selected for the month, a letter of acknowledgement
and congratulations from the mayor for each monthly recipient and some PR
coverage on the website, in the town newsletter and also a press release to media
outlets. May I please have a consensus Mr. Mayor?



e. I would like a consensus of council regarding Ordinance 12-0727, Section 9-16
Decals and Exemptions. It was not stipulated in the new ordinance that it was to
replace (a), (b) and (c) and that the exemptions from parking fees for (d) Disabled
Veterans and Purple Heart Recipients, (¢) Handicapped Persons, and (f) Town
Employees should remain in effect, as stipulated in the original ordinance. May I
please have a consensus Mr. Mayor that (d), (¢), and (f) be added back in to
Section 9-16 exactly as they appear in the original ordinance?

f. Lastly, I would like to get a consensus of council to spend $5,789.88 from the line
item in hospitality to trade in our 27 generation 3, .40 caliber glocks for 27
generation 4 models. There is currently over $7,000 remaining in this line item.
Staff would also initiate a replacement program to eliminate the need to replace
an entire inventory in the future. Most of our weapons are in the 10 — 12 year age
range and with the recent failure of one of the weapons to fire during qualification
on the range this would seem a prudent measure to reduce liability. May I please
have a consensus Mr. Mayor?

7. Business Agenda:




MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC § 9-16

Sec. 9-16. Decals and exemptions.

(a) Decals issued for full time resident vehicles not including golf carts, persons residing
within the corporate limits of the town shall be entitled to one (1) freedecal per vehicle, to be
issued by the town, upon verification of current vehicle registratiop? Such decal will be placed
on the vehicle pursuant to instructions given by town hall st hen obtaining the decal. The
decal shall be valid for the calendar year in which issued. Sajd deeal will show (1) decal number
issued, and (2) year for which decal is valid. Such dec all allow a resident to park free of

charge in metered or pay station areas when space j available.

(b) Decal issued for nonresident residential Swner vehicles not including golf carts. All
nonresident residential property owners within the corporate limits are entitled to purchase
one (1) decal per vehicle for the sum of fopt§ dollars ($40.00) each, upon verification of proof of
property ownership. Such decal will bg/placed on the vehicle pursuant to instructions given by
town hall staff when obtaining the gécal. The decal shall be valid for the calendar year in which
issued. Said decal will show (1) gécal number issued, and (2) year for which decal is valid. Such
decal shall allow a nonresidefit property owner to park free of additional charges in metered

or pay station areas whep/space is available.

(¢) Decal issued fopkolf carts only. All persons owning golf carts within the corporate limits
of town shall register their golf cart with the town police department for a fee of two dollars
($2.00). This fegrwvill include a decal that is valid for two (2) years from the date of issue and
will be placed/on the golf cart by the police staff. Such decal shall allow registered golf carts to
il golf cart only designated parking areas. The issued decal will show:

egistration number.
Years for which decal is valid.
(8) Golf cart rules.

0\7(d) Disabled veterans and Purple Heart recipients are exempt from parking fees. When a
ehicle displays a disabled veterans or Purple Heart license plate issued by the department of
OF (JQ motor vehicles or appropriate authority.

_)‘ ) (e) Handicapped persons are exempt from parking fees. When a vehicle displays a handi-
capped license plate issued by a proper authority, or a handicapped windshield hanger, either
the driver of or a passenger in a vehicle displaying a handicapped license plate or windshield

hanger must be a "handicapped” person.

J\l\&d \

> (f) Employees. Every town employee shall be entitled to one (1) decal, which will allow the
employee to park free of charge in metered areas subject to conditions set forth hereinabove in
paragraph (a) and other applicable ordinances. Employee shall present his or her employee
identification card along with the vehicle registration for the vehicle on which the decal will be
applied.
(Ord. No. 96-0385, 10-22-96; Ord. No. 93-0396, 5-27-97; Ord. No. 01-0452, 3-13-01; Ord. No.
09-0656, 3-10-09; Ord. No. 09-0675, 7-14-09; Ord. No. 10-0679, 3-9-10; Ord. No. 12-0717,
7-25-12)

State law reference—Similar provisions, S.C. Code 1976, 3 56-5-2585

Supp Mo 13 cDo7



TO: Micki Fellner, Town Administrator

FROM: Rodney L. Keziah, Chief of Police {Interim) Zf/l//@é—/

DATE: December 14, 2012

RE: Duty Firearms Replacement

| have attached a quotation from Lawmen’s Public Safety, our SC State Contract Vendor, for the purchase
and replacement of all of our issued duty handguns. We are receiving a very generous trade-in allotment for

our current guns. Most of our current handguns are in the 10-12 year age range.

Per your request, | have checked with Finance, and found that there is $7693.00 left in the line item for the
initial gun replacements that were denied back in June.

With this purchase, our entire inventory will be replaced with new state of the art weapons of the same
caliber and brand that we are currently carrying. By purchasing the same caliber and type, this keeps the
cost down by not having to re-qualify officers, buy new holsters, or buy additional ammunition.

We just recently completed our annual required firearms qualification in Georgetown. During the
qualification we had one of our current weapons break and malfunction to the point of it being inoperable.
The officer was given a spare weapon from inventory to finish the qualification. We were able to repair the
gun a couple days later with several replacements parts by our staff armorer. This gun had just recently
been through a thorough inspection by our staff armorer; however with the age of the guns this is always a

possibility.

| feel that this purchase will give our officers the best equipment possible, reduce the town’s liability, and
allow us to inijtiate a replacement program in the future to alleviate the need for full fleet inventory at one

time.

Thanks for your consideration into this request. Please contact me if you have any questions.

Telephone (843) 913-6368 e Facsimile (843)238-1832



{}
\\
REMITTO: °

3319 Anvil Place
Raleigh, NC 27603
Ph: 915.779.6141

Tawme

SALES QUOTE

F
ns)
uppliers of Law Enforcement Suppliies

3440 St. Vardell Ln. Ste H
Charlotte, NC 28217
Ph: 704,494, 7575

Ph: 803.798.2253

3315 Broad River Rd. Ste 120
Columbia, 5C 28210

SQ-166179 | 12/12/2012

Customer J Contact Ship To ‘
e ————— A ———
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH SURFSIDE BEACH PD
ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RODNEY KEZIAH
ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 811 PINE DRIVE
1| 115 US HIGHWAY 17 NORTH SURFSIDE BEACH SC 29575
SURFSIDE BEACH SC 29575
Tel: (843)913-6335
Fax: (843)238-1882
Account Terms Due Date Account Rep Schedule Date
SURFSI NET 15 12/27/2012 RAY PARKER 12/12/2012
Quotation PO # Reference Ship VIA Page Printed
SQO-166179 RODNEY KEZIAH 1 12/14/2012
10:30:46AM
L | Item / Model / Brand Qty Price Discount Amount
Description uM $
- — e e S SR B .
1| GLOPG22507 / 764503057021 27 $409.00 $0.00 $11,043.00
GLOCK 22 .40 GEN4 5LB GNS I EA |
2| GLOPG27507 / 764503627026 2 $409.00 $0.00 $818.00
GLOCK 27 .40 GEN4 5,5LB GNS EA
3| TRADETAXSC 23 $-250.00 $0.00 $-5,750.00
GLOCK, 22 GEN 3 WITH 3 MAGS AND NIGHT SIGHTS, EA
5 LD TRIGGER.
i
4| TRADETRAXSC 2 $-250.00 $0.00 $-500.00 |
GLOCK, 23 GEN 3 WITH 3 MAGS AND NIGHT SIGHTS EA l
|
5| TRADETAXSC 1 l $-250.00 50.00 $-250.00 |
II GLOCK, 27 GEN 3 WITH 3 MAGS AND NIGHT SIGHTS 1 EA ‘
1 |
1 {
. |
| | \
| |
i | ' ; :
N R " . IS TV M _____}__ e
| **PLEASE VERIFY THAT THE PART NUMBERS AND DESCRIPTIONS Tax Details Taxable $5,361.00
ARE CORRECT BEFORE SUBMITTING YOUR ORDER. SCSCHCP $428.880 ‘ ,
| **RESTOCKING FEES MAY APPLY TO RETURNED ITEMS. ‘
**FREIGHT WILL BE ADDED TO ALL INVOICES. Total Tax | $428.88
Exempt | $0.00 |
*+*PRICES QUOTED ARE BASED ON PAYMENT BY CHECK OR CASH. |
Total | $5,789.88
**QUOTE TS GOOD FOR 30 DAYS. | ]
|
|Balance $5,789.88




ISSUE PAPER FOR TOWN COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Meeting Date: January 8, 2013 Prepared by: Sabrina Mo:ris
Ordinance #: 12-0729 Date Prepared: January 2, 2013

Subject: Proposed Ordinance to amend Chapter 17 by adding Article IX § 17-900 thru 17-

920 to allow for the establishment of the Design Overlay District

BACKGROUND:

The creation of the Design Overlay District would Promote Community Pride and protect property values
by having design standards that have a positive impact on the town’s appearance; encourage economic
development by providing a more visually inviting atmosphere to attract commerce for existing and
potential businesses; promote “Quality” over “Quantity”. Quality development will come if guidelines
are in place. These developments will be built to stay and promote what we see as a growing economy.

A Public Hearing and workshop was held at the October 23, 2012 Council meeting and the Town Council
went through each section of the ordinance and made amendments as a whole. Staff has also met with the
Business Committee and individual council members and members of the general public to explain and
receive comments. | have attached the proposed ordinance to the Issue Paper with the revisions teing in
red. The gists of the changes are as follows:

The C3 zoning district has been removed

Change of tenant requirements have been removed

Clear direction has been included as to when and what each trigger will require.

Existing metal buildings have been removed from the requirements of Section 17-908
(Architectural Design Standards) and will be allowed to remain as is as long as they are in good
condition and free of damage and/or visible defects

¢ The requirements of Section 17-911 has been removed from the areas within the C2 zoning
district on the North side of 3 Avenue South from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive to the South side
of 1¥ Avenue North from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive.

Definitions have been added

Clear direction has been included as to when certain standards apply to new construction only
Roofing colors and the requirement to use flat paint on exteriors have been removed.
Retention/detention ponds have been included in the landscaping calculation up to 5% ot the total
area.

e Visual clearance requirements have been added

RECOMMENDATION

The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend the Design Overlay District be appioved as
first presented. The Beautification Committee has reviewed the ordinance and has also recomme 1ded the
document. At the request of Council, the Business Committee has once again reviewed the proposed
changes and approved the document.

ATTACHMENTS:

Proposed text amendment — Design Overlay District
Map outlining the proposed Design Overlay District boundaries
Resolution from the Planning Commission recommending the Ordinance



Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

(a) Everything within the Design Overlay District shall also meet all underlying zoning district requirements
set forth in Chapter 17.

(b) Provisions of this ordinance shall be held to be the minimum requirements adopted.
{c) If requirements set forth herein are in conflict with the requirements of any other lawfully adopted rule,
regulation or ordinance, the most restrictive, or that imposing the higher standard shall govern.

SECTION 17-903. APPLICABILITY

The requirements of this ordinance shall apply in any of the following circumstances:

(a) New Construction

{b) Addition or enlargement of an existing building, including combining existing units when removing load
bearing walls.

{c}) Change of use or change of ownership.

(d) Redevelopment of parking lots, including resurfacing shall cause landscaping and parking areas to be
brought into compliance.
When dwellings are converting into a commercial business property.

{e)(f) When renovations to an existing building exceed twenty percent (20%) of the appraised value
of the building as indicated in the Horry County tax records or a curfeént certified appraisal of the structure
before the start of renovations the entire property shall be-brought into compliance.

Al When a single building or 50% of the total square footage of‘a strip center has been vacant (not
open to public) for over 180 days, or for one year in the case of seasonal uses.
{gdth) The requirements of Section17-908 shall not apply to existing metal buildings (as built). Existing

metal buildings shall be maintained in good condition and freé of damage and/or visible defects. Existing
facades shall be maintained or improved.

(Ml The requirements of Section17-911 shall. not apply to areas within the C2 zoning on the North
side of 3" Avenue South from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive to the South side of 1** Ave. North from Poplar
Drive to Floral Drive.

{i}(1] Accessory structures used in conjunction with businesses shall also meet these requirements.

SECTION 17-904. DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise stated; the following words shall, for the purpose of this chapter, have the meanings indicated in
this section. Words used in the present tense include the future. The singular number includes the plural and the
plural the singular. The word "shall" is mandatory and the word "may" is permissive. Words or phrases not
specifically defined herein shall have their customary dictionary meanings.

Change of Ownership - a transfer from one person or entity to another at a point of sale. This definition is not
intended for ownership that has been inherited or handed down from generation to generation within the same
family.

Change of Use = Structures are classified with respect to occupancy in one or more of the groups listed below
(based on the International Building Code). Changing from one classification to another classification constitutes a
Change in use.

Assembly Mercantile

Business Residential

Educational Storage

Factory and Industrial Utility and Miscellaneous
High Hazard Institutional
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Debra Herrmann

From: Debra Herrmann [dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org]

Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2013 1.56 PM

To: The Hon. Ann Dodge ; The Hon. Beth Kohimann; The Hon. Doug Samples; The Hon. Mark
Johnson; The Hon. Mary Beth Mabry; The Hon. Randle M. Stevens; The Hon. Rod Smith

Cc: ‘Micki Fellner’; 'smorris@surfsidebeach.org'

Subject: FW: Overlay error

Page two of Ordinance #12-0729 has an error on the paragraph lettering. A copy of the
corrected page will be on delivered at the meeting. The content did not change...the
sentence in paragraph (e) that begins “When renovations to an existing...” should be
paragraph (f), not part of paragraph (e). Please see Ms. Morris’ message below.

Debra

Debra Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk
dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org - 843.913.6333

Click Here to Subscribe to Public Notices & Agendas
Click to LIKE: Facebook.com/SurfsideBeachTownClerk

This e-mail transmission, in its entirety and including all attachments, is intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom it is addressed and may contain sensitive information
which is privileged, confidential, and the disclosure of which is govemed by applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that dis~osing, distributing,
copying, or taking any action in relation to this e-mail is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the related
message and any attachments. WARNING: All e-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to public disclosure under the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act
(FOIA), §30-410 SC Code of Laws.

From: Sabrina Morris [mailto:morrisplanner@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2013 11:23 AM

To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org

Subject: Overlay error

17-903
The requirements of this ordinance shall apply in any of the following circumstances:

(a) New Construction

(b) Addition or enlargement of an existing building, including combining
existing units when removing load bearing walls.

(c) change of use or change of ownership.

(d) Redevelopment of parking lots, including resurfacing shall cause
landscaping and parking areas to be brought into compliance.

(e) when dwellings are converting into a commercial business proj.arty.
(f) when renovations to an existing building exceed twenty percent (20%) of

the appraised value

of the building as indicated in the Horry County tax records or a current
certified appraisal of the structure before the start of renovations the
entire property shall be brought into compliance.

(g) when a single building or 50% of the total square footage of a strip
center has been vacant (not open to public) for over 180 days, or for one
year in the case of seasonal uses.

(h) The requirements of Sectionl7-908 shall not ap?1y to existing metal
buildings ?as built). Existing metal buildings shall be maintained in good
condition and free of damage and/or visible defects. Existing facades shall
be maintained or improved.

(i) The requirements of Sectionl7-911 shall not apply to areas within the C2
zoning on the North side of 3

rd Avenue South from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive to the South side of 1st Ave.
North from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive.

(a) Accessory structures used in conjunction with businesses shall also meet
these requirements.



Debra Herrmann

From: Debra Herrmann [dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org]

Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2013 1:56 PM

To: The Hon. Ann Dodge ; The Hon. Beth Kohimann; The Hon. Doug Samples; The Hon. Mark
Johnson; The Hon. Mary Beth Mabry; The Hon. Randle M. Stevens; The Hon. Rod Smith

Cc: 'Micki Fellner’; 'smorris@surfsidebeach.org'

Subject: FW: Overlay error

Page two of Ordinance #12-0729 has an error on the paragraph lettering. A copy of the
corrected page will be on delivered at the meeting. The content did not change...the
sentence in paragraph (e) that begins “When renovations to an existing...” should be
paragraph (f), not part of paragraph (e). Please see Ms. Morris’ message below.

Debra

Debra Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk
dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org - 843.913.6333

Click Here to Subscribe to Public Notices & Agendas
Click to LIKE: Facebook.com/SurfsideBeachTownClerk

This e-mail transmission, in its entirety and including all attachments, is intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom it is addressed and may contén sensitive information
which is privileged, confidential, and the disclosure of which is governed by applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disc.asing, distributing,
copying, or taking any action in relation to this e-mail is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately #nd destroy the related
message and any attachments, WARNING: All e-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to public disclosure under the South Carolina Fr=2dom of Information Act
(FOIA), §30-410 SC Code of Laws.

From: Sabrina Morris [mailto:morrisplanner@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2013 11:23 AM

To: dherrmann@surfsidebéeach.org

Subject: Overlay error

17-903
The requirements of this ordinance shall apply in any of the following circumstances:

(a) New Construction

(b) Addition or enlargement of an existing building, including combining
existing units when removing load bearing walls.

(c) Change of use or change of ownership.

(d) Redevelopment of parking lots, including resurfacing shall cause
Tandscaping and parking areas to be brought into compliance.

(e) when dwellings are converting into a commercial business proparty.
"t When renovations to an existing building exceed twenty perceat (20%) of

the appraised value

of the building as indicated in the Horry County tax records or a current
certified appraisal of the structure before the start of renovations the
entire property shall be brought into compliance.

(g9) when a single building or 50% of the total square footage of a strip
center has been vacant (not open to public) for over 180 days, or for one
year in the case of seasonal uses.

(h) The requirements of Sectionl7-908 shall not apply to existing metal
buildings (as built). Existing metal buildings shall be maintained in good
condition and free of damage and/or visible defects. Existing facades shall
be maintained or improved.

(i) The requirements of Sectionl7-911 shall not apply to areas within the C2
zoning on the North side of 3

rd Avenue South from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive to the South side of 1st Ave.
North from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive.

(g) Accessory structures used in conjunction with businesses shall also meet
these requirements.



I see the problem. E somehome incorporated two requirements that should be individual 1in
numbering. I have highlighted what needs to be changed... basicly separate the two
requirements in E and re-letter the remaining requirements.

Email or call me if you have any questions!

Thanks!

Sabrina



Debra Herrmann

From: Sabrina Morris [morrisplanner@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2013 11:23 AM

To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org

Subject: Overlay error

17-903

The requirements of this ordinance shall apply in any of the following circumstances:

(a) New Construction

(b) Addition or enlargement of an existing building, including combining

existing units when removing load bearing walls.

(c) change of use or change of ownership.

(d) Redevelopment of parking Tlots, including resurfacing shall cause

landscaping and parking areas to be brought into compliance.

(e) when dwellings are converting into a commercial business property.

(6 ) when renovations to an existing building exceed twenty percent (20%) of

the appraised value

of the building as indicated in the Horry County tax records or a current

certified appraisal of the structure before the start of renovations the

entire property shall be brought into compliance.

(g) when a single building or 50% of the total square footage of a strip

center has been vacant (not open to public) for over 180 days, or for one

year in the case of seasonal uses.

(h) The requirements of Sectionl7-908 shall not apply to existing metal

buildings (as built). Existing metal buildings shall be maintained in good

condition and free of damage and/or visible defects. Existing facades shall

be maintained or improved.

(i) The requirements of Sectionl7-911 shall not apply to areas within the C2

zoning on the North side of 3

rd Avenue South from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive to the South sice of 1st Ave.

North from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive.

(g) Accessory structures used in conjunction with businesses shal' also meet

these requirements.
I see the problem. E somehome incorporated two requirements that should be individual in
numbering. I have highlighted what needs to be changed... basicly separate the two
requirements in E and re-letter the remaining requirements.

Email or call me if you have any questions!
Thanks!!

Sabrina



Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH
) TO AMEND CHAPTER 17 OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF
COUNTY OF HORRY ) ORDINANCES TO ADD ARTICLE IX §17-900 THRU 17-520
) TO ESTABLISH A DESIGN OVERLAY DISTRICT
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in council duly assembled adopted
Chapter 17 to include § 17-202(a) which allows for the amendment of the ordinance when the public necessity,
convenience, general welfare, or good zoning practices justify such action; and X

WHEREAS, the Surfside Beach Planning Commission has adopted its resolution captioned “Resolution of
the Surfside Beach Planning Commission recommending the amendment of Chapter 17 to add Artlcle IX, § 17-900
—17-920 of the towns Code of Ordinance to establish the Design Overlay District; and,

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council has determined that the facts and fihdings support the
recommendations of the Surfside Beach Planning Commission,

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that Chapter 17 of the Town’s Code of
Ordinances be amended to add Article 1X, §17-900 — 17-920 to read:

SECTION 17-900. PURPOSE AND INTENT

(a) The purpose of Article IX is to create a Design Qverlay District containing standards that supplement the
basic zoning requirements of the town’s commercial districts.

(b) Design Overlay standards are intended to benefit the entire community by promoting attractive,
harmonious, well-designed commercial areas. These standards govern landscaping, signage, color
schemes and architectural details within the overlay area. Application of these standards to future
development or redevelopment is expected to result in multiple benefits:

e  Protection of property values by positive impact on the town’s appearance.
e Encouragement of economic development by providing a more visually inviting atmosphere to
attract commerce for existing and potential businesses.

e  Establishment of unique character to the town’s commercial areas while respecting surrounding
uses

SECTION 17-901. DESIGN OVERLAY DISTRICT ESTABLISHED

This District shall include:
e All parcels either partially or completely within the Cland C2 zoned area of the town, excluding
parcels that front on Sandy Lane.
e Parcels located on Sandy Lane but combined with parcels fronting on Hwy 17 or frontage Road
must comply.
e  Properties that are rezoned to C1 or C2 after adoption of this ordinance.

SECTION 17-902. DESIGN OVERLAY DISTRICT STANDARDS ARE MINIMUM  STANDARDS
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

(a) Everything within the Design Overlay District shall also meet all underlying zoning district requirements
set forth in Chapter 17.

(b) Provisions of this ordinance shall be held to be the minimum requirements adopted.
(c) if requirements set forth herein are in conflict with the requirements of any other lawfully adopted rule,
regulation or ordinance, the most restrictive, or that imposing the higher standard shall govern.

SECTION 17-903. APPLICABILITY

The requirements of this ordinance shall apply in any of the following circumstances:

(a) New Construction

(b) Addition or enlargement of an existing building, including combining existing units when removing load
bearing walls.

{c) Change of use or change of ownership.

(d) Redevelopment of parking lots, including resurfacing shall cause landscaping and parking areas to be
brought into compliance.

(e) When dweliings are converting into a commercial business property.

When renovations to an existing building exceed twenty percent (20%) of the appraised value
of the building as indicated in the Horry County tax records or a current certified appraisal of the structure
before the start of renovations the entire property shall be brought into compliance.

(f)  When a single building or 50% of the total square footage of a strip center has been vacant (not open to
public) for over 180 days, or for one year in the case of seasonaluses.

(g) The requirements of Section17-908 shall not apply to existing metal buildings (as built). Existing metal
buildings shall be maintained in good condition and free of damage and/or visible defects. Existing
facades shall be maintained or improved.

{h) The requirements of Section17-911 shall not apply to areas within the C2 zoning on the North side of 3™
Avenue South from Poplar Drive to Floral Drive to the South side of 1% Ave. North from Poplar Drive to
Floral Drive.

(i) Accessory structures used in conjunction with businesses shall alsoc meet these requirements.

SECTION 17-904. DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise stated, the following words shall, for the purpose of this chapter, have the meanings indicated in
this section. Words used in the present tense include the future. The singular number includes the plural and the
plural the singular. The word "shall" is mandatory and the word "may" is permissive. Words or phrases not
specifically defined herein shall have their customary dictionary meanings.

Change of Ownership - a transfer from one person or entity to another at a point of sale. This definition is not
intended for ownership that has been inherited or handed down from generation to generation within the same

family.

Change of Use — Structures are classified with respect to occupancy in one or more of the groups listed below
(based on the International Building Code). Changing from one classification to another classification constitutes a
Change in use.

Assembly Mercantile

Business Residential

Educational Storage

Factory and Industrial Utility and Miscellaneous
High Hazard Institutional
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

Development Director - The Director of the Town of Surfside Beach Planning, Building and Zoning Department,
and/or his designee, shall serve as development administrator.

Gable roof - A two-sided sloped roof

GABLE ROOF

Hipped roof - a type of roof where all sides slope downwards to the walls, usually with a fairly gentle slope.

HIP ROOF
Mansard roof - A four-sided roof having a double slope on all sides, with the lower slope much steeper than the

upper.

MANSARD ROOF

Parapet- A low protective wall along the roof edge of astructure

Resurfacing of Parking lot — Grinding or milling off selected areas of old asphalt; patching or resealing; repairing
any pot holes or badly deteriorated areas.

Unadorned - not painted or covered by some acceptable material to increase its beauty or distinction.
SECTION 17-905. ISSUANCE OF PERMITS/CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

(a) Development Director shall review each application for a zoning or building permit to determine if it

adheres to these criteria.
(b) No zoning or building permit will be issued unless these requirements have been addressed to the

satisfaction of the Development Director.
(c) No Certificate of Occupancy will be issued until the requirements of this Article have been met.

SECTION 17-906. DESIGN STANDARDS

In addition to meeting the underlying zoning district requirements, any projects in the Design Overlay District
which are approved by the Development Director shall meet the following design standards:

(a) Site Design Standards

(b) Architectural Design Standards
(c) Sign Design Standards

(d) Color Scheme Standards
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

(e} Landscaping Design Standards

1. Landscaping requirements for perimeter parking areas
Perimeters adjacent to public rights of way

Perimeters not adjacent to public rights of way
Interior Parking area requirements

Landscape requirements for signs

6. Llandscape buffer requirements

IS o S

(f} Parking Area

SECTION 17-907. SITE DESIGN STANDARDS

Plant materials for required landscaping shall be selected and placed with regards to the estimated
mature height and width of such materials.

Site lighting shall be from a concealed light source fixture and shall not interfere with the vision of vehicle
traffic. All exterior lighting shall be arranged and instalied so that the direct or reflected illumination does
not impede on surrounding properties.

Lighting shall enhance the overall aesthetics of the site.

Lighting source {light bulbs) shall not be visible. They shall be shielded to reflect down onto the ground
and not onto the street or neighboring property.

Lighting fixtures shall be limited to 21 feet in height.

All lighting sources shall be white or off-white in color.

New construction of utility or service lines must be underground. Exposed wires, pipes or conduits are
not acceptable.

Chain link fencing shall not be placed in the front yard of property. If chain link fencing will be utilized, it
shall be black plastic coated galvanized chain link fencing with landscaping on the side and rear of
property. Fencing of any kind proposed within the Design Overlay District must be approved prior to
installation. Wood palisade or lattice is preferred fencing materials.

SECTIONS 17-908 ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STANDARDS

The intent of the Architectural Design Standards is to assure respect for the character, integrity, and quality of the
built and natural environments of the Town; it is not intended to stifle innovative architecture.

All buildings shall be oriented towards the street, and each building shall have a clearly defined primary
entrance that shall front the street.

The architectural detail, design and finishes (signage, canopies, railings etc.) shall be architecturally
appropriate and compatible with one another.

The scale of buildings and accessory structures (including canopies) shall be small in scale and utilize

traditional building forms of wood siding and contrasting trim; Canopies designed as domineering or
overpowering architectural features shall not be permitted.

Porticos with vertical post or columns of traditional design shall be incorporated into designs where
practical.

All structures within a commercial proposed development in the district shall utilize a uniform traditional
architectural theme. (including gasoline canopies and accessory buildings).

Building designs shall not utilize long monotonous fagade design, including but not limited to those
characterized by unrelieved repetition of shape or form, or by unbroken extension of line. All sides of any

Page 4 of 11



Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

newly constructed building or addition shall have the same attention to detail and appearance. Windows,
shutters and other details should be added to siding to break up fagade.

The side and rear elevations of a newly constructed building or addition shall be visibly attractive if the
sides and/or rear elevations are visible from a street or right of way. Rooflines and architectural details
shall present a consistency in quality design.

Siding materials for newly constructed buildings and additions shall be wood clapboard, concrete
fiberglass composition (hardi-plank) or other synthetic products which show a wood grain closely
resembling wood siding, or board and batten, wood shingles or shakes, brick, stucco, tahbby, or synthetic
stucco with light texture. Only materials listed shall be specified in design submissions. No other materials
will be accepted.

No portion of any newly constructed building or addition shall be constructed of unadorned concrete
masonry units or corrugated metal, corrugated fiberglass, sheet metal, exposed metal, and/or
manufactured panelized metal wall systems shall be visible in any manner from adjoining developed
properties, from existing right of way, or from adjoining properties which are eligible for future
development.

All roofs on newly constructed buildings not exceeding 5000 sq. ft. shalt'be hipped or gabled and have a
minimum of 6/12 pitch.

All roofs on newly constructed buildings exceeding 5001 sq. ft. shall be allowed to utilize a parapet roof.
Mansard roofs shall not be permitted.

The use of a parapet or a flat roof is acceptable for existing buildings only.

Roofing material shall be wood shingles or shakes, slate shingles, copper, architectural grade asphalt or
fiberglass shingles, galvanized standing seam or v-crimp metal, painted corrugated metal, concrete
composition shingles, other standard roofing material applications like built up tar and gravel if not
exposed to view from Hwy. 17 or adjoining streets. Only materials listed shall be specified in design
submissions. No other materials will be accepted.

Decorative wall-mounted lighting along the sides and front of a building is encouraged to provide a sense
of security for pedestrians. This lighting shall compliment the architectural style of the building.

Mechanical equipment whether ground level, raised or on roof-top if visible from any street or right of
way shall be shielded and screened from public view through the use of a parapet wall or other decorative
feature. The public view includes front facades, and side and rear facades visible from public right(s) of

way and adjacent properties.

Awnings, when utilized, may project a maximum of 6 feet out from the main fagade into the public right
of way or private property, with a minimum clearance height of 71/2 to 8 feet.

Shutters, when utilized, shall be either louvered, paneied, or board and batten. They shall be hung or
hinged from window sides or jambs, or from window top or heads (Bermuda shutters).

All order boxes, menu stands, pick-up windows, service/teller windows, and required vehicle queuing
associated with drive thru services shall be located to the side or rear of the buildings. For the purpose of
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

this section, the side or rear shall mean the area behind a projected line running parallel from the front
(street facing) side(s) of the structure to the side property line. This concept is depicted in the graphic
below:

e Highly tinted or mirrored glass shall not be permitted.

e large expanses of glass shall be avoided, or divided into smaller lights through thé use of mullions or
muntins. Undivided glass panes shall not exceed nine (9) square feet in_si_ze.' This size format may be used
in multiple, tandem panes to create larger glass proportions for storefront'systems. The larger the glass
pane, the larger the mullions or muntins used shall be.

p = Ap?ﬂ'l
® True divided light or simulated givided Iigﬁ't windows of wood, vinyl clad wood, metal, or metal-clad,
painted to contrast with buildiftg color shall be used.

e Service, loading and solid waste receptacles or dumpster locations shall be designed to minimize the
impacts on the pedestrian areas and customer parking areas and shall be located in the rear or side yard.
No such facility shall be located in the front yard. Dumpsters shall be surrounded on at least 3 sides by a
wall or solid fence, Such enclosures shall be designed compatible with the primary structure onsite by
using compatible materials with the primary structure. This requirement does not apply to moby roll
carts.

SECTION 17-909. SIGN DESIGN STANDARDS

The intent of the Sign Design Standards is to assure each is compatible with materials and the architectural style of
the business which it advertises. The following applies to any new signage, additional signage or any sign changes
within the design overlay district.

e Signage shall be designed, constructed and installed by a licensed sign company.

e All proposed signage shall be indicated on the architectural elevation plan and include location and
dimensions to scale.
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

e Freestanding signs and wall signs shall compliment the architectural style of the building and shall be
designed as an architectural element of the building.

e  Materials, colors, and lighting of signs shall be compatible with the materials used in the construction of
the building.

e Wall signs shall be proportionately sized with other architectural features of the building and fit within the
confines of the architectural details of the building as to not obscure or detract from those details.
Business signs erected upon or above a roof or parapet of a building shall not be permitted within the
Design Overlay District.

SECTION 17-910. COLOR SCHEME STANDARDS

The intent cf the Color Scheme Design Standards is to assure respect for the character, integrity, quality of design
and unite designs within the Town.

e Required Color Palette: Paint colors for exterior finishes shall be sefected from the color range chart as
approved by the Town Council and maintained at the Planning, Building and Zoning Department. These

are the only colors allowed.
e Color Palette: The color palette is typical of coastal environment colors which generally include earth
tones. Colors such as black, dark blue, grays and other dark colors can be used to accent only.

e  Windows and doors shall be finished in white orearth tone colors. Trim, shutters and awnings shall be
white, or a contrasting value of the cladding color as shown on the approved color chart.

e  Color combinations of paints and stains shallbe complimentary. In general no more than three different
colors per building shall be permitted. One for base color, one trim color, and one accent color. Primary
colors, fluorescent, psychedelic, and phosphorescent are not permitted in the design overlay district.
Color combinations shall apply not only to new construction, additions and/ or renovations, but also when

repainting the building at any time.
e Roofing colors shall be black, dark blue, grays or other dark value colors.

SECTION 17-911. LANDSCAPING DESIGN STANDARDS

The purpose of the Landscape design standards is to reduce the visibility of paved areas from adjacent properties
and streets, moderate climatic effects, minimize noise and glare, and enhance public safety by defining spaces to
influence traffic movement. Landscaping will reduce the amount of stormwater runoff and provide transition

between properties.

Each newly developed commercial property shall allocate a minimum of twenty percent (20%) of its total area to
landscaping which may include existing or transplanted trees, shrubs, and groundcover. Paved areas, gravel areas
and landscaping rocks shall not be calculated as part of the minimum twenty (20%) percent. Retention/detention
ponds may be inciuded up to five percent (5%) of the total area. Retention/detention ponds shall be maintained to
be aesthetically pleasing and promote the overall landscaping design.

Landscape requirements shall supersede parking requirements for the commercial districts.

New Projects: All new buildings, structures and parking areas shall comply with the minimum landscape
requirements set forth herein.
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

Existing Properties: Under the following circumstances, existing properties will be required to meet the
landscaping requirements of the Design Overlay District as closely as possible:

(a)  Addition or enlargement of an existing building, including combining existing units when removing load
bearing walls
(b) Change of use or change of ownership.
{c) Redevelopment of parking lots, including resurfacing shall cause landscaping and parking areas to be
brought into compliance.
{d) When dwellings are converting into a commercial business property.
(e) When renovations to an existing building exceed twenty percent (20%) of the appraised valug
of the building as indicated in the Horry County tax records or a current certified appraisal of the
structure before the start of renovations the entire property shall be brought into compftignce.
(f}  When a single building or 50% of the total square footage of a strip center has been vacant (not open to
public) for over 180 days, or for one year in the case of seasonal uses.

Accessory structures used in conjunction with businesses shall also meet these requirements,

Existing properties having pavement and/ or concrete where landscape buffers are required shall be required to
remove the existing pavement/concrete in order to meet the buffer requirements herein.

Landscaping buffer requirements for perimeter parking areas Arrangement of trees and shrubs in groupings is
encouraged to ensure visibility and to allow for creativity. Equal spacing of plant materials shall not be required.

Perimeters adjacent to Public Right of Way: A visual clearance area between the height of two and one half (2 %)
feet and ten (10) feet shall be maintained on the corners of all property adjacent to the intersection of two streets
or a driveway providing access to a public or private street within twenty five (25) feet of the intersections of the
right of way of streets or of streets and driveways, (see diagram below)

Perimeters adjacent to Public Right of Way

Parking areas that do not exceed 5,000 sq. ft. in area shall be required to have a minimum landscape buffer of 5
feet in width and shall contain a minimum of 1 shade or ornamental tree and 10 shrubs with appropriate ground
cover for every 30 linear feet or fraction thereof of street frontage.

Parking areas that exceed 5000 sq. ft. but do not exceed 20,000 sq. ft. in area shall be required to have a minimum
landscape buffer of 10 feet in width and shall contain and shall contain a minimum of 1 shade or ornamental tree
and 10 shrubs with appropriate ground cover for every 30 linear feet or fraction thereof of street frontage.
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

Parking areas that exceed 20,000 sq. ft. in area shall be required to have a minimum landscape buffer of 15 feet in
width and shall contain and shall contain a minimum of 2 shade or ornamental trees and 15 shrubs with
appropriate ground cover for every 30 linear feet or fraction thereof of street frontage.

Perimeters buffers not adjacent to public right of way shall be required to have a minimum landscape buffer of 5
feet in width and shall contain a minimum of 1 shade or ernamental tree and 10 shrubs with appropriate ground
cover for every 30 linear feet or fraction thereof of perimeter.

Interior Parking buffer area requirements
Landscaping provided around the perimeter of the buitding and interior parking areas enhance the appearance and
customer attraction of commercial businesses.

A three foot (3’) landscaping buffer with 6 shrubs for every 30 linear feet of building or fraction thereof shall be
required between buildings and parking lots as well as end caps and landscape islands. Trees and shrubs located
within the interior areas of the parking lot provide shade and heat abatement, and help break up the visual impact
of the large areas of pavement.

End caps and Landscape islands shall not be less than 9x18 feet and shall include at least 1 shade or ornamental
tree and 5 shrubs.

° End caps—parking aisle end caps shall be required and utilized as landscape islands.
° A maximum of 12 consecutive parking spaces in a row shall be permitted without a landscape
istand.
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Ordinance No. 12-0729
First Reading: 10/09/2012
Second Reading: 01/08/2013

-9 =
MIN(MUM REQUIRED WIDTH
FOR ISLAND PARALLEL TO SPACES

Landscape requirements for signs hed
A landscape border a minimum of 5 feet in depth and a minimum width equdl to the greatest width of the sign
shall be required for all freestanding signs. The landscape border shiil contain 5 ghrubs for every 10 linear feet
with appropriate ground cover. No portion of the sign shall proj'g.gt bgyond the'landscape border.

Landscape buffer requirements
Existing trees, regardless of size may be counted towards requirements for shade trees or ornamental trees

provided such trees are in good health, and located in the approximate area as required.

Shade trees: Must be indigenous to the area and redch a:mature height in excess of 40 feet and shall be a
minimum of 3 inches in caliper dbh and 10 to 12 feet in height at the time of installation.

Ornamental trees: trees that have a particular ornamental characteristic and tend to have a mature height of less
than that of a shade tree. Ornamental trees shall be a minimum of 1.5 inches in caliper dbh and six to eight feet in
height at the time of installation.

Shrubs: Shall be a minimum of 3 gallon in size and 1.5 feet in height at the time of installation.

Groundcover: Shall consist of grass, sod, ivy, bedding plants, wood chips, bark, mulch, straw and similar materials.
in no case shall stone, pebbles, sand or rocks be used for groundcover.

No structures (except public utilities) shall be permitted within the required landscape buffer. Ingress and egress
shall be permitted.

The owner, occupant, tenant or agent shall be jointly and severally responsible for the maintenance of all
landscaping. Landscaping shall be maintained in good condition as to present a healthy, neat, and orderly
appearance. Proper maintenance shall include watering, weeding, mowing, mulching, fertilizing, and pruning. Any
dead, dying or damaged landscaping material shall be promptly replaced with materials of an approved size and

type.

SECTION 17-912. PARKING AREA DESIGN STANDARDS
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DECISION PAPER FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Meeting Date: November 13, 2012 Prepared by: John Adair, DPW

Subject: Proposed Ordinance to Amend - Chapter 7 Health and Sanitation
Article Il, Divisions 2 and 3 as submitted
Ordinance # 12-0734

1. Background-

After a thorough review of the Sanitation Enterprise Fund income and expenses, and consultations with the
Finance Committee, there is consensus to increase Sanitation rates in order to maintain the high level of
service over the long-term. Anticipated revenues over the next five fiscal years will not sustain the fund, and
a funding model has been created which will accomplish this and keep the fund healthy for potentially 10
years. The ordinance change also addresses several errors, inconsistencies, and regulatory additions to the
current ordinance.

2. Assumptions-

The funding model assumes:

e A capital replacement plan as established by the Director of Public Works. Given the average 10-
year lifespan of a large collection vehicle, and the size of our fleet, we can assume a large truck
purchase at the frequency of approximately every two years. This is in addition to smaller vehicle
needs.

e A 5% annual increase in salaries, benefits, and operating expenses. These include uniforms, fuel,
supplies, vehicle maintenance, etc.

3. Facts-

Surfside Beach currently has some of the lowest Sanitation fees in the county, among both the public and
private sector. Comparisons have been made between our charges and Myrtle Beach, Conway, Aynor, and
Loris, on the public side, and Waste Management and Waste Industries’ services in these arcas on the
private side. Various scenarios and levels of rate increases have been analyzed, and a plan to keep the
Sanitation fund healthy in addition to still being a substantial value has been formulated. The most suitable
method to accomplish this, in summary is:

Increase to standard mobile cart service 25%  -from $15 to $18.75 per month per cart.
Increase to 6-yard commercial container service 25%  -from $21.00 to 26.25 per pickup.
Increase to 8-yard commercial container service 35%  -from $23.50 to $31.75 per pickup.
Increase to Winter Roll-out curb service 100% -from $6.00 to $12.00 per month per cart.
No increase to Summer Roll-out curb service.

No charge for recycling services.

No charge for yard waste services.

No charge for bulk waste services.

No surcharge for bi-annual Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics drop-off events.



4. Recommendation-

The Sanitation Enterprise Fund should be a self-sustaining entity, with income that fully supports its mission
and programs. There has not been an increase in rates for approximately 8 years. During that time period,
the cost of equipment, manpower, insurance, fuel, and other necessary items has seriously impacted the
future solvency of the fund. The goal is to continue to provide the excellent services that residents and
businesses have come to expect, while remaining a solid value among our other service “providers”. Staff
and the Finance Committee feel that this ordinance change provides the way forward to this end.

DIVISION 2. - RATES AND CHARGES .~ B4

Sec. 7-12. - Service charges.
Sec. 7-13. - Payments, late payment penalty.
Sec. 7-14. - Applicability.

Sec. 7-12. - Service charges. .”*

1 Mobile container service. Mobile refuse container service shall be charged at the rate of
fiffteen-dollars{$15-00) eighteen dollars and 75 cents ($18.75) per month per cart for
all rellout-cart customers serviced by the town.

(2)  Roll-out curb service.
(a) Summer roll-out ea#t curb service. Mandatory rollout eart curb service shall be in
effect for transient rental properties, i.e., rentals less than thirty (30) days, which are
deemed commercial operations, located within the R-3 and C-3 zoning districts, from
the second Sunday in May through the first Sunday following Labor Day at the rate of
twenty-dollars {$20.-00) seventy-six dollars and twenty-five cents ($76.25) per
month per cart. This charge is broken down as follows: $18.75 x 3 time per week
service=$56.25; plus $20 summer service charge.
(b) Winter roll-out eart curb service. Mandatory rollout eart curb service shall be in

A ate-o b6 0 it from the
second Wednesday after Labor Day until the second Wednesday in May at the
rate of twelve dollars ($12.00) per month per cart for transient rental properties,
i.e., rentals less than thirty (30) days, for properties:



e Along the side & touching Ocean Boulevard, Seaside Drive, Yaupon Drive, Dogwood
Drive, and Pinewood Drive from 3™ Avenue North to 3 Avenue South.

o Along the east side of Dogwood Drive North to Ocean Boulevard from 4" Avenue North
to 17" Avenue North.

o Along the east side of Dogwood Drive South to Ocean Boulevard from 4" Avenue South
to Melody Lane.

Exception: Year-round resident owners of multi unit homes are exempt from
summer roll-out eart curb service for rental units that are attached to their primary
residence, provided that moby carts for the rental units located on the property
are curbside at the appointed times. Should said resident owner fail to place
moby carts curbside at the appointed time, the town reserves the right to require
the owner to participate in summer

roll-out service as set forth herein.

(3) Exemption from rollout ea#t curb service. Owners of noncommercial properties in
the R-3 and C-3 zoning districts must provide written notification to the Town of
Surfside Beach of either permanent residency or non-rental status. This
notification must be made each year to the town. Acceptable forms of notification
shall include a valid South Carolina driver's license with address of property
within town limits to establish residency, a copy of a current lease for a rental
property within town limits, or a signed notification of noncommercial use.

(4) Bulk containers service. Bulk container service shall be charged at the rate of

twenty-one-dollars ($21.00) twenty-six dollars and twenty-five cents ($26.25)

per container per pickup for 6-yard containers and twenty-three-dollars-and-fifty
cents($23.50) thirty-one dollars and seventy-five cents ($31.75) per container

per pickup for 8-yard containers.

(Ord. No. 87-0251, § 10- 40—3(b)(1) (2), 12-1-87; Ord. No. 91-0303, 7-1-91; Ord. No. 93-
0330, 3-16-93; Ord. No. 96-0375, 3-12-96; Ord. No. 00-0447, 5-23-00; Ord. No. 01-0453, 3-
13-01; Ord. No. 02-0471, 3-26-02; Ord. No. 02-0476, 5-14-02; Ord. No. 03-0494, 4-8-03; Ord.
No. 03-0497, 5-27-03; Ord. No. 04-0518, 3-9-04; Ord. No. 04-0544, 12-14-04, Ord. No. 06-
05693, 3-14-06)

Sec. 7-13. - Payments, late payment penalty. .~

Effective January 1, 2002, sanitation services shall be billed by GSWSA on the monthly
water and sewer bill as a separate item. Town sanitation will be billed to the water meter
customer unless a hardship is determined in the town's sole discretion, in which case the
sanitation service will be billed to another customer or address.

Effective January 1, 2002, and as long as an agreement is effective, all sanitation
service charges will be paid to GSWSA. Penalties for nonpayment will be at the current rate
charged by GSWSA for late payments. Late fees shall be credited to GSWSA as payment for
its additional collection services. If a customer should become delinquent in the payment of



sanitation service charges, GSWSA has the authority to discontinue water services until
payment is made in full.

(Ord. No. 87-0251, § 10-40-3(b)(3), 12-1-87; Ord. No. 01-0451, 1-23-01; Ord. No. 01-0465,
12-11-01; Ord. No. 04-0518, 3-9-04)

Sec. 7-14. - Applicability. -~

Service charges for complete sanitation services shall be applied monthly to every

single or multiple residential unit and every commercial establishment located within the town.
The service is available to all units and establishments within the town; therefore, the
appropriate service charge will be applied whether or not the required refuse receptacles are
utilized by the unit or establishment.

(Ord. No. 87-0251, § 10-40-3(b)(4), 12-1-87)

DIVISION 3. - DISPOSAL AND COLLECTION

Sec. 7-37. - Special disposal problems. .”

(@)

(b)

(c)

Contagious disease refuse. The removal of clothing and bedding from places where
highly infectious diseases have prevailed shall be performed under the supervision and
direction of the Horry County Health Department. Such refuse shall not be placed in
containers for town collection and disposal.

Hypodermic instruments. No person shall dispose of or discard any hypodermic needle
or any instrument or device for making hypodermic injections before first breaking,
dissembling, destroying or otherwise rendering inoperable and incapable of reuse such
hypodermic syringe, needle, instrument or device, and without safeguarding the
disposal thereof by wrapping or securing the same in a suitable manner so as to avoid
the possibility of causing injury to collection personnel.

Ashes. Ashes that are to be collected by the town shall have been wetted and shall be
cool to the touch prior to collection. Ashes shall be placed in a watertight container,
such as a plastic bag, can, etc. Refuse receptacles containing ashes shall not weigh
more than fifty (50) pounds.

Cardboard boxes and cartons. Prior to being deposited as refuse for collection in
approved receptacles or containers as defined herein, all cardboard boxes, cartons or
crates shall be completely collapsed, or in lieu of being placed in receptacles or
containers, such cardboard boxes, cartons or crates shall be completely collapsed and
securely bundled. Each bundle shall not weigh more than fifty (50) pounds.



(e)
Rubber tires. The town shall not collect any unsplit rubber tire or any rubber tire that has
not otherwise been reduced from its original shape or conformation by a generally
accepted and approved manner or method. It shall be a violation of this article for any
person to place any unsplit rubber tire or any rubber tire that has not otherwise been
reduced from its original shape or conformation by a generally accepted and approved
manner or method in any refuse receptacle or container from which refuse is collected
by the town.

(f)
Food processing waste. All fish (seafood) processing waste, surplus entrails, heads,
tails, scales, shells, bones, etc., must be packaged in a watertight container, such as a
plastic bag, can, etc.

(g)  Electronic Waste (E-scrap). Effective July 1, 2011 - residents may not knowingly
place or discard a computer, computer monitor, printer or television, or component of
same, in any waste stream that is to be disposed of in a solid waste landfill. The Town
will not collect these items with regular refuse after this date.

(Ord. No. 87-0251, § 10-40-23, 12-1-87; Ord. No. 04-0518, 3-9-04)
Secs. 7-38—7-40. - Reserved.



DIVISION 2. - RATES AND CHARGES 1321

Sec. 7-12. - Service charges.

Sec. 7-13. - Payments, late payment penalty.

Sec. 7-14. - Applicability.

Sec. 7-12. - Service charges.'jé??

(1

()

Mobile container service. Mobile refuse container service shall be charged at the

rate of fifteen-doltars{$45-00) eighteen dollars and seventy-five cents
($18.75) per month per cart for all relleut-eart customers serviced by the town.

Roll-out curb service.

(a) Summer roll-out eart curb service. Mandatory rollout eart curb service
shall be in effect for transient rental properties, i.e., rentals less than thirty (30)
days, which are deemed commercial operations, located within the R-3 and C-3
zoning districts, from the second Sunday in May through the first Sunday
following Labor Day at the rate of twenty-dellars{$20-00) seventy-six dollars and
twenty-five cents ($76.25) per month per cart. This charge is broken down as
follows: $18.75 x 3 time per week service=$56.25; plus $20 summer service

charge.
(b) Winter roll-out eart curb service. Mandatory rollout eart curb service shall

be in effect fertransient-rental-properies,+erentalsless-than-thirty (30)-days;

L)
c < c S

= - >

percart- from the second Wednesday after Labor Day until the second
Wednesday in May at the rate of thirty dollars and seventy-five cents ($30.75)
per month per cart. This charge is broken down as follows: $18.75 x 1 time per
week service; plus $12.00 winter service charge. This service applies to transient
rental properties, i.e., rentals less than thirty (30) days, for properties:

Along the side & touching Ocean Boulevard, Seaside Drive, Yaupon Drive,
Dogwood Drive, and Pinewood Drive from 3" “ Avenue North to 3" Avenue
South.

Along the east side of Dogwood Drive North to Ocean Boulevard from 4"
Avenue North to 17" Avenue North.

Along the east side of Dogwood Drive South to Ocean Boulevard from 4"
Avenue South to Melody Lane.



Exception: Year-round resident owners of multi unit homes are exempt
from summer roll-out eart curb service for rental units that are attached to
their primary residence, provided that moby carts for the rental units
located on the property are curbside at the appointed times. Should said
resident owner fail to place moby carts curbside at the appointed time, the
town reserves the right to require the owner to participate in summer

roll-out service as set forth herein.

3) Exemption from rollout ea#t curb service. Owners of noncommercial
properties in the R-3 and C-3 zoning districts must provide written
notification to the Town of Surfside Beach of either permanent residency
or non-rental status. This notification must be made each year to the
town. Acceptable forms of notification shall include a valid South Carolina
driver's license with address of property within town limits to establish
residency, a copy of a current lease for a rental property within town
limits, or a signed notification of noncommercial use.

(4) Bulk containers service. Bulk container service shall be charged at the

rate of twenty-one-dellars($21-00) twenty six dollars and twenty-five
cents ($26.25) per container per pickup for 6-yard containers and twenty-

three-dollars-and-fifty-cents{$23:-50) thirty one dollars and seventy-five

cents ($31.75) per container per pickup for 8-yard containers.

(Ord. No. 87-0251, § 10-40-3(b)(1), (2), 12-1-87; Ord. No. 91-0303, 7-1-91, Ord. No.
93-0330, 3-16-93; Ord. No. 96-0375, 3-12-96; Ord. No. 00-0447, 5-23-00; Ord. No. 01-
0453, 3-13-01; Ord. No. 02-0471, 3-26-02; Ord. No. 02-0476, 5-14-02; Ord. No. 03-
0494, 4-8-03; Ord. No. 03-0497, 5-27-03; Ord. No. 04-0518, 3-9-04; Ord. No. 04-0544,
12-14-04, Ord. No. 06-0593, 3-14-06)

£
Sec. 7-13. - Payments, late payment penalty._@_}

Effective January 1, 2002, sanitation services shall be billed by GSWSA on the
monthly water and sewer bill as a separate item. Town sanitation will be billed to the
water meter customer unless a hardship is determined in the town's sole discretion, in
which case the sanitation service will be billed to another customer or address.

Effective January 1, 2002, and as long as an agreement is effective, all sanitation
service charges will be paid to GSWSA. Penalties for nonpayment will be at the current
rate charged by GSWSA for late payments. Late fees shall be credited to GSWSA as
payment for its additional collection services. If a customer should become delinquent in



the payment of sanitation service charges, GSWSA has the authority to discontinue
water services until payment is made in full.

(Ord. No. 87-0251, § 10-40-3(b)(3), 12-1-87; Ord. No. 01-0451, 1-23-01; Ord. No. 01-
0465, 12-11-01; Ord. No. 04-0518, 3-9-04)

Sec. 7-14. - Applicability. @

Service charges for complete sanitation services shall be applied monthly to
every single or multiple residential unit and every commercial establishment located
within the town. The service is available to all units and establishments within the town;
therefore, the appropriate service charge will be applied whether or not the required
refuse receptacles are utilized by the unit or establishment.

(Ord. No. 87-0251, § 10-40-3(b)(4), 12-1-87)



_B. Winter Roll Out Curb Service of $72.00 dollars per month shall be optional for the total
R-3 district and shall be mandatory for the total C-3 district.

Persons or properties who want to opt out of the Winter Roll Out Curb Service in the R-3
district shall notify the Town of Surfside Beach Public works Department . This notification shall
be made each and every year that a person or property want to opt out of the Winter Roll Out
Curb Service to the Surfside Beach Public Works Department.

Failure to notify the Surfside Beach Public Works Department shall result in that person
or property in the R-3 district being charged a Winter Roll Out Service of $12.00 dollars per
month.

If a cart for a person or property that has opted out of the Winter Roll Out Services is
rolled out to the street and the person or property fails to remove the cart from the street, the
surfside Beach Public Works Department can reinstate the Winter Roll Out Service fee of
$12.00 dollars without Notifying the person or property who chose to opt out.

Winter Rates for shall be a price of $30.75, broken down at $18.75 per month plus a
$12.00 dollar Winter Roll Out Curb Service fee from the second Wednesday after Labor Day
until the second Wednesday in May at the rate of $12.00 per Month per Cart for the Roll Out
Curb Service for transient rental properties, ie: rentals less than thirty (30) days , for
properties in the C-3 and R-3 districts.




Ordinance No. 12-0734
First Reading: 01/08/2013
Second Reading:

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH
) TO AMEND CHAPTER 7 OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF
COUNTY OF HORRY ) ORDINANCES TO REVISE DIVISION 2 -SEC. 7-12
) §1-4 AND INCLUDE IN DIVISION 3 SECTION 7-37 §G
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in council duly assembled
adopted The Town’s Code of Ordinances, to include Section 1-12 which allows for the amendment of the code when
the public necessity, convenience or general welfare justify such action; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council has determined.that the facts and findings provided to them
support the recommendations to have the above sections amended,

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that Cﬁilpt_ér 7 of the Town’s Code of
Ordinances, Division 2 Section 7-12 § 1-4 and Division 3 Section 7-37 be amendedito;add G to read:

DIVISION 2 SECTION 7-12 § 1-4

Sec. 7-12. - Service charges.

M

)

3)

Mobile container service. Mobile refuse container service shall be charged at the rate of eighteen
dollars and 75 cents ($18.75) per month per ¢art for all customers'serviced by the town.

Roll-out curb service.

(a) Summer roll-out curb service. Mandatory rollout curb service shall be in effect for
transient rental properties, i.c., rentals less than thirty (30) days, which are deemed commercial
operations, located within the R-3 and C-3 zoning districts, from the second Sunday in May
through the first Sunday followmg Labor Day at'the rate of seventy-six dollars and twenty-five
cents ($76.25) per month per cart. This charge is broken down as follows:

$18.75 x 3 time per week service=$56.25; plus $20 summer service charge.

(b) Winter roll-out curb service. M_éndatory rollout curb service shall be in effect from the
second Wednesday after Labor Day until the second Wednesday in May at the rate of twelve
dollars ($12.00) per month per cart for transient rental properties, i.e., rentals less than thirty (30)

‘days, for properties:

Along the side & touching Ocean Boulevard, Sea31de Drive, Yaupon Drive, Dogwood Drive, and
Pinewood Drive from 3:rd Avenue North to 3 Avenue South.

Along the east side of Dogwood Drive North to Ocean Boulevard from 4™ Avenue North to 17"
Avenue North,

Along the east side of Dogwood Drive South to Ocean Boulevard from 4" Avenue South to
Melody Lane.

Exception: Year-round resident owners of multi unit homes are exempt from summer roll-out curb
service for rental units that are attached to their primary residence, provided that Moby carts for
the rental units located on the property are curbside at the appointed times. Should said resident
owner fail to place Moby carts curbside at the appointed time, the town reserves the right to
require the owner to participate in summer roll-out service as set forth herein.

Exemption from rollout curh service. Owners of noncommercial properties in the R-3 and C-3
zoning districts must provide written notification to the Town of Surfside Beach of either
permanent residency or non-rental status. This notification must be made each year to the town.
Acceptable forms of notification shall include a valid South Carolina driver's license with address

Page 1 of 2



Ordinance No. 12-0734
First Reading: 01/08/2013
Second Reading:

of property within town limits to establish residency, a copy of a current lease for a rental property
within town limits, or a signed notification of noncommercial use.

4) Bulk containers service. Bulk container service shall be charged at the rate of twenty-six dollars
and twenty-five cents ($26.25) per container per pickup for 6-yard containers and thirty-one
dollars and seventy-five cents ($31.75) per container per pickup for 8-yard containers.

DIVISION 3 SECTION 7-37§ G
Sec. 7-37. - Special disposal problems

(2) Electronic Waste (E-scrap). Effective July 1, 2011 — residents may not knowingly place or discard

a computer, computer monitor, printer or television, or component of same, in any waste stream that is to

be disposed of in a solid waste landfill. The Town will not collect these items with regular refuse after this

date.

BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, South
Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof this 8th day of January 2013:

Douglaé F. Sétﬁples, Mayiil:

Ma_ry Beth Mab_l;y, Ma§or Pro ﬁ"empore S Ann _[i):.i_gr.—:.':l:own Council

Mark L. Johng)n, Town Council Urgab_ezllm Atio_mﬁﬁa_n'ﬁ_, Town Council

Roderick E. bﬁmh_TBx\;lFt;JnC!I 5 T Randle M. Stevéﬁé, Town Council

Altest:

Debra E. Herﬁnann,_CMC. Town Clerk
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COUNTY OF HORRY )
) ORDINANCE 72-12
)

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE REGULATION OF LASER POINTING
DEVICES IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF HORRY COUNTY.

WHEREAS, laser pointers are small handheld devices, usually battery operated, equipped with
a laser diode emitting a very narrow laser beam of visible light, intended to be used to highlight
something of interest by illuminating it with a small bright spot of colored light; and

WHEREAS, laser pointers are often used in educational and business presentations for visual
demonstrations as a pointing device, are useful in the construction setting, and for certain
gunsights; however, if they are aimed at a person's eyes, they can cause temporary disturbances
to vision, and in some cases permanent retinal damage; and

WHEREAS, when pointed at aircraft at night, laser pointers may cause spatial disorientation,
and otherwise dazzle and distract pilots at critical times, and have been used maliciously 1o
distract or annoy individuals on the ground as well as in the air; and

WHEREAS, recently there has been a proliferation of lasers in the marketplace, particularly
higher powered lasers of greater than 1 milliwatt output and brighter color (e.g. green), due to
their appeal as a recreational device, coupled with the low cost of manufacture: and

WHEREAS, especially because of these higher powered lasers, with the resulting increase in
their intensity and range, and extra potential hazard when pointed at objects and people, there
also has been a dramatic escalation recently in the number of incidents in which damaging laser
beams are being directed at people and aircraft in Horry County; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Coast Guard, Charleston Sector, has reported several recent cases where
pilots were forced to land their aircraft and abort missions during search and rescue operations
after being hit with laser beams, particularly debilitating when the pilot is wearing night vision
equipment; and

WHEREAS, during the summer of 2012 alone. there have been over 70 reported incidents of
aircraft being hit by lasers in and around the Myrtle Beach International Airport.

WHEREAS, therefore, it is the will of County Council to provide for regulation of the sale,
possession, and use of laser pointed devices in the County, and to provide for the enforcement
thereof, in the interest of the public’s health, safety, and welfare.

NOW, THEREFORE, by the power and authority granted to the Horry County Council by the
Constitution of the State of South Carolina and the powers granted to the County by the General
Assembly of the State, the following law with respect to the regulation of laser pointed devices is
hereby ordained and enacted:

1. ADDITION TO HORRY COUNTY CODE.




Chapter 13 — Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions
Article XIX. — Laser pointing devices

Sec. 13-100. - Laser pointers prohibited.

Sec. 13-100.1. - Definitions.

Laser pointer or device means a device that is designed to amplify electromagnetic
radiation by stimulated emission that emits a beam designed to be used by the operator as a
pointer or highlighter to indicate, mark, or identify a specific position, place, item, or object.
Such term also means a device that projects a beam or point of light by means of light
amplification by stimulated emission of radiation or other means or that emits light which
simulates the appearance of a beam of light.

Contraband means a) any laser pointer or device that is used unlawfully, or b) any laser
pointer or device that is greater than 1 milliwatt, as shown by the manufacturer’s or distributor’s
technical specifications as shown on the pointer or device or otherwise, or ¢) any laser pointer or
device for which the merchant who offers the device for distribution, sale or barter has no
technical specifications showing the manufacturer’s or distributor’s confirmation that the laser
pointer or device is 1 milliwatt or less in output. Excluded from this definition are: 1) lasers used
by an authorized individual in the conduct of research and development or flight test operations
conducted by an aircraft manufacturer, the Federal Aviation Administration, or any other person
authorized by the Federal Aviation Administration to conduct such research and development or
flight test operations; 2) lasers used by members or elements of the Department of Defense or
Department of Homeland Security acting in an official capacity for the purpose of research,
development, operations, testing or training; 3) lasers used by an individual as an emergency
signaling device to send an emergency distress signal; 4) lasers used by public safety officials in
the regular conduct of their duties; 4) laser uses specifically permissible by federal or State law:
5) lasers used for legitimate educational purposes; 6) lasers used for testing in the course of
product manufacturing; 6) lasers used for legitimate business purposes and during the normal
course of such business; 7) lasers in the possession of individuals if such possession is necessary
for the individual’s employment, education, trade or occupation, and when not in use; 8) lasers
possessed and/or used as part of a gun sight, so long as such are possessed and/or used in a
lawful manner.

Minor means any person who has not attained 18 years of age.
Sec. 13-100.2. - Possession by minors unlawful; exception.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any minor to possess a laser pointer or device, while not under the
direct supervision of a parent, guardian or teacher, which parent, guardian or teacher takes full
responsibility for its possession and use under this Article, and bears the full consequences of its
misuse.

(b) Laser pointers or devices in the unlawful possession of minors are subject to immediate
confiscation as contraband.

(c) It shall be unlawful for any person, other than a parent, guardian or teacher, to knowingly
provide a laser pointer or device to a minor.




e S B e it o o st ik e

(d) Business license holders that distribute, sell or barter laser pointers or devices to minors are
subject o the suspension and ultimate revocation of their business licenses.

Sec. 13-100.3. - Prohibited uses; exceptions.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to direct the light from a laser pointer or device from
public or private property upon another person, a person's means of conveyance, or an animal, on
public or private property, or upon a watercrafi, airplane, helicopter or other aircraft, in public
airspace or waterways at any time. Excluded are the possession and use of laser gun sights when
possessed and used for lawful hunting purposes, or for self defense as defined by law.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any parent, guardian, person acting in loco parentis, or responsible
adult to purchase and give to any minot, or permit any minor in their custody to possess or use, a
laser pointer or device while not under the dircet supervision of such parent, guardian, person
acting in loco parentis, responsible adult, or teacher.

Sec. 100.4. - Regulated sales

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to distribute, sale or barter, any laser pointer or device
to any adult except under the following conditions:
1. Any distribution of any laser pointer or device shall be verified by the manufacturer’s or
distributor’s technical specifications confirming that the pointer or device is not more than 1
milliwatt, and the proof of wattage as shown by the technical specifications which must be
maintained by the merchant, to be available upon demand of law enforcement. It is the
merchant’s responsibility to obtain proof from the seller/vendor wholesaler. Laser pointers or
devices offered for distribution, sale or barter that do not have the proper proof of wattage
limitations are subject to immediate confiscation as contraband. Laser pointers and devices
offered for sale in their original unopened packaging which confirms that the devices are |
milliwatt or less in output are sufficient proof of compliance. If greater than 1 milliwatt, the
distribution, sale or barter must be accompanied by a statemment concerning their use
limitations, as set forth in this Article, with a written acknowledgment on the part of the
buyer as to which exception(s) apply to the possession and use of such laser pointer or
device.
2. Any distribution, sale or barter of each individual laser pointer or device must be
accompanied by the written warnings of use as required herein, and a signed customer receipt
that the warnings of use have been provided in conjunction with the distribution, sale or
barter. After verifying the adult status of the customer, the merchant shall require the
customer to affix his signature under the legible printed name affirming that the waming has
been provided and read.
(b) REQUIRED WARNINGS OF USE.
I, the undersigned, have read and understand the wamings of use that are required to
accompany the receipt of this laser pointer or device.
WARNING ON POSSESION AND USE OF A LASER POINTER OR DEVICE
PARENTS! DO NOT BL'Y THIS PRODUCT FOR MINORS! THIS PRODUCT CAN BE
CONSIDERED A WEAPON!




« Laser beams can temporarily blind or disorient an operator of an airplane, helicopter or
vehicle when the beam is directed toward them. The beam is much larger at long distances
than you might think. Even though the laser projects a small, millimeter-sized dot close up, at
longer distances the beam can be many inches across. When the beam hits the windscreen of
a cockpit, or the bubble of a helicopter, imperfections in and on the glass spread the light out
even more, making it impossible for the pilot to safely navigate. Pilot exposure to the beam
can result in flash blindness, glare and distraction in the immediate task of piloting the
aircraft. Pointing a laser at an aircraft places all the persons aboard in mortal jeopardy.

o It is a federal felony crime to aim a laser pointer at an aircrafl, or at the flight path of an
aircraft. The federal penalty is up to 5 years in a federal prison and/or a fine of several
thousand dollars. The U).S. Federal Aviation Administration “will pursue the toughest
penalties” against persons who deliberately aim lasers at aircraft, Transportation Secretary
Ray LaHood announced on May 16 2012. Since June 2011, FAA has taken action against 28
persons, with an average fine of $11,000 per laser strike. The highest penalty sought so far is
$30,800. FAA has directed its staff not to seek warning notices or counseling, but to use
“moderately high civil penalties™ for inadvertent laser illuminations, and maximum penalties
for deliberate violations. Horry County will inform the federal authorities of any arrests
relating to this crime so that appropriate prosecution to the fullest extent of the law can be
achieved at the federa! level.

+ Section 55-3-130 of the South Carolina Code of laws also makes it criminal offense to
point, aim, ot discharge a laser device at an occupied aircraft, in the air or on the ground,
providing a potential sentence for a first offense of one year in prison, a fine of $2,000, or
both. A second or subsequent violation triggers the possibility of even greater sentencing.

« A laser’s light is concentrated into a narrow beam. If aimed at a person’s eye from close
up, most or all of the light goes through the pupil. The already-concentrated light is further
focused by the lens onto a sharp (“diffraction-limited™) dot on the retina. Even at the lower
power outputs, the power density from a | milliwatt laser, focused to a point, is brighter than
the equivalent area of the sun's surface. This can cause a detectable injury to the retina, if the
laser stays in one spot for a few seconds. Laser beams can permanently blind a person or
animal when the beam is directed into their eyes.

* Any person of 17 years or older who possesses a laser pointer or device unlawfully, or
who points a laser beam toward any vehicle, person or animal is subject to a conviction for
violation of County ordinance, for assault and battery, and/or for mistreatment of animals,
with a $500.00 fine and up to 30 days imprisonment, or both, as well as being civilly liable
for any personal injury to a person or animal, or damage to property, that might result from
this illegal act.

« PARENTS, GUARDIANS. RESPONSIBLE ADULTS: YOU WILL BE HELD
PERSONALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MISUSE OF THIS DEVICE BY ANY MINOR
TO WHOM YCOU PROVIDE THIS DEVICE, OR BY ANY OTHER PERSON TO WHOM
THAT MINOR PROVIDES THIS DEVICE.

* Any parent, guardian, person acting in loco parentis, or responsible adult person, who
purchases a laser pointer or device for a minor, or who allows a minor in their custody to
access, possess or use a laser pointer or device within the unincorporated area of Horry
County, and that laser pointer or device is possessed or used unlawfully, is subject to arrest
and prosecution, and upon conviction, is further subject to a fine of $500.00 and up to 30
days imprisonment, or both. The parent is chargeable as a principal to the crime along with




the minor in possession, or who illegally uses the device as a weapon, and is also subject to
prosecution for contributing to the delinquency of a minor.

« Any minor 16 years or younger, who is in possession of, or who uses, a laser pointer or
device unlawfully, is subject to service of a juvenile summons and will be prosecuted in
Family Court by the Solicitors Office.

« Lasers in the unlawful possession of minors are subject to immediate confiscation as
contraband, in addition to any other law enforcement action.

- Laser pointers or devices that are used illegally are contraband, and subject to immediate
confiscation, in addition to any other law enforcement action.

Date:

Print merchant name and signature that adult status has been verified, and that manufactures
technical specifications are available to prove that the device is 1 milliwatt or less, or if greater
than 1 milliwatt, set forth specific exception(s) applicable to possession and use.

Print customer’s name and signature that affirms the warning have been received and read.

Sec. 100.5. - Laser pointers are considered weapons; assault and battery on person; mistreatment
or abuse of animal.

(a) A laser pointer, or any other similar article, which consists of a hand-held, battery-
operated device of any output, designed or adapted to emit a laser beam and that may be used for
the purposes of aiming, targeting or pointing, is considered a weapon when used unlawfully.

(b) When a laser pointer is directed to a person, or upon a conveyance piloted, operated or
occupied by a person, such conduct is deemed an assault and battery.

(c) When a laser pointer is directed to an animal (other than for lawful hunting purposes),
such conduct is considered abuse or mistreatment of animals.

Sec. 13-100.6. - Penalty; immediate confiscation.

(a) Any person violating any of the provisions of this Article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor
and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished as the law allows for a misdemeanor crime, with
a fine not greater than $500.00 or 30 days imprisonment, or both, per incident.

(b) Any laser pointer or device found upon the person of a minor, or used by any person in a
prohibited manner, or found in a business as an item for sale without manufacturer’s technical
specification showing that the output is 1 milliwatt or less, may be immecdiately seized as
contraband by law enforcement, a Court of competent jurisdiction to determine the temporary or
permanent nature of the confiscation.

2. SEVERABILITY. If any Section, Subsection, or part of this Ordinance shall be deemed or
found to conflict with a provision of South Carolina law, or other pre-emptive legal principle,
then that Section, Sub-section or part of this Ordinance shall be deemed ineffective, but the
remaining parts of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.




3. CONFLICT WITH PRECEDING ORDINANCES. If a Section, Sub-section or provision
of this Ordinance shall conflict with the provisions of a Section, Sub-section or part of a
preceding Ordinance of Horry County, unless expressly so providing, then the preceding Section,
Sub-section or part shall be deemed repealed and no longer in effect.

4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall become effective on Third Reading.

AND IT IS SO ORDAINED, ENACTED AND ORDERED.

HORRY COUNTY COUNCIL

H. Tom Rice, Chairman

Harold G. Worley, District 1 Brent J. Schulz. Distnict 2
Marion D. Foxworth, III, District 3 Gary Loftus, District 4

Paul D. Price, Jr.. District 5 Robert P. Grabowski, District 6
James R. Frazier, District 7 Carl H. Schwartzkopf, District 8
W. Paul Prince, District 9 B Jody Prince, District 10

Al Allen. District 11

Attest:

Patricia S. Hartley, Clerk to Council

First Reading: November 16, 2012 (Fall Budget Retreat)
Second Reading:
Third Reading:
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% Memorandum

To: Town Council

From: Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk
Date: January 3, 2013

Re: Committee Volunteers & Appointments

Advertising was published on November 27", Vacancies exist on the following boards,
commissions, and/or committees:

Board of Building Appeals (5 vacancies)
-Bill Trail
-Ralph Magliette

Board of Zoning Appeals (1 vacancy)
-Terri Lauer

Stormwater Committee (1 vacancy)
-Tom Meccia

Senior Citizens Committee (3 vacancies)
-Linda Roach
-Jim Roach
-Cheryl Lowe

Dedicated people providing quality and responsive service to our community.
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575-6034 ¢ www.surfsidebez zh.org
Main 843.913.6111 ¢ Direct 843.913.6333 ¢ Email dherrmann@surfsidebeac:.org
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Submissions for any or all of these committees must be received by January 2, 2013.

BOARD OF BUILDING APPEALS

Number of Members Sought: 5

Term: 4 years

Duties: This board hears and decides appeals of orders, decisions or determinations
made by the building official relative to the application and interpretation of the
International Residential Code (IRC). (IRC R112.1)

Requirements: The board of appeals shall consist of members who are qualified by
experience and training to rule on matters pertaining to building construction and who
are not employees of the jurisdiction. (IRC R112.3) Town residency is not mandatory
for this particular board.

Meeting Schedule: This board only meets when there are appeals to be heard.

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

Number of Members Sought: 1

Term: Complete an unexpired term ending August 9, 2015.

Duties: BZA is a quasi-judicial board that hears appeals to rulings on the town’s zoning
codes; based on four mandatory criteria, the board may approve or deny appeals.
Requirements: Volunteers must live in the town’s corporate limits, but there are no
other particular requirements. Mandatory education is paid for by the town (6 hours the
first year, and 3 hours each subsequent year.)

Meeting Schedule: This board meets only when there are appeals to be heard, usually
on the 4th Tuesday of the month. Members must live in the town’s corporate limits, but
there are no other particular requirements. Mandatory education is paid for by the town
(6 hours the first year, and 3 hours each subsequent year.)

STORMWATER COMMITTEE

Number of Members Sought: 1

Term: Complete an unexpired term ending November 22, 2015.

Duties: This committee reviews and makes recommendations to Town Council about
the town’s stormwater management plan and system. Members also perform water
quality testing, and provide community education about stormwater with support from
professionals.

Requirements: Members must live in the town’s corporate limits, but there are no other
particular requirements.

Meeting Schedule: This committee has regular business meetings on the fourth
Tuesday of each quarter (January, April, July, and October.) Education sessions are
scheduled throughout the year, usually on a fourth Tuesday.




Debra Herrmann

From: Bill Trail [btrail1234@gmail.com]

Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2012 6:24 PM
To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org
Subject: Commision and Board Applications
Attachments: B Trail Resume Updated.102610.doc

Hello Debra.

Per Sabrina's input, I am applying for the new opening in the Planning Commision and for a position in the
Construction Board of Appeals.

| am attaching my summary resume that outlines my extensive experience as an Architect, Cong uction
Manager, Real Estate Developer and Business Owner. If you should need any additional information or have

any questions, please call me on my cell at (843) 504-5884... Thanks!

Bill

Bill Trail



BILL TRAIL

521 7" AVENUE NORTH CELL: (843) 504-5884
SURFSIDE BEACH, SC 29575 EMAIL: btrail1234@gmail.com

Summary

Mr. Trail provides 30 years of experience and leadership in design and construction. Bill has ensured the
successful completion of numerous large commercial, municipal and education projects.

o Registered Architect for multi-family, retail and high rise office projects

o Senior Manager/Vice President for design and construction by national retail and multi-family real estate
developers

o Owner’s Representative for public sector, managing numnerous multi-architect, multi- project and complex
government and education construction programs

o Design and Construction claims support and resolution

e Vice President and Owner for regional business expansion and operations of an Engineering Netos Record
ranked national CM firm

o Director of construction operations for $90 million revenue GC/CM for private sector projects

e Owner and SC Licensed Residential Builder for firm buying, renovating and veselling challenged homes

Recent Experience

Hidden Potential Home Renovations, Surfside Beach, SC May 2010 to Present
After relocating to South Carolina, Bill proceeded to establish himself and develop new opportunities to maintain
and expand relevant skills.

s Volunteered with Habitat for Humanity to help expand my knowledge of residential construction
e Member of Cypress River Home Owner Association’s Architectural Review Board

e Architect, General Contractor and self performed work for gut renovation of own 1,700 SF house
e  Architect, General Contractor for major renovation & addition to older/ vacant 2,500 SF house

Kirchhoff Construction Management - Pleasant Valley, NY September 2008 tc September 2009
After a brief break, Bill took over all operations responsibilities to direct over 30 Project Manager and
Superintendent personnel of Kirchhoff Construction Management, located in the New York Hudson Valley . Bill
established new procedures, implemented training and oversaw staff on over $90 million in private sector
construction projects underway, until the firm merge with a larger Massachusetts CM firm. Bill then provided
transition services working with the new senior management team until the Fall of 2009.

PinnacleOne/ARCADIS - Phoenix, AZ and Middletown, CT March 1993 to May 2008
For over fifteen years, Mr. Trail was in a leadership role with PinnacleOne, an Engineering News Record #27
nationally ranked Construction Management firm. As vice president and an owner of the firm, his role was to
provide leadership, manage risk, direct operations, hire staff, manage the marketing efforts and establish strategic
direction for both the Program Management and Claim Groups in the Southwest Region and then the Northeast
Region starting in 2001. His efforts built the Northeast Region by first winning the $200 million Fairfield Schools
Program in Connecticut, expanding into Massachusetts for a $120 million project for the City of Springfield, MA
and starting a new service as CM as Agent on a two multi-prime library projects. His role also included the Board
of Directors, until PinnacleOne was merged in late 2006 with ARCADIS, a large international consulting firm.




BILL TRAIL

btrail1234@gmail.com

Bradford Realty and Development - Oakbrook, IL July 1989 to February 1993
Mr. Trail joined the Chicago, IL based real estate development office of Vanguard, to provide onsite management
of two separate retail projects in the suburbs of Chicago; one anchored by Walmart and the other by Jewel Food
Stores. Following the local acquisition of the Chicago operations from Vanguard to form a new local based firm,
Bradford, Bill was promoted to Vice President in charge of all planning and construction. Projects focused upon
stand alone buildings for both Walmart and K-Mart stores, as well as a Phase 2 expansion of an existing retail
center and the planning and entitlement process for a large design/build multi anchor development.

Example Project Experiences

Commercial

228 North LaSalle - Chicago, IL
Mr. Trail was involved in the design and construction administration of this high rise addition and renovation
project in downtown Chicago to convert a 1920’s office building to a new life.

Walgreen’s Drug Store - Wappingers Falls, NY

Mr. Trail was Project Executive for contract negotiations and construction of this new $2.3 million, 13,066 sf retail
and drug store completed within 22 weeks time. Separate contracts were established for the site work with the
site owner/developer and with the separate building developer. While originally bid as a lump sum, the work
was converted to a GMP with shared savings just prior to construction starting.

Orland Towne Center - Orland Hills, IL

Bill managed all the design and construction of this $18.6 million Walmart anchored retail center development for
the development firm. A difficult site required extensive removal of deep areas of unsuitable “peat” materials
and extensive landscape buffering to address adjacent residential area concerns.

Government

Pine Plains Community Center and Library - Pine Plains, NY
Mr. Trail was the Project Executive for this $1.6 million two story 11,000 sf project construction.

City of Norwalk Police Station - Norwalk, CT

Mr. Trail was Project Executive for the Project Management/Owner Representation services provided to the City
of Norwalk for the new 60,000 sf police station construction phase, including move management oversight and
adding a new Emergency Operations Center build out part way through construction.

City of Phoenix Municipal Courts Complex - Phoenix, AZ

Mr. Trail was the Project Manager for the evaluation of existing conditions at the former Phoenix Union High
School Campus property for reuse as a permanent courts complex. Site and 250,000 sf of building components
were examined as to current condition, life expectancy and remedial work costs. Mr. Trail also developed the
space needs program, prepared conceptual reuse designs with cost estimates for presentation to City Council.




BILL TRAIL

btrail1234@gmail.com

Education - K-12

Fairfield Public Schools - Fairfield, CT

Mr. Trail initially lead the start up of this effort as the Senior Project Manger and then transitioned to the overall
Program Director position as it staffed up for this $200 million total budget, six school program that started in
2002. Mr. Trail coordinated with three separate building committees and the Town Administration for all design
and construction oversight services. CM at Risk delivery was utilized for the following construction values:

Phoenix Union High School District - Phoenix, AZ

Bill served as Program Director starting in 1996 for this $150 million, nine campus bond construction program,
including the first new school to be built in the district for over 20 years. He provided full oversight for the scope
of services that included evaluating existing facilities, developing design standards, coordinating educational
specifications, selecting consultants and managing the design, bidding, equipping, construction and occupancy of
the facilities. The project team managed six architectural firms on multiple bid packages for each of the 10 project
sites below:

Education - College and University

Vassar College Davison Residence Hall - Poughkeepsie, NY

Bill provided overall oversight, focusing on schedule maintenance and self performed GC trade staffing for this
$13.3 million complete interior and exterior renovation of a historic 1800’s 63,500 sf building. Praject was
completed to meet the scheduled student move in, in spite of Change Order impacts exceeding 5% of the original
bid value.

Arizona State University - Tempe, AZ

Bill was the Project Manager assisting in the preparation of an RFQ, RFP and contract documents for the first use
of alternative delivery methods allowed by the state for CM @ Risk, Job Order Contracting and Dresign/Build.

Residential

Multi-Family

Mr. Trail directed all planning and construction operations for a real estate developer/property management firm,
including all design and construction contract negotiations, scheduling, feasibility planning, cocrdination with
government agencies and design and construction management for two projects in Portland, OK and Mesa, AZ.

Dyson Residence - Pleasant Valley, NY

Bill was Project Executive for a $1.9 million new 5,182 sf custom residence constructed under a cost plus a fee
basis. The project incorporated many “Green” aspects including geothermal heating and cooling and solar
collectors.




BILL TRAIL

btrail1234@gmail.com

Claims Analysis

Bill has provided research and technical opinion on issues relative to the standard of care for professionals and
construction change order claims. Scope of work included contract review, code research, document analysis and
site inspections.

Defective Construction Investigation and Testimony

Mr. Trail coordinated on-site destructive testing, observations and research on various residential, education and
municipal properties, including testimony in legal actions for the following:

e Anderson School for Autism - Hyde Park, NY

e Vassar College Kenyon Hall - Poughkeepsie, NY

e The Arbors Condominiums - Las Vegas, NV

e LaMirage Condominiums ~ Las Vegas, NV

e  Whispering Pines School - Miramar, FL

Due Diligence Investigations

Mr. Trail did inspections and prepared property condition reports for various property types including hotel,
multi-family, time share, golf course developments and warehouse facilities for both prospective purchasers and
commercial lenders. He also coordinated the services for national owners and lenders using strategically placed
staff resources to provide nationwide capability.

Education

Bachelor of Architecture - University of Arizona, Tucson, AZ
Arizona School of Real Estate, Scottsdale, AZ — Courses in real estate, funding, land planning arid development

Registrations

Licensed Residential Builder, SC #48975
Architect, AZ #016001 (inactive)
Architect, IL. #0114355 (inactive)




Debra Herrmann

From: Ralph Magliette [magliet@aol.com]

Sent: Tuesday, December 04, 2012 10:26 PM

To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org

Subject: Volunteer For Surfside Beach Building Board Of Appeals

Construction)
Debra Herrmann, Clerk, Surfside Beach

Dear Debra,

| would like to volunteer to become a member of the Surfside Beach Building Board of Appeals

| have 35 years of environmental engineering experience which encompasses construction oversight for various
environmental process controls at pharmaceutical production facilities

Best regards,

Ralph Magliette

Ralph Magliette

104 Harbor Lights Dr
Surfside Beach, SC 29575
Cell#t 732-331-2289
Home# 843-839-2863
E-mail: magliet@aol.com




Debra Herrmann

From: Mom, MomMom, Terri [tmI651@aol.com]

Sent: Monday, November 26, 2012 2:20 PM

To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org

Cc: smorris@surfsidebeach.org; dougsamples@surfsidebeach.org
Subject: Board of Zoning Appeals

Please be advised that | am interested in serving on the Board of Zoning Appeals for Surfside Beach...| am current a
member of the KSBBC and see this position as a natural outgrowth...if you need any further information, feel free to
contact me...

Sincerely,

Terri Lauer

124 Harbor Lights Dr.
Surfside Beach, SC 29575
843-213-1885
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Debra Herrmann

From: Iroach@sc.rr.com

Sent: Friday, November 30, 2012 12:41 PM
To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org
Subject: volunteers

Ms. Herrmann, my husband and I are recently retired and would like to volunteer for the
senior citizens advisory committee. We have lived in Surfside Beach since 2001 and are
senior citizens, both college graduates, with an avid interest in our community. Our phone
is 843-238-1844. We reside at 113 S. Dogwood Drive. Please contact us if you nieed any
additional information. Thank you. Linda & Jim Roach

Debra Herrmann

From: Debra Herrmann [dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org]
Sent: Friday, November 30, 2012 3:19 PM

To: 'Iroach@sc.rr.com'

Subject: Senior Citizens Committee

Mr. and Mrs. Roach:

Thank you for letting me know of your interest in serving on the Senior Citizens Committee.
Your names will be submitted to Town Council at the January 8th meeting.

In the meanwhile, the Senior Citizens Committee is meeting next Monday at 11:00 a.m. in
the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center, if you would like to attend. A copy of the public notice
with meetings and events for next week is attached.

e
Next Week at
Town Hall.pdf

You may use the red link below to sign up for public notices that include meeting and event
notices.

Thank you for your willingness to serve the town.

Debra Herrmann

Debra Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk

dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org - 843.913.6333

Click Here to Subscribe to Public Notices & Agendas
Click to LIKE: Facebook.com/SurfsideBeachTownClerk

This e-mail transmission, in its entirety and including all attachments, is intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom it is addressed and may confain sensitive information
which is privileged, confidential, and the disclosure of which is governed by applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disclosing, distributing,
copying, or taking any action in relation to this e-mail is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the related
message and any attachments. WARNING: All e-mail comrespondence to and from this address may be subject to public disclosure under the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act
(FOIA), §30-410 SC Code of Laws.



Debra Herrmann

From: mikeandcheryl@sc.rr.com

Sent: Wednesday, December 26, 2012 9:09 PM
To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org

Subject: Senior Cititzens Advisory Committee

Good Afternoon,
I am interested in the Senior Citizens Advisory Committee and volunteering on this

committee.

I work during the day at Coastal Carolina University so I would not be available until after
that. I dearly love older people and like to cherish the time we have with them. I live at
310 16th Ave S and my number is 843-315-9631.

Thanks for your time,

Cheryl Lowe



Town of Surfside Beach Regular Town Council Meeting

The Grand Theatre, 301 Highway 17 South, Surfside Beach, SC 29575

Tuesday, January 8, 2013

Agenda, Continued 7
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B. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss appointments to committees as noted i
Section 7C herein.
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TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575
www.surfsidebeach.org

%H‘:;;& @ (843) 913-6111 & (843) 238-5432
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TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
PUBLIC NOTICE The Grand Thaa;re

SPECIAL LOCATION 3oghidhyay 1hT "W
FOR THIS MEETING. ugsigleRgac t.;

AGENDA
1. CALL TO ORDER — Mayor Douglas F. Samples

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - L/M FOR Pastor Wallace Journey Church
01/03/2013 @ 10:30 a.m.

If
I(J
Y

3. AGENDA APPROVAL

4. MINUTES APPROVAL - Regular Meeting December

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS — 3-minutes per speaker |
com it
|

, ___Year Service Award ?

ond R dlng Ordinance #12-0729 to add Chapter 17, Article IX, Q erlay Dlstrtﬁ
= Ms Morrl (moved to this meeting by approved motion on 12/10/2012) AJY u;,

. B. _ First Reading Ordinance #12-0734 to amend §7-12 Sanitation Service Ch :rges, and fo
o= . add §7-37(g) Electronic Waste Prohibition, Public Works Director Adair (per approved
— motion at 11/13/2012 meeting)

C. i g Ordinan — ‘Mayor-Samples.) - 4+ 7 7
’ 700mm|ttee Appointments (May be deferred until after Executive Ses ion)
I. Board of Building Appeals — (5 vacancies) Bill Trail, Ralph Magliette
. Board of Zoning Appeals — (1 vacancy) Terri Lauer {/0 o j )
i, Stormwater Committee - (1 vacancy) Tom Meccia ame d Q/ F—
iv. Senior Citizens — (3 vacancies) Linda Roach, Jim Roach, Cheryl Lcwe
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Town of Surfside Beach Regular Town Council Meeting
Town Council Chambers ¢ Tuesday, January 8, 2013
Agenda, Continued

8. DISCUSSION — Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council.

Road Signage on Ogean Boulevard, Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry
JASEES, A5 . ?Do
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS - 5-minutes per speaker

10. COUNCIL COMMENTS

11.  EXECUTIVE SESSION | pefswmfl I 27 Mecte

A. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(®) to giscuss\pending - :- pfitayors idask KI-about
thisy A Wkt -

B. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss appamtments to corfimittees as noted in

Section 7.D. herein.

12. ADJOURNMENT

1
MR e A /(\c b A

Administration
Pier Signage Presentation, Admlnlstrator Fellner (per Micki 12/05/2012)

B&Z L @ A \
—copy of draft land use element to town council when available 06/1 112012
—list of all addresses that change on the final'zening maps (05/10/2012)

Finance
—preakdown of staff time and costs for town events (08/28/2012)

Planning Dept.
—identify issues and permitting fee relating to docks

Public Works
—Mr. Samples asked Mr. Adair for a list of the streets and estimated costs for the repairs that need to
be done. (Budget Meeting 03/08/12)

Recreation
—evaluate staff time and town costs for Guy Daniels surf off (08/28/2012)
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Debra Herrmann

From: Surfside Beach Info [mailinglist@surfsidebeach.org]

Sent: Friday, January 04, 2013 5:11 PM

To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org

Subject: Public Notice - Town Council Meeting 01/08/2013

Attachments: 01082013_tc_agenda.pdf; 01082013_tc_agenda_4 12102012_draft_minutes.pdf, 01082013

_tc_agenda_6a|_planmng_report.pdf, 0108201 3_tc_agenda_6au_pohce.pdf, 01082013
_tc_agenda_gaiii_fire.pdf, 01082013_tc_agenda_7a_12_0729_overlay_districts.pdf;
01082013_tc_agenda_7b_12_0734_sanitation_service_charges.pdf, 01082013_tc_agenda_
7d_committee_appointments.pdf

The January 8, 2013 Town Council meeting agenda and supporting documents are attached, and are also are published at hitp://www surfsidebeach org/agenda 012 html; a printed copy
is available in the town clerk’s office for public inspection prior to the meeting

This Town Council meeting is being held at The Grand Theatre, 301 Highway 17 South, Surfside Beach, because Council Chambers is undergoing mold remediation and repairs.
The public is invited to attend all meetings. Time is allotted at all regular meetings for public comments on agenda items and general comments.

This transmission is pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act §30-4-80.

If you do not want to receive any more newsletters, click "UNSUBSCRIBE" this link
To update your preferences or to unsubscribe, please click "PREFERENCES" this link

To forward a message to someone, please click "FORWARD" this link

POWERED BY
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Please let me know your arrival and departure dates. Will Carrie go with you? }'ll get your
registration and reservations made when I hear from you.

BTW, I didn’t bring the cold weather...it has a mind of its own! LOL
D.

Debra Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk

dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org - 843.913.6333

Click Here to Subscribe to Public Notices & Agendas
Click to LIKE: Facebook.com/SurfsideBeachTownClerk

This e-mail transmission, in its entirety and including all attachments, is intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom it is addressed and may contain sensitive information
which is privileged, confidential, and the disclosure of which is govemed by applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disclosing, distributing,
copying, or taking any action in relation to this e-mail is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the related
message and any attachments. WARNING: All e-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to public disclosure under the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act
(FOIA), §30-410 SC Code of Laws.

From: Mark L. Johnson [mailto:surfsidemark@frontier.com]
Sent: Friday, January 04, 2013 11:51 AM

To: Debra Herrmann

Subject: MASC meeting

Good moming and Happy New Year Debra! Thanks for not bringing any of that snow with you from up North,
but can you send this cold weather back up there?

This is just a note to let you know I will be attending the MASC meeting in Columbia in February. In the past the town clerk made the
reservations for council.

Mark L. Johnson



